>

\ &
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Vs

Notice of a public meeting of
Local Plan Working Group

To: Councillors Merrett (Chair), Ayre, Barnes, D'Agorne,
Funnell, Horton, Reid, Riches, Simpson-Laing, Steward
and Watt (Vice-Chair)

Date: Monday, 4 November 2013

Time: 5.00 pm

Venue: The Severus Room - 1st Floor West Offices (F032)
AGENDA

1. Declarations of Interest
At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare:

e any personal interests not included on the Register of
Interests

e any prejudicial interests or
e any disclosable pecuniary interests

which they may have in respect of business on this agenda.

2. Minutes (Pages 3-12)
To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Local Plan
Working Group held on 22" April 2013.

3. Public Participation

At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have
registered their wish to speak, regarding an item on the agenda or

www.york.gov.uk



an issue within the remit of the Working Group, may do so. The
deadline for registering is 5.00 pm on Friday 1°' November 2013.

4. Consultation Feedback (Pages 13 - 168)

The purpose of this report is to provide initial feedback on the Local
Plan Preferred Options consultation which closed on 315 July 2013.
This report summarises the consultation undertaken, outlines the
number of responses received, highlights some of the key
emerging messages and sets out the next steps for producing the
Local Plan.

5. Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under
the Local Government Act 1972.

6.
Democracy Officer:

Name: Laura Bootland
Contact Details:
e Telephone — (01904) 552062
e E-mail — laura.bootland@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak
Business of the meeting
Any special arrangements
Copies of reports

Contact details are set out above.




Page 1 Agenda Annex

About City of York Council Meetings

Would you like to speak at this meeting?
If you would, you will need to:

e register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and
contact details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no
later than 5.00 pm on the last working day before the meeting;

e ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of
business on the agenda or an issue which the committee has
power to consider (speak to the Democracy Officer for advice
on this);

e find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy
Officer.

A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s
website or from Democratic Services by telephoning York
(01904) 551088

Further information about what’s being discussed at this
meeting

All the reports which Members will be considering are available for
viewing online on the Council’'s website. Alternatively, copies of
individual reports or the full agenda are available from Democratic
Services. Contact the Democracy Officer whose name and contact
details are given on the agenda for the meeting. Please note a
small charge may be made for full copies of the agenda
requested to cover administration costs.

Access Arrangements

We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.
The meeting will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue
with an induction hearing loop. We can provide the agenda or
reports in large print, electronically (computer disk or by email), in
Braille or on audio tape. Some formats will take longer than others
so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours for
Braille or audio tape).

If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-
by or a sign language interpreter then please let us know. Contact
the Democracy Officer whose name and contact details are given
on the order of business for the meeting.

Every effort will also be made to make information available in
another language, either by providing translated information or an



Page 2

interpreter providing sufficient advance notice is given. Telephone
York (01904) 551550 for this service.

T AR TSt (AT ST 2 SR O (FI O[T T ST G 7 4AUd (OB T TE, I S W
T O] I I ORI T U TS (RIS} AR 4 7T | G  (01904) 551 550 |

Yeteri kadar dnceden haber verilmesi kosuluyla, bilgilerin terGimesini hazirlatmalk ya da
bir terctiman bulmak i¢cin mimkin olan hersey yapilacaktir. Tel: (01904) 551 550

S HEREHNEAREE TR IAE - EE R RERRTEA B - ik
IR, B|3S (01904) 551 550,

(01904) 551 550@5Jf-ﬁufgﬁf@g‘f‘L{u,z;mwrr;q.(jgd:clw!f_d,%wﬁ

Informacja mozie by¢ dostepna w tumaczeniu, jesli dostaniemy zapotrzebowanie z
wystarczajacym wyprzedzeniem. Tel: (01904) 551 550

Holding the Cabinet to Account

The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Cabinet (39 out
of 47). Any 3 non-Cabinet councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of
business following a Cabinet meeting or publication of a Cabinet
Member decision. A specially convened Corporate and Scrutiny
Management Committee (CSMC) will then make its
recommendations to the next scheduled Cabinet meeting, where a
final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.

Scrutiny Committees
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees
appointed by the Council is to:
e Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services;
e Review existing policies and assist in the development of new
ones, as necessary; and
e Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans

Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?

e Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the
committees to which they are appointed by the Council;

e Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and
reports for the committees which they report to;

e York Explore Library and the Press receive copies of all public
agenda/reports;

e All public agenda/reports can also be accessed online at other
public libraries using this link
http://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1




Page 3 Agenda ltem 2

City of York Council Committee Minutes
MEETING LOCAL PLAN WORKING GROUP
DATE 22 APRIL 2013

PRESENT COUNCILLORS MERRETT (CHAIR), BARNES,

BARTON, D'AGORNE, HORTON, REID, RICHES,
SIMPSON-LAING AND WATT (VICE-CHAIR)

IN ATTENDANCE COUNCILLORS ALEXANDER, GUNNELL AND
WARTERS
12. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

13.

14.

Members were asked to declare any personal interests not
included on the Register of Interests, any prejudicial interests or
any disclosable pecuniary interests which they may have in
respect of the business on the agenda.

Councillor D’Agorne declared a personal interest in agenda item
4 as an employee of York College, which was referred to in the
document.

MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meting held on 7
February 2013 be approved and signed by the
Chair as a correct record.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

It was reported that there was one registration to speak under
the Council’s Public Participation Scheme and that two
Members had also requested to speak.

Mr Keogh, representing the York Chamber of Commerce,

spoke in respect of agenda item 4 — City of York Local Plan. He
stated that the drawing up of the draft Local Plan was welcomed
as it provided an essential framework. He fully supported the
housing targets to ensure that the housing needs of the city’s
workforce were catered for. It would also stimulate the building
industry and lead to increased employment. The improvements
to transportation were also welcomed. The main concerns



15.

Page 4

related to the employment land provision. Mr Keogh expressed
concern that the land that was proposed for this purpose may
not be sufficient or be in the right location. Further
representations about this matter would be made during the
consultation process and York Chamber of Commerce would
continue to work with the Council regarding these issues.

Councillor Warters spoke in respect of agenda item 4 — City of
York Local Plan. He expressed concern at the cancellation of
Local Plan Working Group meetings and stated that the
Working Group had not been sufficiently involved in the drafting
of the Local Plan. He queried the purpose of the Working
Group and stated that there had not been cross-party input or
debate.

Councillor Watt, as a member of the committee, expressed his
concern that a press conference had been held on the draft
Local Plan prior to the document being issued to members of
the Local Plan Working Group. He stated that the plan was an
attack on rural areas and expressed strong concerns about the
impact that the Plan would have on Skelton. Councillor Watt
then left the meeting.

Councillor Alexander spoke in respect of agenda item 4 — City of
York Local Plan. He stated that many people of his generation
had given up hope of home ownership. The lack of housing
supply in the city was a cause of concern. He drew attention to
the links between jobs and housing. Councillor Alexander
stated that the Council was keen to develop brownfield sites, for
example the development at Terry’s, but there was insufficient
brownfield sites to meet demand. He stated that the target that
had been set would be difficult to achieve at first but that there
was a moral obligation to provide more housing in the city.

CITY OF YORK LOCAL PLAN - PREFERRED OPTIONS

Members considered a report which presented the Local Plan
Preferred Options and Proposals Map. A report on this issue
was due to be considered in detail by Cabinet at a meeting on
30 April 2013. The Local Plan Working Group’s
recommendations would be presented to Cabinet to help inform
any decisions taken.



Page 5

The Chair stated that the Plan sought to accommodate business
needs and provide a more substantial housing supply. The
target of 1090 aimed to meet existing and expected economic
growth but whilst care had been taken in choosing sites it was
also important to maintain York’s setting. Allocations
concentrated on larger sites would create new communities and
would provide the necessary facilities and transport
infrastructure.

Councillor Barton stated that he was very concerned that the
documentation referred to Holme Hill. He stated that this was a
farm and not an area of land. This had caused significant
problems for the residents concerned. Officers were asked to
look into this matter and consider an alternative approach.

Some concerns were expressed at the short timescale within
which members of the Working Group had been expected to
study the documentation and at the fact that a press conference
had been called prior to the agenda papers being published.
Concerns were also expressed that some of the supporting
documentation had been made available on-line only and was
not easily accessible.

Members went through the documentation and raised the
following issues:

Figure 1 in the report

e Concerns were expressed that the map showed all sites
considered for development potential but the documentation
did not provide reasons as to why some of the sites had been
ruled out. The rationale needed to be made public at the
consultation stage.

Section 1: Strateqgic Framework

e Para 1.7 - In respect of the “duty to co-operate” more
information should be included as to the bodies that would be
consulted, particularly in respect of cross boundary impacts.

Section 2: Spatial Portrait

e Para 2.59 — the references to journey to work patterns do not
place sufficient emphasis on the journeys of people who live



Page 6

in York but who work in another area. It would be useful if,
during the consultation process, work could be carried out to
ascertain the reasons for this and also why people choose to
commute into York but not live here. Do the reasons only
relate to housing?

Para 2.69 and 2.70 — need to be kept updated to reflect the
changing situation.

Section 5: Spatial Strateqgy

Employment growth (page 44) — greater clarity needed, for
example as to how the expectation of employment had been
arrived at, including the three options and an explanation of
what is meant by a “policy on” scenario.

Page 45 — it was noted that the figure of 47,500 people
should read “55,000”

Greater clarity required in respect of the four housing growth
options.

Officers responded to Members’ questions regarding
windfalls.

Concerns were raised regarding the identified new settlement
at “Holme Hill” and as to whether a settlement of this size
would be sustainable. Members suggested that there would
be a need to provide more detailed information on this issue
as part of the consultation process.

Section 6: York City Centre

e Page 65 - “residential” to be included in the list of

development types that are acceptable in principle.

Section 7: York Central

e Members noted that the proposals reflected the work that

had been taking place and that it would provide a key
opportunity for a new central business quarter.

Section 9: Retail

It was suggested that some of the work that had taken place
on neighbourhood parades and local retailing should be
included in the evidence base. Officers confirmed that work



Page 7

on neighbourhood parades had been undertaken and would
be available at consultation.

Section 10: Housing Growth and Distribution

e Better cross referencing with Section 5 “Spatial Strategy” was
suggested. It was noted that there were four options for
housing growth in this section and that there needed to be
consistency within the documentation.

e |t was suggested that reference be made as to how
scenarios such as boom and bust would be accommodated.

e Table 10.1 H6 — amend wording “land to rear of Wilberforce
Home”.

Section 11: Aiding Choice in the Housing Market

e Officers gave an update on how it was intended to redraft
ACHM3 to provide greater clarity.

e The correction needed to the key denoting areas of search
for Gypsy and Traveller sites and Showpeople Yard on the
proposals map was noted.

¢ |t was agreed that a link be provided to demonstrate the
Council’s legal duties in respect of gypsies and travellers.

¢ Information to be included clarifying the difference between a
pitch and a plot.

e Consideration to be given as to whether more information
could be included on house prices/wages and medium and
mean wage comparisons as part of the contextual
information regarding the range of housing choice.

o Officers to ascertain if information is available regarding any
correlation between shared housing and a shortage of new
homes.

Section 12: Affordable Housing

e Page 135 (alternatives) — no reference to minor
developments.

Section 14: Education, Skills and Training

e Accuracy of the statement “the number of residents leaving
the area for Further Education studies has significantly
reduced from 125 to 34 over the last four years” to be
checked.



Page 8

Section 15: Universities

Consideration to be given as to whether there was scope to
increase the figure of 3,586 bed spaces at Heslington West.
Policy U5 — Light pollution should be a consideration in the
development of York St John University sport pitch
allocations where flood lighting is proposed.

Section 17: Green infrastructure

It was noted that greater clarity was needed on the Proposals
Map re areas which had dual designation as open space and
green belt.

Page 188 — further consideration should be given to the
reference “require only major development ...”

Section 18: Green Belt

For greater clarity all sites in Policy GB5 should be identified
on the proposals map as major developed sites in the green
belt.

Include reference to the fact that renewable energy in the
green belt would be considered appropriate.

Consideration to be given to the situation in respect of the
latest legislation for telecommunication masts and amend
plan if relevant.

Section 19: Flood Risk Management

Councillor Barton drew attention to a map indicating the flood
risks in the area referred to in the document as “Holme Hill”.
Officers confirmed that they were aware of the information
and fully discussed the issue with Flood Risk and Drainage
Management colleagues, also that the approach they were
advocating fitted with the NPPF. In addition, officers would
consult with the Environment Agency and Internal Drainage
Boards.

Section 20: Climate Change

e Consideration to be given to the title of the section, one

suggestion was that it focuses on renewable energy and
sustainable design and construction.



Page 9

e Purpose of Figure 20.1 is unclear.

e Paragraph 20.6 to be made more accessible.

e Cross-referencing to be included, as this section was
focussed on design and did not make reference to other
issues such as transportation.

e Page 227 — correction to paragraph reference required.

e Page 231 — further consideration to be given to the wording
in respect of light pollution etc.

Section 22: Waste and Minerals

e There is no mention of “fracking”. It should be considered
whether it is appropriate to do so.

Section 23: Transport

Need to cross reference air quality to this section.

Paragraph 23.9 — need to clarify that this is two-way

Page 251 point iv — needs greater clarity.

Greater clarity needed in definitions such as frequency of

service and the distinctions between the expected services to

suburban areas compared to rural villages.

e Page 260 — location of pedestrian/cycle bridge referred to in
(iii) to be checked.

e Page 265 — protection for residential areas — consideration to

be given to the impact on areas such as Monks Cross.

Section 25: Infrastructure and Developer Contributions

e Discussion took place regarding the Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and Section 106 monies.

General Issues:

¢ |t was noted that reference had been made to some of the
major sites being of sufficient size to require the provision of
a primary school although detailed information had not been
provided. Members suggested that the situation in respect of
secondary school provision would also need to be
considered. Officers confirmed that such issues would need
to be given more detailed consideration as the submission
developed.



Page 10

e Clarification was sought as to how the development control
policies would link to the Local Plan. Officers stated that the
document would replace the previous Local Plan but would
need to be supplemented by planning documents which
interpreted aspects of the policy.

RESOLVED:

REASONS:

(i)

(iv)

That, taking into account the points listed
above, it be recommended to Cabinet
that the document attached as Annex A
to the report, subject to the specific
amendments to policies agreed at the
meeting and further work being done by
officers to address the key issues raised
at the meeting, along with supporting
information, be approved for public
consultation.

That it be recommended to Cabinet that
the making of any incidental changes to
the draft document that are necessary as
a result of their recommendations be
delegated to the Director of City and
Environmental Services, in consultation
with the Cabinet Member.

That it be recommended to Cabinet that
the approval of a Consultation Strategy
and associated documents be delegated
to the Director of City and Environmental
Services in consultation with the Cabinet
Member.

That it be recommended to Cabinet that
the approval of supporting information
and documentation to be published
during public consultation be delegated
to the Director of City and Environmental
Services in consultation with the Cabinet
Member.

So that an NPPF compliant Local Plan
can be progressed.



Page 11

(i)  So that changes recommended as a
result of discussions at the Cabinet
meeting can be made.

(iii)  To ensure that the proposed methods of
consultation are satisfactory to
Members.

(iv) To ensure that the proposed methods of
consultation are satisfactory to
Members.

Clir Merrett, Chair
[The meeting started at 5.00 pm and finished at 7.30 pm].



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13 Agenda ltem 4

COUNCIL

Local Plan Working Group 4th November 2013

Report of the Cabinet Member for Transport, Planning and
Sustainability

Feedback on City of York Local Plan Preferred Options
Consultation

Purpose of the Report

The purpose of this report is to provide initial feedback on the Local Plan
Preferred Options consultation which closed on 31% July 2013. This
report summarises the consultation undertaken, outlines the number of
responses received, highlights some of the key emerging messages and
sets out the next steps for producing the Local Plan.

Local Plan Preferred Options

The Local Plan will be the development plan for York over the 15 year
period from 2015-2030. It includes a vision for the future development of
the city and a spatial strategy and covers both strategic policies and
allocations, alongside detailed development management policies.

The preparation of the Local Plan follows on from the previous Local
Development Framework (LDF) process. The Local Plan Preferred
Options document (June 2013) draws from the responses that were
received during earlier consultations on the Core Strategy and other LDF
documents. Comments received as part of the Preferred Options
consultation will be considered by officers and used to inform the
production of the submission draft, which will be reported to Members for
consideration prior to publication for consultation and public examination
in 2014.

Consultation
Consultation on the Local Plan Preferred Options ran for 8 weeks from
5" June until 31%* July 2013.



10.

Page 14

Leaflet

A leaflet advertising the consultation and letting people know how they
could comment on the proposals was distributed to every household at
the beginning of the consultation period. Copies of the leaflet were also
available at West Offices reception, libraries, public exhibitions and GP
surgeries.

Mailout

Specific consultees including Natural England, English Heritage, the
Highways Agency, neighbouring authorities and parish councils were
contacted by email or letter informing them of the opportunity to
comment and details of the web page and where to find more
information. We also wrote to or emailed around 1800 groups,
businesses and individuals who had previously registered an interest in
planning in York to make them aware of the consultation.

Website

A link was created from the Council homepage to a new Local Plan
Preferred Options page. The new Local Plan Preferred Options
webpage set out what the document is, listed the consultation
documents and provided details on the consultation.

Document Availability

A copy of the main documents was available for the public to view in
each of the CYC libraries and in West Offices reception. A memory stick
containing the evidence base documents was also available at each
library.

Exhibitions

14 public exhibitions were held at venues across the city. Locations
were determined in consultation with colleagues in Neighbourhood
Management. Exhibitions ran from 2.30pm - 7pm, apart from those in
the city centre which ran from 10am - 4pm. Copies of the proposals
maps, along with larger scale extracts, evidence base documents, and
comments forms were made available and officers were present to
answer any queries. All of the exhibitions, except the final one at Clifton
Moor, were well attended by members of the public.

An exhibition was also held at the West Offices for CYC staff and there
was an unmanned exhibition at Huntington library for a week.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Page 15

Meetings
Officers held 16 meetings with the following prescribed bodies and key
groups:
e Environment Forum;
Natural England;
Chamber of Commerce & Property Forum;
LCR Duty to Cooperate Working Group;
Without Walls;
Youth Council;
North Yorkshire and York Spatial Planning and Transport Board;
North Yorkshire and York Spatial Planning and Transport Officer
Group;
York Branch LCA;
York Economic Partnership;
Sport England;
English Heritage; and
Highways Agency.

An event was held at the Bar Convent on 4™ July 2013 with developers
for the key strategic sites. Presentations on delivering strategic sites
were made by officers and Atlas (part of the Homes and Communities
Agency), who also facilitated the event. The purpose of the event was to
discuss what information is required from developers and how to take
forward potential strategic sites.

Media Coverage

A press release was issued to coincide with the start of the consultation
period. Officers are aware of 14 articles that appeared in the local,
regional and national press which referred to York’s Local Plan.

Issues related to York’s Local Plan consultation were also discussed as
part of a Westminster Hall debate on 3™ July 2013. Julian Sturdy MP,
Hugh Bailey MP and Nick Boles MP debated the purpose of green belt
and the strength of protection afforded to green belt land through the
National Planning Policy Framework in the context of setting York’s
green belt boundaries through the Local Plan.

Responses Received

Responses were received from 4945 respondents. Respondents
included residents, interest groups, Parish Councils, prescribed bodies,
developers, agents and land owners. To facilitate accessible
consultation respondents were able to send comments through a variety



16.

17.

18.

Page 16

of methods. As a result responses were received by letter, email,
response form and online survey.

Prescribed Bodies
Under the Duty to Co-operate councils are required to demonstrate co-
operation in plan making with adjoining authorities and other
organisations. The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning)
(England) Regulations 2012 prescribes those bodies to which the Duty
to Co-operate applies. As part of the Local Plan consultation, the
council received responses from the following ‘prescribed bodies’:
e East Riding of Yorkshire Council;
English Heritage;
Environment Agency;
Hambleton District Council;
Highways Agency;
Natural England;
Network Rail;
North Yorkshire County Council;
North Yorkshire County Council Highways;
North Yorkshire Police;
Ryedale District Council;
Selby District Council; and
Yorkshire Water.

For information the responses from prescribed bodies are attached as
Annex A to this report. The Council intends to publish all of the 4945
responses received. However, at this stage in order to address issues
regarding data protection, all personal data on responses from
individuals (not organisations or businesses) must be removed. This
task is ongoing and these will be made available publically in due
course.

Petitions

In addition to individual responses 21 petitions were submitted during
the consultation period, containing a total of 9022 signatures:
Huntington and New Earswick - 668 signatures

Save Acomb Moor Petition - 59 signatures

Save the Green Belt Petition - 81 signatures

(Cllr Ann Reid — see Council Meeting 18" July 2013 agenda
item 6 (ii)) - 2302 signatures

Dunnington Gypsy and Traveller Site - 5 signatures

W=

o



19.

20.

13.

14.

15.
16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Page 17

Proposed Siting of Gypsy and Travellers’ Site on Common
Road, Dunnington by City of York Council - 136 signatures
Dunnington Parish Council - 1323 signatures

Objection to H37, ST04 and SF4 - 89 signatures
Copmanthorpe - 879 signatures

Petition against the Huntington Travellers Site - 139
signatures

Wheldrake - 43 signatures

Save the Green Belt Petition (Clir Lynn Jeffries - see Council
Meeting 18" July 2013 agenda item 6 (ii)) - 124 signatures
Stop the Clifton Gate Proposals (Julian Sturdy MP) - 14
signatures

Stop the Travelling Showpeople Site (Julian Sturdy MP) -
288 signatures

Protect York’s Greenbelt (Julian Sturdy MP) - 416 signatures
“Save the Green Belt” Petition (Clir Ann Reid - see Council
Meeting 18" July 2013 agenda item 6 (ii)) - 1084 signatures
Petition opposing the development of land at Moor Lane (ClIr
Ann Reid - see Council Meeting 18" July 2013 agenda item
6 (ii)) - 259 signatures

The Future of Huntington - 53 signatures

Gypsy & Travellers Site, Malton Road, Huntington - 1036
signatures

Dunnington WI- Response to Local Plan Preferred Options -
26 signatures

Travellers Site in Huntington E-Petition - 87 signatures

Further details on the petitions are set out in Annex B. Four of the
petitions contain over 1,000 signatures and were reported to Full Council
on 10" October 2013 in accordance with the council’s Petitions Scheme.
The Council minutes are attached as Annex C.

There were a further four e-petitions running on democracy.york.gov.uk
during the consultation period which also covered issues relating to the
Local Plan. These are separate from the Local Plan consultation, with
closing dates running beyond the end of the consultation period. Two of
these e-petitions are still running, but at the time of writing this report,
they were as follows:

1. Say No to the proposed plans of a 16 acre permanent travellers
site in Knapton York - 1204 signatures (closed 1% September
2013). Reported to Full Council on 10™ October 2013;

2. Say No to the Draft Local Plan for Dunnington — 75 signatures
(closed 1°* September 2013);



21.

22.

23.

24.

Page 18

3. Stop Copmanthorpe Housing Estates and Wind Farm Plans — 301
signatures (closes 31 December 2013); and

4. Protect York’s Greenbelt — 817 signatures (closes 31%' December
2013). We received a request to combine petition 15 (see Annex
B) with this e-petition. This took the overall number of signatures
to 1232 and therefore this petition was also reported to Full
Council on 10" October 2013.

Any e-petitions related to the Local Plan which started after the end of
the consultation period will be considered through the council’s Petitions
Scheme rather than through analysis and feedback on the Local Plan
consultation.

It should be noted that because of the different forms of response some
respondents may have sent an individual response and signed one or
more of the petitions, leading to some duplication. However, the overall
level of engagement and response is good for this type of consultation.
A summary of the overall response is provided in Table 1 below.

Table 1: Level of Engagement and Response

Type of Response Number of As a % of population
Respondents of CYC area

Response form, 4945 2.50%

letters, emails, online

survey

Petitions 9022 4.56%

E-petitions 2397 1.21%

Total 16364 8.26%

Officers are now considering the issues raised by respondents against
each policy area and analysing these in light of National Policy and
evidence base work. Issues will also be assessed against the
Sustainability Appraisal and Strategic Environmental Assessment to
prepare recommendations on the Submission Draft Plan for Members to
consider. The Submission Draft Plan will then be subject to public
consultation.

Sites

Officers are also collating the following information submitted on sites:
e new sites submitted;
e evidence on sites previously rejected; and




25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Page 19

e further evidence submitted on sites allocated in the Preferred
Options.

This information will be used to inform the parallel 4 step approach on
taking forward development sites (see Annex D) and to inform work with
colleagues across City and Environmental Services on transport and
infrastructure delivery. The conclusions of this work will feed into the
recommendations on the Submission Draft Plan.

Emerging Messages

Whilst each respondent has now been logged, officers are currently
reading, analysing and summarising all the comments received. Further
work is needed to provide a comprehensive analysis of the comments
received but based on the work undertaken to date, it appears that the
majority of concerns/objections from respondents relate to:

i. the overall level of development proposed for York, particularly
related to the proposal for 22,000 homes (frequently related to loss
of Green Belt and traffic, infrastructure or flooding concerns);

Reflecting the Council’s ambitions as set out in the York Economic
Strategy to facilitate growth in the following sectors: advanced
manufacturing, science and research, financial and professional
services, and tourism and leisure, the Local Plan includes proposals for
16,000 new jobs. To deliver a wide choice of high quality affordable
homes, increase opportunities for home ownership, support job growth,
minimise commuting and promote sustainable inclusive and mixed
communities the Local Plan outlines proposals for 22,000 new homes.

ii. specific housing sites (particularly strategic housing sites);

In order to deliver the target for 22,000 new homes the Plan proposes
the allocation of 61 housing sites. These include small brownfield sites
within York’s main urban area; major brownfield sites such as British
Sugar (998 dwellings); strategic extensions to the main urban area
ranging from 400 to 4000 dwellings; a range of sites in villages including
strategic expansions at Haxby and Copmanthorpe; and a new
settlement south east of York (5580 dwellings).

iii. sites for Gypsies and Travellers and Showpeople; and

The Plan seeks to meet the accommodation needs of Gypsies,
Travellers and Showpeople. It identifies areas of search for Gypsy and



30.

31.

32.

Page 20

Traveller sites at Outgang Lane, Osbaldwick; Chowdene Campsite,
Malton Road; and Land at Common Lane and Hassacarr Lane,
Dunnington. It also identifies areas of search for Showpeople yards at
The Stables, Elvington and Wetherby Road, Knapton (This site has
subsequently been withdrawn).

iv. wind turbines (concerns both about particular areas of search and
the overall amount included in the plan).

The development of renewable sources of energy can make a valuable
contribution to tackling the rate of climate change. Therefore, in 2010
the Council commissioned a report to help identify the potential for
renewable energy schemes in York (Renewable Energy Strategic
Viability Study). One part of this report identified areas that showed the
greatest potential for renewable electricity generation, including
commercial wind and hydro. The Plan seeks to support and encourage
the generation of renewable energy and therefore the opportunities
identified in the report are shown as potential areas of search on the
Proposals Map.

Next Steps

Officers are currently analysing and summarising all of the responses
received. This information will then be used, alongside evidence base
work, to inform recommendations on redrafting the Local Plan. A
summary of all comments will be reported to Members early next year
alongside the recommended changes to the Plan for Members to
consider.

In the short term, the Local Plan webpage will be updated to include the
information set out in this report, including the responses from
prescribed bodies (Annex A), so that the public can view the initial
feedback on the consultation and understand what will happen next with
the comments made. The Council also intends to publish all of the 4945
responses received. This task is ongoing and these will be made
available publically in due course.



Page 21

Options
33. This is primarily an information report, requiring no decision from
Cabinet.

Corporate Priorities
34. The option outlined above accords with the following priorities from the
Council Plan:

Create jobs and grow the economy
Get York moving

Build strong communities

Protect the environment

Implications
35. The following implications have been assessed.

Financial — Work on the Local Plan is funded through the Local
Plan Reserve.

Human Resources (HR) — The production of a Local Plan and
associated evidence base requires the continued implementation
of a comprehensive work programme that will predominantly,
although not exclusively, need to be resourced within CES.
Equalities — An assessment was undertaken for the Local Plan
Preferred Options and will continue to be undertaken during the life
time of the plan.

Legal — The Local Plan has been produced in a way that reflects
strategy and regulatory requirements. In due course Council will
be asked to approve a plan which will be subject to examination by
a member of the Planning Inspectorate before being finally
adopted. Members must only finally make their mind up on
whether particular sites should or should not be included with
particular designations once the plan comes before them for
approval.

Crime and Disorder - None

Information Technology (IT) - None

Property - None

Other — None

Risk Management
36. In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy, the main
risks in producing a Local Plan for the City of York are:



37.

38.

Page 22

e The potential damage to the Council’s image and reputation if a
development plan is not adopted in an appropriate timeframe.

¢ Risks arising from failure to comply with the laws and regulations
relating to Planning and the SA and SEA processes and not
exercising Local control of developments.

¢ Risk associated with hindering the delivery of key projects for the
Council and key stakeholders.

e Financial risk associated with the Council’s ability to utilize
planning gain and deliver strategic infrastructure.

Measured in terms of impact and likelihood, the risk associated with this
report have been assessed as requiring frequent monitoring.

Recommendations
This report is to inform members of the initial feedback on the Local Plan
Preferred Options consultation and no recommendation is required.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the
report:

Claire Beech Mike Slater

Development Officer Assistant Director of CES

Planning and Tel: 551448

II\E/Ir;\;:;onmental Cabinet Member Responsible for

gement
Tel: 552410 the Report:

Clir Dave Merrett
Cabinet Member for Planning,
Transport and Sustainability

Report N Date
Approved

Specialist Implications Officer(s) N/A

Wards Affected: List wards or tick box to indicate all All

For further information please contact the author of the report

Annexes:

Annex A: Responses from Prescribed Bodies

Annex B: Summary of Petitions

Annex C: Extract from Minutes of Council Meeting 10™ October 2013
Annex D: Four Stage Approach to taking forward development sites



Page 23

Annex A: Responses from Prescribed Bodies

Prescribed Bodies

Local Plan Database Ref.

East Riding of Yorkshire Council ID 10
English Heritage ID 238
Environment Agency ID3
Hambleton District Council ID7
Highways Agency ID 1264
Natural England ID2
Network Rail ID 1466
North Yorkshire County Council ID 11
North Yorkshire County Council Highways ID 6385
North Yorkshire Police ID 50
Ryedale District Council ID 6
Selby District Council ID9
Yorkshire Water ID 295




ID. 10

g

-
&= -i*

Page 24

20N EST IDIN

Vi
et 8 s
oty 3Gt
§ A )
% i 1

( @}Xt}j
BN OF YORKSHIRE COUNCIL

Mr Martin Grainger Your Ref:

Integrated Strategy Unit Our Ref: ER/1/6/1

City of York Council E-Mail: stephen.hunt(@eastriding gov.uk
West Offices Tel. Direct: (01482) 391740

Station Rise Date: 16 July 2013

York

YO1 6GA

Dear Martin,
City of York Local Plan Preferred Options - June 2013

Thank you for consulting East Riding of Yorkshire Council on the City of York Preferred
Options Local Plan (June 2013).

East Riding of Yorkshire Council generally supports the approach taken in the City of York
Preferred Options Local Plan (June 2013). It provides a comprehensive basis for addressing the
key planning issues within the City. The Council is committed to working with City of York
Council on cross boundary issues as we progress our Local Plans and would like, as previously
highlighted, to progress at the earliest opportunity the preparation of a joint document, or
Memorandum of Understanding, to address the key planning issues between our authorities.

The Council would like to make the following observations.

Scale of Emplovment and ITousing Growth

Fast Riding of Yorkshire Council supports Policy SS1 (York Sub Area) which recognises the
important relationship between the city and neighbouring authorities. In particular, it states that
the Local Plan will ensure the housing needs of City of York's current and future population are
met within the York local authority area. This is supplemented by Policy H1 (The Scale of
Housing Growth), which seeks to meet the needs and aspirations of present and future residents
of the City of York.

The approach proposed by the Preferred Options Local Plan will help to support sustainable
patterns of development in the York Sub Area and reduce unnecessary development pressure
beyond the Green Belt boundary. Fast Riding of Yorkshire Council agrees with the City
Council's view that it is important for economic and housing growth to be linked, which will
help to minimise the growth of commuting into the city from neighbouring authority arcas. This
will have the twin benefits of minimising the impact on the York sub area's transport network
and promoting sustainable patterns of growth for the wider area.

A8
\qt O(/)

Dsppn©

Steve Button Director of Policy, Partnerships and Improvement

INVESTORS 3 ofafs"
%, & INPEOPLE | G°'d VAL



Page 25

[owever, the Council does have some queries over the scale of development proposed to take
place ar the Whinthorpe new settlement, especially when considering the additional land that is
safeguarded for future development beyond the plan period. Given the size of both sites ST'15
and SF3 it is possible that this new settlement could accommodate in excess of 10,000 properties
and potentally 23,000 residents. The Council therefore questions whether an approach to focus
significant development to existing settlements, particularly those where new public transport
improvements are proposed (such as new railways stations) would be more appropriate (see
transport comments below). In addition the proposal to develop 4,680 dwellings at Whinthope
over a 15 year period to 2030 would appear to be very ambitious. This results in an extremely
high rate of development of 312 dwellings per annum if development started in 2015. Tt may be
necessary for the City Council to re-consider the amount of housing that could come forward on
this site over the plan period and whether the plan is sufficiently flexible to accommodate any
potential shortfall in housing supply if this high rate of development is not met.

Only limited information has been included in the draft Plan on the type and scale of services
and facilities that are needed to support the delivery of the new settlement. Whilst a potental
new retail hub has been identified, no employment allocations are included as part of the
strategic allocation. This could potentially result in an unsustainable pattern of development. It
would be helpful to include a mix of uses as part of the strategic housing allocation, which would
help to reduce the potential traffic impacts of the development.

Transport Network

In response to the Fast Riding Draft Local Plan (January 2013), the Highways Agency has
advised that new development in the Fast Riding, particularly in Pocklington and Market
Weighton, may have a material impact on the A64 and in particular the A1079/A166/A64
Grimston Bar interchange. It is therefore important to note that the significant levels of
development proposed in the City of Yotk Local Plan, particularly the new settlement at
Whinthorpe (and potential future expansion land) and a number of the proposed housing sites;
particularly ST4 (Hull Road - 211 dwellings), ST6 (Hull Road - 154 dwellings), ST7 (Osbaldwick
- 1,800 dwellings), ST23 (no information provided), ST8 (Monks Cross - 1 569 d\vc, lings) and
ST14 (Clifton Moor - 4,020 dwellings), are likely to have a direct or indirect impact on the
A1079/A166/A64 Grimston Bar interchange.

Therefore, Fast Riding of Yorkshire Council is keen to continue to progress joint working in
terms of assessing the impact of both authorities development on this junction as well as joined
up approaches to the provision of sustainable modes of travel. As part of this process 1t will be
necessary to provide more clarity on how the strategic site at Whinthorpe will be accessed, and
to consider the impact of the large area for future development adjacent to the new settlement.
This work needs to be taken forward within the context of the Memorandum of Understanding
for the AG4 in partership with the Highways Agency and other relevant planning and highways
authorities.

It is highly likely that an improvement to the Grimston Bar interchange will be required to
accommodate the City of York and East Riding of Yorkshire's combined development
aspirations. As such, this should be referenced within the Infrastructure Delivery Plan, which
was published alongside the York Preferred Optons Local Plan. It is also suggested that it
should be listed in policy T4, which supports a number of other strategic highway improvements
to the Local Authority Highway Network.



Page 26

Beverlev to York Rail Line

The Council notes the re-introduction of a reference to the former Beverley to York line within
policy T6, which aims to protect disused public transport corridors in certain instances. The
longer term aspiration to protect disused public transport corridors is supported.

The Lower Derwent Valley and Renewbale Energy

Tt is noted that the Lower Derwent Valley is identified as a particularly critical high value area for
biodiversity, landscape and cultural value. This is consistent with the draft East Riding Local
Plan, which identifies the Lower Derwent Valley as both a Biodiversity Priority Area and an
Important Landscape Area and secks to ensure developments protect and enhance the area's
valued features. Fast Riding of Yorkshire Council, City of York Council and Selby District
Council will need to continue to work together to ensure there is an integrated approach to
habitat and species management within this area, which avoids development that would have a
detrimental impact.

The draft Plan identifies a number of areas of search for renewable electricity generation in close
proximity to the River Derwent and the administrative boundary with Fast Riding of Yorkshire
Council. It will be essential that proposals for renewable energy development within the City of
York Council's administrative area consider both the impacts on the Lower Derwent Valley and
any cumulative impacts taking into account existing and committed proposals within the East
Riding of Yorkshire. It may also be the case that neighbouring communities within the Hast
Riding would receive a proportion of any community fund that is paid as a result of
developments within the York area.

Please do not hesitate to get in touch should you wish to discuss matters further.

Yours sincerely
g

Stephen Hunt, BA (Hons) MA, MRTPI

Planning Policy Manager



Page 27



Page 28 | —

ID. 238 E{
u: 2

ENGLISH HERITAGE 30 juL 203

€I1TY OF

Y@RK

TOUNCIL

Local Plan,
City of York Council,
FREEPOST (Y0O239), Qur Ref: HD/P5343/03
York,
YOI 7ZZ Your Ref:

Date: 26 July 2013
Dear Sirs,

City of York Local Plan Preferred Options — Heritage Impact Appraisal
Thank you for consulting English Heritage on the above document.

We endorse the use the Heritage Impact Assessment to assess the likely significant effects
that the policies and proposals of the plan might have upon those elements which contribute
to the special character of the historic City.

As you will note from our comment on the Local Plan, we are concerned about the impact
which the preferred development strategy and, in particular, some of the areas which have
been chosen as future development sites, are likely to have upon elements which contribute
to the special character and setting of the historic City. For a number of these sites,
however, there may be potential for some development to take place that would not harm
the special character or setting of York. However, in order to be able to ascertain what
changes are likely to be necessary in order to achieve this, there needs to be a more robust
assessment of the impact which the development of these sites might have upon the six
principal characteristics of the historic City which are set out in the Heritage Topic Paper.
The Heritage Impact Assessment is a key tool which can assist in this process. However, we
have some serious reservations about the current approach taken in the Heritage Impact
Assessment. These will need to be addressed if this document is to be used more effectively
to evaluate the likely effects which the development of the Strategic Sites might have upon
the special character and setting of York and how the future strategy of the plan can deliver
growth in a manner which safeguards its historic character.

We have the following specific comments to make on the content of the Heritage Impact
Assessment:-

Page Section Comments

- General Given the purpose of the Heritage Impact Assessment and its
role in helping to develop a strategy which safeguards those
elements which contribute to the special character and setting
of the historic city, this assessment should have, as a starting
point, examined what impact each of the various Options might

« ABg,, 37 TANNER ROW YORKYQ1 6WP

YO Telphone 01904 601901 Facsimile 01904 601999
o zuwugwlgz'_ish—.‘wrimgcnurgﬂk
o’fn\" The National Monuments Recovd is the public archive of English Heritage



Page 29

el
ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page

Section

Comments

have had upon the six elements which contribute to the special
character of York. Several Options, including some of those
which have been chosen, look likely to harm elements of York’s
special character.

As currently structured, it merely assesses the chosen Options
(and is, therefore, one step beyond what the current SA is
considering).

General

It is not particularly helpful to merely state “there is potential
for harm to historic character”. Without specifying what aspect
of York’s special character is likely to be harmed by a proposal,
it is difficult to assess what mitigation measures might be
appropriate to offset that harm.

The last version of the Heritage Impact Assessment evaluated
each Policy and proposal against the six characteristics which
contribute to the special character of York. Ve would suggest
that a similar approach is utilised again. This is particularly
important in the case of the Strategic Sites where each should
be assessed against the six elements identified in the Heritage

Topic Paper as contributing to the special character and setting
of York.

General

The mitigation measures need to be more specific. For certain
sites, harm to elements of York’s historic environment can only
be overcome or reduced by excluding certain areas from the
allocations or through developing the sites in a certain manner.
This assessment is only of help if it enables developments to
come forward in a manner which will not harm the histeric
environment of the City.

Paragraph 2.1

The impact which the Plan’s Policies might have upon those
elements which contribute to the special character and setting
of the historic city will not always be clear-cut. In many
instances the impact will depend upon how the Policy is
implemented. Therefore, there should be two additional
Impacts along the lines of those set out on page 57 of the
Sustainability Appraisal. This would also assist in better read-
across between this document and the SA.

Spatial
Strategy,
Policy SS3
(Spatial
distribution)

The assessment of this Policy needs to consider each of the
sites individually. Given the large number of sites in this Policy,
the only general conclusion is that the effect will be uncertain —
which does not assist the decision-making process.

Spatial
Strategy,

The assessment of this Policy needs to consider each of the
sites individually. Given the large number of sites in this Policy,

* 8




Page 30
S

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page Section Comments
Policy SS6 the only general conclusion is that the effect will be uncertain —
(Safeguarded | which does not assist the decision-making process.
land)

6 Spatial The assessment of this Policy needs to consider each of the
Strategy, sites individually. Given the large number of sites in this Policy,

Policy EMP2 | the only general conclusion is that the effect will be uncertain —
(Provision of | which does not assist the decision-making process.
employment

land)

8 Spatial The assessment of this Policy needs to consider each of the
Strategy, sites individually. Given the large number of sites in this Policy,
Policy H3 the only general conclusion is that the effect will be uncertain —
(Housing land | which does not assist the decision-making process.
allocations)

If you have any queries about this matter or would like to discuss anything further, please do
not hesitate to contact me.

lan Smith

Historic Environment Planning Adviser (Yorkshire)
Telephone: 01904 601977
e-mail: ian.smith@english-heritage.org.uk




Page 31 ,

W

ENGLISH HERITAGE

30 JUL cuid

YORK

—

Local Plan,

City of York Council,
FREEPOST (YO239),
York,

YOI 7ZZ

Dear Sirs,

Qur Ref:

Your Ref:

Date:

City of York Local Plan - Heritage Topic Paper Update

HD/P5343/02

26 July 2013

We welcome this document which, for the most part, provides a robust analysis of the
elements which help to define the distinct character of the historic City. As such, it will
provide the necessary evidence to underpin the development strategy set out in the plan,
not least the definition of a Green Belt around the City which will safeguard those elements
which contribute to the special historic character and setting of York. The document will
also assist in the development of the Heritage Impact Assessment. Our comments on the
Heritage Impact Assessment are set out in a separate letter.

There are however, a couple of aspects of the document about which we consider that
further thought is required. These are as follows:-

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes
57 Landscape In his Report, the Inspector of the York (1) Under the
and Setting Green Belt Local Plan stated that:- Character Element

Many of these villages ... have an attractive add the following;:-

and special character which is worth “Relationship of the

preserving not only for their own sake but historic city of York

because of their physical relationship with to the surrounding

York itself The setting of York within an area | villages”

of open countryside containing a number of

attractive villages is itself an important aspect | (2) Under Key

of the special character of York. [Inspector’s | Features for the

Report, Paragraph A7.32, page 13]. above Character
Element add:-

Whilst this Section includes Suburban villages | “The relationship of

(essentially those on the edge of the built-up York to its

are of the City) it is essential that an surrounding

additional Character Element is added which | settlements. This

deals with the relationship which the City has | relationship relates to

to the other villages within its Green Belt. not simply the
distance between the
settlements but also

& Ao, 37 TANNER ROW YORK YO1 6WP
;—:}yy&\} Télephone 01904 601?0[ Fgm'mi!v 01904 601999
E: a wave|glish-heritage.org.uk
a’SAB\-"’Q The National Monuments Record is the public archive of English Heritage

|

——




Page 32

i
ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page

Section

Comments

Suggested Changes

the size of the villages
themselves, and the
fact that they are
free-standing, clearly
definable
settlements.”

(3) Under Examples
for the above
Character Element
add:-

“Skelton, Upper and
Nether Poppleton,
Bishopthorpe .. etc”

(4) Under Significance
for the above
Character Element
add:-

“The relationship of
York to its
surrounding
settlements was
identified is one of
the elements which
contributes to the
special character of
the City. The
relationship of York
to these settlements
could be damaged by
either the growth of
the City or,
conversely, the
expansion of the
villages”.

60

Landscape
and setting,
Open
Countryside
and Green
Belt

The setting of York within an area of open
countryside is part of its special character
[See inspector’s Report Paragraph A7.33].
This aspect is not currently addressed within
this Character Element.

Landscape and
setting, Open
Countryside and
Green Belt, Key
Features amend to
read:-

“The open




Page 33

e
ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes

countryside
surrounding York
contributes to the
landscape setting of
the historic City”

If you have any queries about this matter or would like to discuss anything further, please do
not hesitate to contact me.

Yours faj hf{lly,

-~

lan Smith

Historic Environment Planning Adviser (Yorkshire)
Telephone: 01904 601977

e-mail: jan.smith@english-heritage.org.uk




Page 34

| ‘-M?;
ENGLISH HERITAGE 30 juL

CITY OF

YORK
EBUNCI

Local Plan,
City of York Council,
FREEPOST (YO239), Our Ref: HD/P5343/03
York,
YOI| 7TZZ Your Ref:

Date: 26 July 2013
Dear Sirs,

City of York Local Plan Preferred Options — Sustainability Appraisal
Thank you for consulting English Heritage on the above document.

As you will be aware, in terms of the historic environment, we considered that the Scoping
Report identified the majority of plans and programmes which are likely to be of relevance
to the development of the Local Plan, that it put forward a suitable set of Objectives and
Indicators, and that it established an appropriate Baseline against which to assess the Plan’s
proposals. Overall, therefore, we believed that it provided the basis for the development of
an appropriate framework for assessing the likely significant effects which the Local Plan
might have upon the historic environment of the City. We are pleased to note that the
comments we made on the content of the Scoping Report have been incorporated into this
latest iteration of the appraisal.

We particularly endorse the use the Heritage /mpact Assessment to evaluate the likely
significant effects that the policies and proposals of the plan might have upon those elements
which contribute to the special character of the historic City. However, there needs to be
closer read-across between the Heritage Impact Assessment (although it needs some
significant amendments) and this Sustainability Appraisal. Our comments on the Heritage
Impact Assessmentare covered in a separate response.

We have the following specific comments to make on the content of the Appraisal:-

Page Section Comments
48 Figure 3.3, The first and fourth bullet-points are, essentially, considering
Sustainability | the same thing. It would be simpler to have a single Sub-
Appraisal Objective covering the special character and setting of the
Topic 14, historic city which combines them both, perhaps along the
Sub- following lines;-
Objectives “Preserve or enhance those elements which contribute to the
special character and setting of the historic city as identified in
the Heritage Topic Paper”

S ABoo, 37 TANNER ROW YORK YOI eWP
5 o0y Telephone 01904 601901 Facsimile 01904 601999
9—_ Q{" wueLenglish-heritage.org.uk
Crsap™ The National Monuments Record is the public archive of English Heritage



Page 35

e
ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page

Section

Comments

Y

Figure 3.7

It is unclear from this Figure how the assessment has taken
account of the impact which the development of the sites might
have upon the historic environment.

The Sub-Objectives for Sustainability Appraisal Objective 14
include one that considers the effect that the policies and
proposals of the plan would have upon the special character and
setting of the historic city. However, the assessment criteria
make no mention of this consideration.

It is not clear what “distance to” the various categories of asset
means.

It is not clear what the “Points Scored” Column is indicating.
Does it imply that if a site includes three Listed Buildings is
scores -1?

59

Table 4.1, SA
Objective 14

Dependant upon how they are implemented, the Local Plan
Priorities of “Get York Moving” and “Build Strong
Communities” could impact upon SA Objective 14 (the historic
environment). However, the effect will depend upon how each
of those Priorities is implemented. Consequently, it would be
more accurate to record the effect as a “|”

The Local Plan Priority for the Natural Environment would be
likely to benefit the historic environment. Consequently, it
would be more accurate to record the effect as a “+”

105

Figure 4.4, SA
Objective 14

We have concerns about how you have evaluated the impact of
these sites against SA Objective 4. In our response to the Plan,
we have set out that, in our opinion, the development of several
of these sites is likely to harm the special character or setting of
the historic city. In the case of two of them (ST15 and ST 14),
this harm is likely to be so severe that it ought to be recorded
as Very Negative.

There needs to be closer read-across between the conclusions
of the Heritage Impact Assessment (although it needs some
significant amendments) and this Sustainability Appraisal.

108

Figure 4.5

On the whole we would concur with the assessment of the
likely effects which the development of these sites would have
upon the historic environment (SA Objective 14).

However, Site H37 should be re-evaluated in the light of our
comments to the Plan. In our view the development of this site
should be evaluated as Very Negative because of its impact




Page 36
Bt

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page Section Comments
upon the Green Belt and the setting of the historic City.
This change would need to be reflected in Paragraph 4.4.72 with
a recommendation that it is not allocated.
115 Paragraph In our response to the Plan we have identified 17 sites that are
4.4.7] and likely to impact upon designated heritage assets.
44.72
116 Paragraph In our responses to the plan we have set out a number of
4441 considerations that will need to be taken into account either
before allocating certain sites or, if allocated, as part of the
site’s development. These measures should be included in this
Table as mitigation measures.
Appendix | Policy SS2 From the sites which it is proposing to bring forward for
6, page against SA development, it appears that the chosen Option (Option 3) is
25 Objective 14 | likely to have an adverse impact upon elements which
contribute to the special character and setting of York.
Consequently, Option | (Prioritising social and economic spatial
principles) is likely to have a greater impact upon the historic
environment. As a result, we would suggest that Option |
should be scored as “- -
Appendix | Policy SS3 From the sites which it is proposing to bring forward for
6, page against SA development, it appears that the chosen Option (Option |) is
43 Objective 14 | likely to have an adverse impact upon elements which
contribute to the special character and setting of York.
Consequently, we would suggest that Option | should be also
be scored as “- *
Appendix | Policy HI Whatever scale of housing is chosen, it could impact upon
6, page (Housing elements which contribute to the special character and setting
135 Growth) of York. Although Option | is likely to have less impact upon
against SA SA Objective 14 than the alternatives, nonetheless, we would
Objective 14 | suggest that Option | should be scored as “? *
Appendix | Policy H It is unclear why it has been concluded that the housing land
6, page (Housing supply buffer will have no impact upon York’s historic
143 Supply Buffer) | environment. The larger the buffer, the larger the likelihood
against SA that the special character and setting of York will be harmed. At
Objective |4 | the very least, the effects of each Option upon SA Objective |4
are likely to be “?” and, in all probability will be “-** with Option
4 being "- -
Appendix | Site ST5 Key challenges should also include the following:-
8, page (York “That part of the site between the City Walls and the railway
28 Central) line is an extremely sensitive area. It is essential that the height
against SA of the new buildings in and around the Station are of a scale
Objective 14 | which will not harm the character or appearance of the Central




Page 37

rr
ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page Section Comments
Historic Core Conservation Area, or detract from the setting
of either the Listed Buildings in and around the site or those
elements which contribute to the significance of the City
Walls”
Appendix | Site ST6 In his Report to the York Green Belt Local Plan in 1994, the
8, page (Land east of | Inspector considered that the swathe of open countryside
34 Grimston between the eastern edge of the built-up area and the Ring
Bar) against Road was particularly important to the setting of the City, and
SA Objective | was particularly vulnerable where the edge of the built-up area
14 is close to the Ring Road [see, for example, Inspector’s Report,
page 81, Paragraph C66.5].
The development of this site would substantially reduce the gap
between the edge of the built-up area and the Ring Road. As
such, it would adversely affect views towards the City and its
rural setting. It would also reduce the separation of the edge of
the City from the Livestock Centre to the south of Murton
further eroding its rural setting.
The development of this area seems likely to harm one of the
elements which contributes to the special character and setting
of York.
Consequently it should be assessed as “- -“
Appendix | Site ST7 In his Report to the York Green Belt Local Plan in 1994, the
8, page (Land east of | Inspector considered that the swathe of open countryside
40 Metcalfe between the eastern edge of the built-up area and the Ring
Lane) against | Road was particularly important to the setting of the City, and
SA Objective | was particularly vulnerable where the edge of the built-up area
14 is close to the Ring Road.

In the case of an objection to a site lying to the south Bad
Bargain Lane he considered that:-

This countryside is characterised by fields and hedgerows and
forms a pleasant and important landscape setting for the
historic city. This countryside setting is particularly important in
views from the Ring Road ...Encroachment into the countryside
in this area would undermine the objectives of Green Belt
policy.” [Inspector’s Report, page 74, Paragraph C61.5

The development of this site would substantially reduce the gap
between the edge of the built-up area and the Ring Road. As
such, it would adversely affect views towards the City and its
rural setting. It would also reduce the separation of the edge of




Page 38
i

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page Section Comments
the City from Murton further eroding its rural setting.
The development of this area seems likely to harm one of the
elements which contributes to the special character and setting
of York.
Consequently it should be assessed as “- -
Appendix | Site ST8 In his 1994 Report on the Green Belt Local Plan Inquiry, the
8, page (Land north Inspector considered that:-
46 of Monk’s “in general there would be serious harm to views of the City
Cross) against | from the Ring Road if development were permitted to come
SA Objective | right up to the latter” [Inspector’s Report, Paragraph A7.28,
14 page 12].
The development of this site would substantially reduce the gap
between the edge of the built-up area and the Ring Road. As
such, it would adversely affect views towards the City and its
rural setting.
As currently depicted, the development of this area seems likely
to harm one of the elements which contributes to the special
character and setting of York.
Consequently it should be assessed as “- -*
Appendix | Site ST10 In his Report to the York Green Belt Local Plan in 1994, the
8, page (Land at Inspector considered that :-
54 Moor Lane, “Moor Lane provides a clear and satisfactory edge to the
Woodthorpe) | developed area of York”:
against SA
Objective 14 | He felt that this land helped:-

“to separate York and Copmanthorpe and to prevent further
sprawl of the built-up area”

In his opinion development south of Moor Lane would:-
“... be very harmful to the underlying objectives of the Green
Belt” [Inspector’s Report, page 95, Paragraph C78.4].

Given that little has changed in either the character of this part
of the City or the purposes of the York Green Belt, the
Inspector’s conclusions as to the appropriateness of this area as
an allocation appear just as relevant. The development of this
area seems likely to harm one of the elements which
contributes to the special character and setting of York.




Page 39

B
ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page

Section

Comments

Consequently it should be assessed as “- -*

Appendix
8, page
66

Site STI |
(Land at New
Lane,
Huntington)
against SA
Objective 14

This site includes the Roman Camp on Huntington South Moor
which is a Scheduled Monument. National policy guidance
makes it clear that substantial harm to the significance of such
an asset should be wholly exceptional.

Huntington Grange, to the west of this area, is a Grade Il Listed
Building. There is a requirement in the 1990 Act that “specia/
regard” should be had to the desirability of preserving Listed
Buildings or their setting or any features of special architectural
or historic interest which they possess. Consequently, before
allocating this area, there would need to be some assesment of
what contribution this currently-undeveloped area makes to the
signficance of these buildings and what effect its loss and
subsequent development might have upon the significance of
these assets.

The presence of these designated heritage assets should be
acknowledged in the accompnying text.

As part of the mitigation should be included the following:-

“Before allocating this site it will have to be clearly
demonstrated that residential development in this area would
not result in harm to elements that contribute to the
significance of the Scheduled Monument, including its setting. If;
after undertaking this assessment, it is considered appropriate
to allocate this area, the need to safeguard those elements
which contribute to the significance of this monument needs to
be stated in the Policy and in its justification.”

and
“Proposals would also need to ensure that those elements

which contribute to the significance of the Listed Building to the
west is not likely to be harmed.”

Appendix
8, page
84

Site ST14
(Land north
of Clifton
Moor) against
SA Objective
14

In his 1994 Report on the Green Belt Local Plan Inquiry, the
Inspector considered that:-

“in general there would be serious harm to views of the City
from the Ring Road if development were permitted to come
right up to the latter and even more so if it passed beyond it”
[Inspector’s Report, Paragraph A7.28, page 12].

It is clear, therefore, that he did not consider that the elements
which contributed to the rural setting of York were restricted




Page 40

T
ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page

Section

Comments

solely to land lying within the Ring Road and that the special
character of York can be harmed by development which goes
beyond it.

Site ST 14 lies in the open countryside beyond the northern
Ring Road in an area which forms part of the rural setting of the
historic City. By development extending beyond the Ring Road,
it will not only fundamentally change the relationship of the
northern edge of York with the settlements of Skelton and
Haxby but also threaten the separation between these
settlements and the main built-up area of the City (this
development will only be 0.6km from the eastern edge of
Skelton and 1.2km from the western edge of Haxby). By
resulting in development on both sides of the Ring Road, it will
also alter people’s perceptions when travelling along this route
about the setting of the City within an area of open countryside
(an element identified by the Inspector in his Report).

Overall, therefore, we consider that the allocation and
development of this area would be likely to harm the special
character and setting of the City and, therefore, would conflict
with the saved Policies of the RSS and national planning Policy.

Consequently it should be assessed as “- -

Appendix
8, page
91

Site ST15
(Whinthorpe)
against SA
Objective 14

In his 1994 Report on the Green Belt Local Plan Inquiry, the
Inspector considered that:-

“in general there would be serious harm to views of the City
from the Ring Road if development were permitted to come
right up to the latter and even more so if it passed beyond it”
[Inspector’s Report, Paragraph A7.28, page 12].

It is clear, therefore, that he did not consider that the elements
which contributed to the rural setting of York were restricted
solely to land lying within the Ring Road and that the special
character of York can be harmed by development which goes
beyond it.

He reaffirmed his view that development of sites in the open
countryside beyond the ring Road would harm the rural setting
of the historic city when considering the development of a site
in the countryside at Clock Farm near Elvington:-

“It is in an area of flat open countryside which forms an
important part of the countryside setting of York. Development
of such as site would be seen as an intrusion into the




Page 41
SR

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page Section Comments

countryside which would detract markedly from the setting of
the historic city contrary to one of the aims of the Green Belt”
[Inspector’s Report, page 204, Paragraph E12.3]

Site STI5 lies to the south of the area considered by the
Inspector in his 1994 Report. Consequently, many of his
conclusions would be applicable to the allocation and eventual
development of this allocation.

Site ST15 lies in open countryside which forms part of the rural
setting of the historic City. By extending development up to the
southern Ring Road, it will fundamentally change the
relationship which the southern edge of York has with the
countryside to its south. This development will only be 1.25km
from the southern edge of Heslington and 0.9km from the
buildings at the new University Campus. It will also alter
people’s perceptions when travelling along this route about the
setting of the City within an area of open countryside (an
element identified by the Inspector in his Report).

Notwithstanding the above, even if an incursion of this size into
the open countryside was acceptable in principle, the
relationship of this area to the City does not reflect the way in
which settlements have traditionally developed around York.

Overall, therefore, we consider that the allocation and
development of this area would be likely to harm the special
character and setting of the City and, therefore, would conflict
with the saved Policies of the RSS and national planning Policy.

Consequently it should be assessed as “- -,

English Heritage strongly advises that the conservation and archaeological staff of the
Council are closely involved throughout the preparation of the SA of the plan. They are
best placed to advise on; local historic environment issues and priorities, including access to
data held in the HER (formerly SMR); how the policy or proposal can be tailored to
minimise potential adverse impacts on the historic environment; the nature and design of
any required mitigation measures; and opportunities for securing wider benefits for the
future conservation and management of historic assets.

Finally, we should like to stress that this opinion is based on the information provided in the
Report accompanying your e-mail dated 3™ June, 2013. To avoid any doubt, this does not
affect our obligation to provide further advice and, potentially, object to specific proposals
which may subsequently arise (either as a result of this consultation or in later versions of




Page 42

i
ENGLISH HERITAGE

the Plan) where we consider that, despite the SA/SEA, these would have an adverse effect
upon the historic environment.

If you have any queries about this matter or would like to discuss anything further, please do
not hesitate to contact me.
[\

L\
Yours Hﬁwlly.
)
i\

\
pY

\\
lan Smith
Historic Environment Planning Adviser (Yorkshire)
Telephone: 01904 601977

e-mail: ian.smith@english-heritage.org.uk




Page 43

m:
3 | 30 JuL s
ENGILISH HERITAGE
ol ,,;"
Y@thﬂ
Local Plan,
City of York Council,
FREEPOST (YO239), Our Ref: HD/P5343/02
York,
YOI 7ZZ Your Ref:
Date: 26 July 2013
Dear Sirs,

City of York Local Plan - Preferred Options
Thank you for consulting English Heritage about the latest iteration of the Core Strategy.

General comments

As you will be aware, English Heritage was reasonably supportive of the 2011 Submission
Core Strategy and the emphasis which it gave to the need to ensure that the historic
environment of York was appropriately managed and the intention that the development
strategy was delivered in a manner which preserved or enhanced the heritage assets of the

City.

Whilst we welcome many elements of the policy framework for the City which is set out in
this latest iteration of the plan, we are concerned that York’s historic environment is given
far less prominence than was the case in the Submission Core Strategy. The 2011 Plan made
it clear that the starting point for the Plan was the need to ensure that York’s unique
historic environment was appropriately conserved and managed. In this latest document,
however, this has been replaced by the desire for economic growth. It has always been our
view that the foundation for any Plan for the City should be to ensure that, whatever
strategy is adopted, it will safeguard and reinforce those elements which contribute to the
distinct identity of York.

We are also concerned about the impact which the preferred development strategy and, in
particular, some of the areas which have been chosen as future development sites, are likely
to have upon elements which contribute to the special character and setting of the historic
City. Whilst it is quite clear that some of the sites should not be developed because of their
impact upon the historic environment, for a number of the others, however, there may be
potential for some development to take place that would not harm the special character or
setting of York. However, in order to be able to ascertain what changes are likely to be
necessary in order to achieve this, there needs to be a more robust assessment of the
impact which the development of these sites might have upon the six principal
characteristics of the historic City which are set out in the Heritage Topic Faper. The
Heritage Impact Assessment is a key tool which can assist in this process. We have set out
in our accompanying letter how this document might be used more effectively to evaluate
the likely effects which the development of the Strategic Sites might have upon the special

& A8, 37 TANNER ROW YORKYQ1 6WP
Y Fn Telephone 01904 601901 Facsimile 01904 601999
i“' WU, ez1g[_rlsl.:—t’.e eritage.orvg.ik

The National Momuments Record is the public archive of English Heritage




Page 44
o

ENGLISH HERITAGE

character and setting of York and how it can be used to shape the future strategy of the
plan so that it delivers growth in a manner which safeguards its historic character.

Detailed comments
We have the following comments to make in response to the questions posed in the
document:-

Question 3.1

Other than the mention of York on the first line, the Vision is not particularly place-
specific nor does it articulate the special qualities and distinctiveness of the historic city.
York’s character is its main selling-point. It is the reason why it gets so many visitors
each year, what attracts businesses to invest in this part of Yorkshire, and why people
choose to live and work in the City. Consequently, the starting point for the Vision
should be to ensure that whatever happens in York, it does so in a manner which not
only safeguards, but also strengthens, the city’s unique environment. It is suggested,
therefore, that the Vision is amended as follows:-

“York aspires to be a City whose special qualities and distinctiveness are
recognised worldwide, where its unique legacy of historic assets are preserved and
enhanced, and where the full potential that its historic buildings, spaces and
archaeology can contribute to the economic and social welfare of the community is
realised. In the City of York over the next fifteen years...etc.

Given the international importance of York’s historic environment (and the fact that the
Council has endorsed the City put forward as a possible World Heritage Site), the need
for the plan to ensure that this resource is appropriately managed should be at the
forefront of the plan. Compared to the 201 | Core Strategy, the importance of York’s
historic environment is given far less prominence in this latest document. In the earlier,
now-withdrawn, Plan it was clear that the need to ensure that York’s unique historic
environment was appropriately conserved and managed was the starting point for the
Plan’s strategy. In this latest document, this has been replaced by the desire for
economic growth. York's historic assets play such a key role in the economic well-being
of the City, in the quality of life enjoyed by its communities, and in making York such an
attractive distinct place, that, even in the current economic climate, this should be at the
forefront of the plan. Therefore:-

o In Section 2 (Spatial Portrait) the Section on York’s Unique Historic Environment
(Paragraph 2.22 et seq) needs to be moved to follow after Paragraph 2.8.

o Section 3 should include a section specifically on the protection and
enhancement of York’s special historic character. Given the significance of its
historic environment, it is not sufficient to simply relegate this to a general
section on “the environment”. This new Section (which should be based upon
page |5 of the Core Strategy Submission (Publication) Draft) should follow
immediately after the Vision.



Page 45
e

ENGLISH HERITAGE

* We have the following detailed comments to make on the content of Sections | to 3:-

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes

2 Paragraph There is a requirement that Amend
1.9, line 6 Neighbourhood Plans should be in general | accordingly

conformity with the strategic policies of
this Local Plan. In order to assist those
preparing such documents, it would be
helpful to set out which of the Policies in
this document the local planning authority
consider to be “strategic”.

3 Local The last iteration of the Core Strategy Include a section
Strategic included, in that part of the plan which set | on “York New
Context out on local policy influences, a section on | City Beautiful:

Professor Alan Simpson's “York New City | Towards and

Beautiful: Towards and Economic Vision” | Economic Vision”

(2010). This set out an economic vision for | (based upon

York based upon its cultural, social and Paragraphs 1.6 to

physical assets, working with businesses, 1.8 of the Core

the universities and colleges, the voluntary | Strategy

sector and communities. Submission
(Publication)

Reference is made to this document in a Draft).

number of places throughout the plan (and

it still appears on the Council’s web-site as

an Evidence Base Document).

If it is still a current document which has

been used to inform the Plan and its

strategy, then reference should be made

to it in this Section.

7 Section 2 This Section would benefit from a more Reorder the
logical ordering of its content and to beginning of
better reflect the importance of the Section 2 as
historic environment of York. follows:-

(1) Geography

(2) Landscape

(3) York’s historic
environment

(4) Population

etc

I Paragraph This Paragraph provides a good summary | -

213 of the landscape character of York. We
support the identification of views of the
Minster as one of the key defining features




Page 46
e

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes
of the City.
13 | Paragraph This Section provides a good overview of | -
2.22 to 2.25 | the historic environment of the City and
the challenges that it faces.
14 | Paragraph Paragraph 2.18 provides a summary of the | Include a new
2.25 vision for the future management of the Paragraph on the
Green Infrastructure that was set out in proposals for
“York New City Beautiful: Towards and York’s historic
Economic Vision’. environment that
was set out in
For consistency, the corresponding section | “York New City
relating to the historic environment of the | Beautiful:
City should be included as an additional Towards and
Paragraph in this Section. Economic Vision”
(based upon
Paragraph 1.20 of
the Core Strategy
Submission
(Publication)
Draft).
27 | Paragraph 3.8 | Given the huge contribution that its Paragraph 3.8 add
historic assets make to the character of the following
the City centre, its attractiveness as a additional bullet-
place to visit and, consequently, its point:-
economic well-being, conserving the “Protecting and
heritage assets of this part of York must enhancing its
be a key element in any strategy for the unigue heritage
City Centre. This needs to be better assets”
reflected in the outcomes for this part of
the plan area
29 | Paragraph As we have set out above, reconciling the | Amend
3.17 and 3.18 | assessed development needs of the City accordingly

with the conservation of its heritage assets
is, perhaps, the key issue that this plan
needs to address.

Consequently:-

(1) These Paragraphs need to be expanded
to encompass the matters that were set
out on Page |5 of the Core Strategy
Submission (Publication) Draft),

(2) Its needs to be retitled to refer to
“York’s Special Historic Environment’, and
(3) The amended Section needs to be




Page 47
el

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes
inserted towards the beginning of this
Section as set out above.

Question 4.1

Because of the importance of York, we support the intention to provide local level
policy to guide sustainable development. However, sustainable development for York
must have as its starting point the conservation of its heritage assets. Consequently,
whilst we would broadly endorse the approach in Policy SDI (which very much mirrors
the Planning Inspectorate’s model Policy), it should be amended as follows:-
o “Protecting York's historic environment” should be the first bold heading under
Criterion iv
o Under this heading should be the following bullet-points:-
* Protecting and enhancing those elements which contribute to York’s
special historic character and setting
= Conserving and enhancing York's heritage by ensuring that new
development is of the highest standards in urban design and public realm.

Question 5.1
Factors which shape growth

Whilst this may not be the case, as currently structured, Section 5 gives the impression
that the assessed development needs of the City will be the starting point for the plan
and that, after the necessary sites have been found to accommodate this development, a
Green Belt will be defined which will safeguard the special character and setting of the
historic city. In order to provide an effective framework for the protection of the
historic city, the definition of the Green Belt boundaries must be the starting point for
the plan. Once the land which it is necessary to permanently keep open in order to
safeguard the special character and setting of the City has been defined, then the
assessed development needs should be factored in. There may be specific reasons why
land which should be included within the Green Belt is either allocated for development
or identified as safeguarded land, but this is something which should be done after the
general extent of the Green Belt has been defined. Therefore, the Policies which define
the extent of the Green Belt (Policy SS5) should be set out before Policy SS3 which
identifies the sites for development.

Spatial distribution

Based upon the sites which have been put forward as Strategic Allocations, the amount
of development likely to come forward through Scenario 2 (which reflects the ambitions
set out in the York Economic Strategy and the amount of new housing development
which would be commensurate with this level of economic growth) seems likely to harm
elements which contribute to the special character of the historic City. It may be the
case that this level of growth can be accommodated. However, this is not demonstrated
by the areas which the Plan is currently putting forward for development. The areas of



Page 48

i
ENGLISH HERITAGE

particular concern are STI4 (Land to the north of Clifton Moor) and STI5 (the
proposed new settlement at Whinthorpe). The setting of York within its rural hinterland
and the relationship which it has to the surrounding settlements is part of the special
character and setting of the City as are views from the Ring Road. This aspect of York’s
setting would be compromised by the development of these areas.

For a number of these sites, however, there may be potential for some development to
take place that would not harm the special character or setting of York. However, in
order to be able to ascertain what changes are likely to be necessary in order to achieve
this, there needs to be a more robust assessment of the impact which the development
of these sites might have upon the six principal characteristics of the historic City which
are set out in the Heritage Topic Paper. The Heritage Impact Assessment is a key tool
which can assist in this process. We have set out in our accompanying letter how this
document might be used more effectively to evaluate the likely effects which the
development of the Strategic Sites might have upon the special character and setting of
York and how it this Assessment might be used to shape the future strategy of the plan
so that it delivers growth in a manner which safeguards its historic character.

Role of York’s Green Belt
e We fully support the identification of the preservation of the setting and special
character of York as the primary purpose of the York Green Belt.

Back in 1988, the booklet “The Green Belts” (Department of the Environment) stated
that the primary purpose of the York Green Belt was to safeguard the character of the
historic city which might be endangered by unrestricted expansion. This has been
reaffirmed throughout the years by Ministerial Statements and by numerous Inspectors’
decisions on Appeal. The Local Plan Inspector at the York Green Belt Local Plan Inquiry
(1994) concluded “Bearing in the national and international fame and importance of
York, | can see no reason to anticipate any significant change or derogation from this
aim in future’.

Since the publication of the York Green Belt Local Plan Inspector’s Report, the
Government has issued SI2013 No. 117 which has reaffirmed that the Green Belt
around York should be established to safeguard the special character and setting of the
historic city.

Whilst the York Green Belt performs a number of the other functions that are set out
in Paragraph 80 of the NPPF to some extent, these are clearly secondary to the primary
purpose of safeguarding the special character and setting of the historic City

Safeguarded land

e We support the principle of identifying sufficient development sites for the duration of
the plan and of safeguarding land to provide options for future consideration during the
life-time of the Green Belt. However, we have concerns about the implications which
scale of growth which is being proposed might have upon York's special character and




Page 49

e
ENGLISH HERITAGE

setting and the choice of some of the sites which it is proposed to safeguard for
development beyond the life-time of this plan.

¢ We have the following detailed comments to make on the content of Section 5:-

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes

43 Policy SSI In view of the importance of the historic Policy SSImove
environment of York, the conservation Criterion vi to the
and enhancement of the City’s heritage beginning of the
assets should be the starting point for the | list of Criteria.
Development Strategy.

43 Policy SSI, Whilst it is well recognised that the Policy SS1,

Criterion vi | historic environment of York is Criterion vi
outstanding, can the same be said of its delete “and
natural environment? In any case, the natural”
natural environment is already adequately
addressed in Criterion vii, so it would be
far simpler (and more accurate) if
Criterion vi simply dealt with the historic
environment.

43 Policy SS1, This Criterion should set out the primary | Policy SS1,

Criterion viii | purpose of the Green Belt as set out in Criterion viii

saved RSS Policy YH9C amend to read:-

“A Green Belt is
defined around
York which will
safeguard the
special character
and setting of the
historic City will
safeguard the
special character
and setting of the
historic city, the
outer boundary of
which will be
about 6 miles
from the City
Centre”

44 | Paragraph Given that not all of those elements which | Paragraph 5.2,
5.2, second contribute to the historic character of the | second bullet-
bullet-point | City are “built”, it would be more point amend to

appropriate and accurate to refer to read:-
“York's unigue historic environment” "o YOIKS
unique historic




Page 50

-
ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes
environment”
47 | Factors The need to protect York’s historic (1) Insert a new
which shape | environment should be the principal factor | sub-heading
growth, which shapes the future growth of the following Factors
fourth City. This should have its own separate Which Shape
Paragraph heading (as has been done with the other | Growth as
environmental assets) and should be the follows:-
first item set out under the Factors which | “York's unique
Shape Growth. historic
environment
Line | of the fourth Paragraph - Whilst it
is well recognised that the historic (2) Move the
environment of York is unique, can the fourth Paragraph
same be said of its natural environment? It | (relating to the
would be preferable to delete the historic
reference to the natural environment environment)
(especially as this is already addressed later | under this new
in this section). heading.
The bullet-points on page 47 should reflect | (3) Amend
the six principal characteristics of the bullets-points on
historic city which are identified in the page 47 to reflect
Heritage Topic Faper. the six principal
characteristics of
the historic city
The section on the Green Belt needs to be | which are
moved to after the new first Paragraph on | identified in the
the historic environment. The Green Belt | Heritage Topic
is one of the key Policy elements shaping Paper.
the future growth of the City.
(4) Move the
Paragraphs
relating to the
Green Belt to
follow the new
section on the
historic
environment.
48 | Figure 5.3 Whilst we would broadly concur that the | Figure 5.3 and its

areas identified on this diagram are the
main ones which help to safeguard
elements which contribute to the special
character and setting of the historic city,
one of the areas which it fails to

supporting text
needs to make it
clear that land
beyond the Ring
Road can also




Page 51
Rat

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Section

Comments

Suggested Changes

adequately depict is the contribution
which the rural landscape setting makes to
the character and setting of the City.

As illustrated, Figure 5.3 implies that no
land beyond the Ring Road is important to
keep open in order to safeguard the rural
setting of the historic City. This is clearly
not the case.

In his 1994 Report on the Green Belt
Local Plan Inquiry, the Inspector
considered that:-

“in general there would be serious harm
to views of the City from the Ring Road if
development were permitted to come
right up to the latter and even more so if
it passed beyond it” [Inspector’s Report,
Paragraph A7.28, page 12].

It is clear, therefore, that he did not
consider that the elements which
contributed to the rural setting of York
were restricted solely to land lying within
the Ring Road and that the special
character of York could be harmed by
development which went beyond it.

He reaffirmed his view that development
of sites in the open countryside beyond
the Ring Road would harm the rural
setting of the historic city when
considering the development of a site in
the countryside near Elvington. He
opined:-

“It is in an area of flat open countryside
which forms an important part of the
countryside setting of York. Development
of such as site would be seen as an
intrusion into the countryside which
would detract markedly from the setting
of the historic city contrary to one of the
aims of the Green Belt” [Inspector’s
Report, page 204, Paragraph E12.3]

contribute to the
special character
and setting of the
historic city.




Page 52

K ae
ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes
Indeed, if it were the case that only land
within the Ring Road contributed to the
rural setting of York, there would be no
requirement to define a Green Belt with
an outer boundary six miles from the city
centre.

49 Factors Whilst the areas identified on Figure 5.3 Amend
which shape | are, on the whole, the main areas of accordingly.
growth, Green Belt in relation to fulfilling the
Paragraph function of safeguarding the special
following character and setting of the historic city
Figure 5.3 (although see comments above), the white

areas may also fulfil other Green Belt
functions and, therefore, should be
included within the Green Belt.

54 | Policy SS2, It is important that the scale of growth is | Policy SS2,
Criterion i consistent with safeguarding the special Criterion i first
first bullet- character and setting of York. This should | bullet-point
point be reflected in this bullet-point. amend to read:-

“... North
Yorkshire Sub
Region consistent
with safeguarding
the special
character and
setting of York™

54 | Policy SS2, In order to achieve sustainable Policy SS2,
Criterion ii development, it is important that not only | Criterion ii amend

the locations of growth safeguard its to read:-

environmental assets, but also the scale of | “The location and

growth in each area. scale of
development
through the plan
wens BIE"

55 | Policy SS3, A number of the areas identified for There needs to

development under the provisions of this
Policy seem likely to harm elements which
contribute to the special character or
setting of the historic City. Our detailed
comments on each of the sites within
Policy SS3 are set out in the Table below.

be a more robust
assessment of the
impact which the
development of
these sites might
have upon the six
principal
characteristics of

- [




ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page 53
=

Page

Section

Comments

Suggested Changes

the historic City
which are set out
in the Heritage
Topic Paper. The
Heritage Impact
Assessmentis a
key tool which
can assist in this
process. We have
set out in our
accompanying
letter how this
document might
be used more
effectively to
evaluate the likely
effects which the
development of
the Strategic Sites
might have upon
the special
character and
setting of York
and how it this
Assessment might
be used to shape
the future
strategy of the
plan so that it
delivers growth in
a manner which
safeguards its
historic character.

Following this
assessment
either:-

(1) Delete those
sites detailed in
the Table below
whose
development
would be likely to
harm the special

-11 -




Page 54

i
ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes

character and
setting of the
historic city, or

(2) Where it is
possible, amend
the size and
extent of these
areas (or their
location) in order
that those
elements which
contribute to the
special character
and setting of
York are not
likely to be
harmed,

or

(3) The Plan will
need to clearly
justify why it is
necessary to
develop areas
which seem likely
to which harm
elements which
contribute to the
special character
or setting of the
historic city. This
will need to
include an
explanation of the
need for this
development and
the reasons why it
cannot be
accommodated in
a manner which
does not harm
the historic
environment of

424




Page 55
S Ea s

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Section

Comments

Suggested Changes

the City.

56

Policy S54

Subject to the concerns that we have
about the potential impact which the
development of some of the Strategic Sites
might have upon the special character and
setting of the historic city, we support this
Policy especially Criterion v relating to the
need to create locally-distinctive places
that relate well to the surrounding area
and historic character.

57

Paragraph
5.4, first
bullet-point

We would disagree with the statement
that the economic and housing growth
aspirations are met in a way which
“recognises the character and setting of
York” or” the relationship between York
and its surrounding settlements”

In his Report, the Inspector of the York
Green Belt Local Plan stated that:-

“Since the construction of the Ring Road
views from that road are of especial
significance.....I consider that in general
there would be serious harm to views of
the city from the Ring Road if
development were permitted to come
right up to the latter and even more so if
it passed beyond it.” . [Inspector’s Report,
Paragraph A7.28, page 12].

Four of the strategic sites bring
development right up to the Ring Road
(Sites ST14, ST8, ST15 and ST19) and
three would extend development beyond
the Ring Road (ST 19, ST14 and ST15).

Site ST14 also threatens the separation of
settlements in the Green Belt.

There needs to
be a more robust
assessment of the
impact which the
development of
these sites might
have upon the six
principal
characteristics of
the historic City
which are set out
in the Heritage
Topic Paper. The
Heritage Impact
Assessment is a
key tool which
can assist in this
process. We have
set out in our
accompanying
letter how this
document might
be used more
effectively to
evaluate the likely
effects which the
development of
the Strategic Sites
might have upon
the special
character and
setting of York
and how it this
Assessment might

o i




Page 56
S Ead

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes

be used to shape
the future
strategy of the
plan so that it
delivers growth in
a manner which
safeguards its
historic character.

Following this
assessment
either:-

(1) Delete those
sites detailed in
the Table below
whose
development
would be likely to
harm the special
character and
setting of the
historic city, or

(2) Where it is
possible, amend
the size and
extent of these
areas (or their
location) in order
that those
elements which
contribute to the
special character
and setting of
York are not
likely to be
harmed,

or

(3) The Plan will
need to clearly
justify why it is
necessary to
develop areas

= 145



Page 57

i
ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page

Section

Comments

Suggested Changes

which seem likely
to which harm
elements which
contribute to the
special character
or setting of the
historic city. This
will need to
include an
explanation of the
need for this
development and
the reasons why it
cannot be
accommodated in
a manner which
does not harm
the historic
environment of
the City.

59

Local
Context,
Green Belt,
first
Paragraph

This introductory sentence should state
the primary purpose of the York Green
Belt. It should also set out the statutory
basis for the Green Belt as set out in
SI12013 No. 117.

This Paragraph should also make reference
to the fact that, although the RSS was
revoked, its Policies regarding the principle
of defining a Green Belt around York, the
primary purpose of the Green Belt, and its
general extent was confirmed by the
Government in 2013.

Local Context,
Green Belt, first
Paragraph amend
the beginning of
this Paragraph to
read:-

“The principle of
defining a Green
Belt around York
is long
established. This
was most recently
confirmed by the
Government
when it saved the
Policies for the
York Green Belt
following the
revocation of the
RSS. It also
reaffirmed that
the primary
purpose of the
York Green Belt

45—




Page 58
Y

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page

Section

Comments

Suggested Changes

is to preserve the
special character
and setting of the
historic city.

Some of the outer
boundaries ...
etc”

59

Local
Context,
Green Belt

Policy guidance for the York Green Belt is
also set out in saved Policy YH9 and Y| of
the RSS. The requirements of these
Policies also need to be reflected in this
section.

Local Context,
Green Belt, inset
the following
Paragraph before
the second
Paragraph:-

“The saved
Policies from the
RSS require that,
in defining the
inner boundaries
of the Green Belt,
the plan should
protect the
nationally-
significant
historical and
environmental
character of York
including its
historic setting,
views of the
Minster and
important open
areas’.

59

Local
Context,
Green Belt,
third
Paragraph

The primary purpose of the York Green
Belt was confirmed as recently as 2013.
This needs to be better reflected in this
Paragraph. As currently worded, this
seems to imply that all of these carry equal
weight.

Local Context,
Green Belt, third
Paragraph:-

(1) Amend the
sentence before
the five bullet-
points to read:-
“The primary
purpose of the
York Green Belt
is to preserve the
special character

1B~




Page 59

e

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes
and setting of the
historic City of
York. The NPFF
sets out four
other purposes of
a Green Betlt.
These are:-"

(2) Delete the
fourth bullet-point

60 | Local This Paragraph states that there are no

Context, alternative suitable and deliverable sites to
second meet the assessed development needs of
Paragraph on | York. As yet, this is not clearly established.
page 60
6l Policy SS5, This Policy should more closely reflect the | Policy SS5,
Criterion i requirements set out in S12013 No. 117, Criterion i amend
i.e. that the purpose of the York Green to read:-
Belt is to safeguard the special character The primary
and setting of the historic city. At present | purpose of the
there is no reference to the historic Green Belt is to
element. safeguard the
special character
and setting of the
historic city of
York. It also has
...etc”
62 Policy SSé Whilst we support the principle of There needs to

identifying land to meet the longer-term
development needs of the City and the
safeguarding of these areas, some of the
sites which have been identified, as
possible locations for longer-term
development, appear to fulfil the primary
purpose of the York Green Belt and, if
developed, look likely to harm elements
which contribute to the special character
of the historic City.

We have particular concerns about the
Sites to the north of ST 14, to the east of
STI5 and around ST19. Our detailed
comments on these areas are set out in
the Table below.

be a more robust
assessment of the
impact which the
development of
these sites might
have upon the six
principal
characteristics of
the historic City
which are set out
in the Heritage
Topic Paper. The
Heritage Impact
Assessmentis a
key tool which
can assist in this

e




ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page 60
e

Section

Comments

Suggested Changes

process. We have
set out in our
accompanying
letter how this
document might
be used more
effectively to
evaluate the likely
effects which the
development of
the Strategic Sites
might have upon
the special
character and
setting of York
and how it this
Assessment might
be used to shape
the future
strategy of the
plan so that it
delivers growth in
a manner which
safeguards its
historic character.

Following this
assessment
either:-

(1) Delete those
sites detailed in
the Table below
whose eventual
development
would be likely to
harm the special
character and
setting of the
historic city, or

(2) Where itis
possible, amend
the size and
extent of these

=18 =




Page 61

Ty
ENGLISH HERITAGE

Section Comments Suggested Changes

areas (or their
location) in order
that those
elements which
contribute to the
special character
and setting of
York are not
likely to be
harmed,

or

(3) The Plan will
need to clearly
justify why it is
necessary to
develop areas
which seem likely
to which harm
elements which
contribute to the
special character
or setting of the
historic city. This
will need to
include an
explanation of the
need for this
development and
the reasons why it
cannot be
accommeodated in
a manner which
does not harm
the historic
environment of
the City.

-19-




Page 62
T

ENGLISH HERITAGE

We have the following comments to make regarding the sites which are proposed as
allocations under the provisions of Policy SS3:-

Sites for economic development (Policy SS3, Criterion i)

Site No.

Site Name

Comments

STS

York Central

That part of the site between the City Walls and the
railway line is an extremely sensitive area. It is
essential that the height of the new buildings in and
around the Station are of a scale which will not harm
the character or appearance of the Central Historic
Core Conservation Area, or detract from the setting
of either the Listed Buildings in and around the site or
those elements which contribute to the significance of
the City Walls.

However, there may be capacity within parts of the
York Central site for the development of some taller
structures where it can be demonstrated that it would
not harm key views across the City.

ST8

Land north of
Monks Cross

In his 1994 Report on the Green Belt Local Plan
Inquiry, the Inspector considered that:-

“... in general there would be serious harm to views
of the City from the Ring Road if development were
permitted to come right up to the latter” [Inspector’s
Report, Paragraph A7.28, page |2].

The development of this site would substantially
reduce the gap between the edge of the built-up area
and the Ring Road. As such, it would adversely affect
views towards the City and its rural setting.

As currently depicted, the development of this area
seems likely to harm elements which contribute to the
special character and setting of York.

STI9

Northminster
Business Park

Whilst there is already a long-established employment
area at the Northminster Business Park, some of the
areas which are identified for future development
could harm elements which contribute to the special
character and setting of the City. In particular, the
south-easternmost site would conflict with the 1994
Inspector’s Report on the Green Belt Local Plan
Inquiry that:-

“... in general there would be serious harm to views
of the City from the Ring Road if development were
permitted to come right up to the /latter” [Inspector’s

=20




Page 63
i

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Site No. Site Name Comments
Report, Paragraph A7.28, page 12].
It would also substantially reduce the gap between the
existing development at the Northminster Business
Park and the village of Knapton.
As currently depicted, the development of this area
seems likely to harm elements which contribute to the
special character and setting of York.

STIé Terry’s Part of this site lies within the Racecourse and Terry’s

Conservation Area. The site also contains several
Grade |l Listed Buildings. If allocated, development
proposals for this area would need to ensure that
those elements which contribute to the significance of
these assets are not harmed.

Housing sites within main built-up area (Policy SS3, Criterion ii)

Site No.

Site Name

Comments

STH

York Central

That part of the site between the City Walls and the
railway line is an extremely sensitive area. It is
essential that the height of the new buildings in and
around the Station are of a scale which will not harm
the character or appearance of the Central Historic
Core Conservation Area, or detract from the setting
of either the Listed Buildings in and around the site or
those elements which contribute to the significance of
the City Walls.

However, there may be capacity within parts of the
York Central site for the development of some taller
structures where it can be demonstrated that it would
not harm key views across the City.

STé

Land east of
Grimston Bar

In his Report on the York Green Belt Local Plan in
1994, the Inspector considered that the swathe of
open countryside between the eastern edge of the
built-up area and the Ring Road was particularly
important to the setting of the City, and was especially
vulnerable where the edge of the built-up area is close
to the Ring Road [see, for example, Inspector’s
Report, page 81, Paragraph C66.5].

The development of this site would substantially
reduce the gap between the edge of the built-up area
and the Ring Road. As such, it would adversely affect

7




Page 64
P

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Site No.

Site Name

Comments

views towards the City and its rural setting. It would
also reduce the separation of the edge of the City
from the Livestock Centre to the south of Murton
further eroding its rural setting.

The development of this area seems likely to harm
one of the elements which contributes to the special
character and setting of York.

STI7

Additional land at
Nestle South

Part of this site lies within the Nestle/Rowntree
Conservation Area. The Joseph Rowntree Memorial
Library, on the eastern side of this site, is a Grade Il
Listed Building. If allocated, development proposals for
this area would need to ensure that those elements
which contribute to the significance of these assets are
not harmed.

Housing provided on urban extensions to the main built-up area (Policy SS3, Criterion

iii))
Site No. Site Mame Comments
ST7 Land to the east | In his Report on the York Green Belt Local Plan in

of Metcalf Lane

1994, the Inspector considered that the swathe of
open countryside between the eastern edge of the
built-up area and the Ring Road was particularly
important to the setting of the City, and was especially
vulnerable where the edge of the built-up area is close
to the Ring Road.

In the case of an objection to a site lying to the south
Bad Bargain Lane he considered that:-

“This countryside is characterised by fields and
hedgerows and forms a pleasant and important
landscape setting for the historic city. This countryside
setting is particularly important in views from the Ring
Road ...Encroachment into the countryside in this
area would undermine the objectives of Green Belt
policy.” [Inspector’s Report, page 74, Paragraph
C61.5]

The development of this site would substantially
reduce the gap between the edge of the built-up area
and the Ring Road. As such, it would adversely affect
views towards the City and its rural setting. |t would
also reduce the separation of the edge of the City
from Murton further eroding its rural setting.

s o




Page 65
i

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Site No.

Site Name

Comments

The development of this area seems likely to harm
one of the elements which contributes to the special
character and setting of York.

ST8

Land north of
Monks Cross

In his 1994 Report on the Green Belt Local Plan
Inquiry, the Inspector considered that:-

“... in general there would be serious harm to views
of the City from the Ring Road if development were
permitted to come right up to the /atter” [Inspector’s
Report, Paragraph A7.28, page |12].

The development of this site would substantially
reduce the gap between the edge of the built-up area
and the Ring Road. As such, it would adversely affect
views towards the City and its rural setting.

As currently depicted, the development of this area
seems likely to harm one of the elements which

contributes to the special character and setting of
York.

STIO

Land at Moor
Lane,
Woodthorpe

In his Report to the York Green Belt Local Plan in
1994, the Inspector considered that :-

“Moor Lane provides a clear and satisfactory edge to
the developed area of York”.

He felt that this land helped:-
“... to separate York and Copmanthorpe and to
prevent further sprawl of the built-up area”

In his opinion development south of Moor Lane
would:-

“... be very harmful to the underlying objectives of
the Green Belt” [Inspector’s Report, page 95,
Paragraph C78.4].

Given that little has changed in either the character of
this part of the City or the purposes of the York
Green Belt, the Inspector’s conclusions as to the
appropriateness of this area as an allocation appear
just as relevant. The development of this area seems
likely to harm one of the elements which contributes
to the special character and setting of York.

STII

Land at New
Lane, Huntington

This site includes the Roman Camp on Huntington
South Moor which is a Scheduled Monument. National

T




Page 66
S

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Site No.

Site Name

Comments

policy guidance makes it clear that substantial harm to
the significance of such an asset should be wholly
exceptional. Before allocating this site, therefore, it
will have to be clearly demonstrated that residential
development in this area would not result in harm to
elements that contribute to the significance of this
asset, including its setting.

Huntington Grange, to the west of this area, is a
Grade || Listed Building. There is a requirement in the
1990 Act that “special regard” should be had to the
desirability of preserving Listed Buildings or their
setting or any features of special architectural or
historic interest which they possess. Consequently,
before allocating this area, there would also need to
be some assesment of what contribution this
currently-undeveloped area makes to the signficance
of this building and what effect its loss and subsequent
development might have upon its significance.

If allocated, development proposals would need to
ensure that those elements which contribute to the
significance of these assets (including their settings)
are not likely to be harmed.

STI4

Land north of
Clifton Moor

As illustrated, Figure 5.3 implies that no land beyond
the Ring Road is important to keep open in order to
safeguard the rural setting of the historic City. This is
clearly not the case.

In his 1994 Report on the Green Belt Local Plan
Inquiry, the Inspector considered that:-

“... in general there would be serious harm to views
of the City from the Ring Road if development were
permitted to come right up to the /atter and even
more so if it passed beyond it” [Inspector’s Report,
Paragraph A7.28, page 12].

It is clear, therefore, that the Inspector did not
consider that the elements which contributed to the
rural setting of York were restricted solely to land
lying within the Ring Road and that the special
character of York could be harmed by development
which goes beyond it.

=24 -




Page 67
=k

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Site No.

Site Name

Comments

Site ST 14 lies in the open countryside beyond the
northern Ring Road in an area which forms part of the
rural setting of the historic City. By development
extending beyond the Ring Road, it will not only
fundamentally change the relationship of the northern
edge of York with the settlements of Skelton and
Haxby, but also threaten the separation between
these settlements and the main built-up area of the
City (this development will only be 0.6km from the
eastern edge of Skelton and 1.2km from the western
edge of Haxby). By resulting in development on both
sides of the Ring Road, it will also alter people’s
perceptions when travelling along this route about the
setting of the City within an area of open countryside
(an element identified by the Inspector in his Report
as contributing to the special character of York).

Overall, therefore, we consider that the allocation and
development of this area would be likely to harm the
special character and setting of the City and,
therefore, would conflict with the saved Policies of the
RSS and national planning Policy.

Housing provided through new settlement at Whinthorpe (Policy SS3, Criterion iv)

Site No.

Site Name

Comments

STI5

New Settlement
at Whinthorpe

As illustrated, Figure 5.3 implies that no land beyond
the Ring Road is important to keep open in order to
safeguard the rural setting of the historic City. This is
clearly not the case.

In his 1994 Report on the Green Belt Local Plan
Inquiry, the Inspector considered that:-

“... in general there would be serious harm to views
of the City from the Ring Road if development were
permitted to come right up to the latter and even
more so if it passed beyond it” [Inspector’s Report,
Paragraph A7.28, page 12].

It is clear, therefore, that the Inspector did not
consider that the elements which contributed to the
rural setting of York were restricted solely to land
lying within the Ring Road and that the special
character of York could be harmed by development
which goes beyond it.

A58 -




Page 68

e
ENGLISH HERITAGE

Site No. Site Name Comments

He reaffirmed his view that development of sites in
the open countryside beyond the Ring Road would
harm the rural setting of the historic city when
considering the development of a site in the
countryside at Clock Farm near Elvington. He opined:-
“It is in an area of flat open countryside which forms
an important part of the countryside setting of York.
Development of such as site would be seen as an
intrusion into the countryside which would detract
marked|y from the setting of the historic city contrary
to one of the aims of the Green Belt” [Inspector’s
Report, page 204, Paragraph E12.3]

Site ST15 lies to the south of the area considered by
the Inspector in his 1994 Report. Consequently, many
of his conclusions would be applicable to the
allocation and eventual development of this allocation.

Site STI5 lies in open countryside which forms part of
the rural setting of the historic City. By extending
development up to the southern Ring Road, it will
fundamentally change the relationship which the
southern edge of York has with the countryside to its
south. This development will only be 1.25km from the
southern edge of Heslington and 0.9km from the
buildings at the new University Campus. It will also
alter people’s perceptions when travelling along this
route about the setting of the City within an area of
open countryside (an element identified by the
Inspector in his Report as contributing to the special
character and setting of the City).

Notwithstanding the above, even if an incursion of this
size into the open countryside was acceptable in
principle, the relationship of this area to the City does
not reflect the way in which settlements have
traditionally developed around York.

Overall, therefore, we consider that the allocation and
development of this area would be likely to harm the
special character and setting of the City and,
therefore, would conflict with the saved Policies of the
RSS and national planning Policy.

=28 =




Page 69
o

ENGLISH HERITAGE

*  We have the following comments to make regarding the sites which are proposed as
Safeguarded Land under the provisions of Policy SS6:-

Site No. Site Name Comments
SF2 Land north of As illustrated, Figure 5.3 implies that no land beyond
Clifton Moor the Ring Road is important to keep open in order to

safeguard the rural setting of the historic City. This is
clearly not the case.

In his 1994 Report on the Green Belt Local Plan
Inquiry, the Inspector considered that:-

“... in general there would be serious harm to views
of the City from the Ring Road if development were
permitted to come right up to the latter and even
more so if it passed beyond it” [Inspector’s Report,
Paragraph A7.28, page |2].

It is clear, therefore, that he did not consider that the
elements which contributed to the rural setting of
York were restricted solely to land lying within the
Ring Road and that the special character of York could
be harmed by development which goes beyond it.

Site SF3 lies in the open countryside beyond the
northern Ring Road in an area which forms part of the
rural setting of the historic City. By development
extending beyond the Ring Road, it will not only
fundamentally change the relationship of the northern
edge of the City with the settlements of Skelton and
Haxby but also threaten the separation between these
settlements and the main built-up area of the City (this
development will only be 0.6km from the eastern edge
of Skelton and |.2km from the western edge of
Haxby). In combination with Site ST 14 to the south,
this area will result in development on both sides of
the Ring Road, which will also alter people’s
perceptions when travelling along this route about the
setting of the City within an area of open countryside
(an element identified by the Inspector in his Report
as contributing to the special character of the City).

Overall, therefore, we consider that the safeguarding
and eventual development of this area would be likely

=T



Page 70
e

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Site No. Site Name Comments
to harm the special character and setting of the City
and, therefore, would conflict with the saved Policies
of the RSS and national planning Policy.
SF3 Land at As illustrated, Figure 5.3 implies that no land beyond
Whinthorpe the Ring Road is important to keep open in order to

safeguard the rural setting of the historic City. This is
clearly not the case.

In his 1994 Report on the Green Belt Local Plan
Inquiry, the Inspector considered that:-

“... in general there would be serious harm to views
of the City from the Ring Road if development were
permitted to come right up to the /latter and even
more so if it passed beyond it” [Inspector’s Report,
Paragraph A7.28, page |2].

It is clear, therefore, that the Inspector did not
consider that the elements which contributed to the
rural setting of York were restricted solely to land
lying within the Ring Road and that the special
character of York could be harmed by development
which goes beyond it.

He reaffirmed his view that development of sites in
the open countryside beyond the ring Road would
harm the rural setting of the historic city when
considering the development of a site in the
countryside at Clock Farm near Elvington. He opined:-
“It is in an area of flat open countryside which forms
an important part of the countryside setting of York.
Development of such as site would be seen as an
intrusion into the countryside which would detract
markedly from the setting of the historic city contrary
to one of the aims of the Green Belt” [Inspector’s
Report, page 204, Paragraph E12.3]

This site lies to the south of the area considered by
the Inspector in his 1994 Report. Consequently, many
of his conclusions would be applicable to the
allocation and eventual development of this site.

Site SF3 lies in open countryside in an area which
forms part of the rural setting of the historic City. By
extending development up to the Ring Road, in

_D8 -




Page 71
T

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Site No. Site Name Comments

combination with Site ST |5, the development of this
area it will fundamentally change the relationship of
the southern edge of York with its countryside to the
south (development will only be 0.7km from the
buildings at the new University Campus). It will also
alter people’s perceptions when travelling along this
route about the setting of the City within an area of
open countryside (an element identified by the
Inspector in his Report as contributing to the special
character of the City).

Notwithstanding the above, even if an incursion of this
size into the open countryside was acceptable in
principle, the relationship of this area to the City does
not reflect the way in which settlements have
traditionally developed around York.

Overall, therefore, we consider that the safeguarding
and eventual development of this area would be likely
to harm the special character and setting of the City
and, therefore, would conflict with the saved Policies
of the RSS and national planning policy.

SF8 Northminster Whilst there is already a long-established employment
Business Park area at the Northminster Business Park, some of the
areas which are safeguarded and identified for long-
term future development could harm elements which
contribute to the special character and setting of the
City. In particular, the northern area of Safeguarded
land would drastically reduce the gap between the
existing development at the Northminster Business
Park and the settlement of Nether Poppleton .

As currently depicted, the safeguarding and eventual
development of parts of this area seems likely to harm
elements which contribute to the special character
and setting of York.

Question 6.1

* Overall, we would endorse the strategy which this Section sets out for the City Centre
and welcome the recognition given to the need to ensure that its heritage assets are
appropriately managed.

B



Question 6.2

* We would broadly support the amendments to the boundary of the City Centre. This
amended boundary now includes those areas which have a city centre function.

Page 72

R
ENGLISH HERITAGE

¢ We have the following detailed comments to make on the content of Section 6:-

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes
66 | Policy YCCI, | The Policy should also include an intention | Policy YCCI, first
first to improve/enhance those elements which | Paragraph, line |
Paragraph currently detract from this character. amend to read:-
“Its special
qualities and
distinctiveness will
be conserved and
enhanced whilst ..
etc”
67 | Policy YCCI | We support the development principles -
set out on page 67, especially Criteria i to
iv, vii, viii and xi. Together these principles
should help to safeguard and enhance
those elements which contribute to the
special character of this part of York.
Question 7.1

¢ We would broadly endorse the approach to the development of York Central that is set
out in this Section.

®*  We have the following detailed comments to make on the content of Section 7:-

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes
(4 Policy YCI, Whilst we support the inclusion of a Ad to the end of
Criterion v requirement that York Central be Policy YCI,
developed as a place of outstanding quality | Criterion v:-
and design which complements and “.. and
enhances the existing historic urban fabric | safeguards those
of the city, this Criterion also needs to elements which
make it clear that safeguarding those contribute to the
elements which contribute to the distinctive historic
significance of the heritage assets in its character of the
vicinity assets is also a key consideration. | City”
76 Figure 7.2, That part of the site between the City Amend
area allocated | Walls and the railway line is an extremely | accordingly.
for sensitive area. It is essential that the height
Office/Leisure | of the new buildings in and around the

-30-




Page 73

S
ENGLISH HERITAGE

Section

Comments

Suggested Changes

development

Station are of a scale which will not harm
the character or appearance of the
Central Historic Core Conservation Area,
or detract from the setting of either the
Listed Buildings in and around the site or
those elements which contribute to the
significance of the City Walls. This should
be referred to within the supporting text
in Paragraph 7.2

Question 8.1

Employment growth

Based upon the sites which have been put forward as Strategic Allocations, the amount
of development likely to come forward through pursuing Scenario 2 (which reflects the
ambitions set out in the York Economic Strategy and the amount of new housing
development which would be commensurate with this level of economic growth) in
conjunction with the associated level of housing growth seems likely to harm elements
which contribute to the special character of the historic City. It may be the case that
this level of growth can be accommodated. However, this is not currently demonstrated

by the areas which the Plan is currently putting forward for development.

Question 9.1

We support the intention to maintain the City Centre as the main focus for future
retail and commercial activity. The continued viability and vitality of the heart of the

City is essential if its historic environment is to be maintained.

We have the following detailed comments to make on the content of Section 9:-

and design of any new development, it is
essential that the Castle Piccadilly site

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes
95 | Policy R3 We support that aspect of this Policy -

which relates to the reuse of existing

buildings subject to there being no historic

building or conservation constraints (third

bullet-point) and improvements to the

public realm (final bullet-point).

95 Policy R3, Because of the importance of Castle Amend
first bullet- Piccadilly to the delivery of the retail accordingly
point and strategy for the City Centre, the
Paragraph sensitivity of this area, and the number of
9.18 potential constraints upon the scale, form

_ G-




Page 74
Fri

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page | Section

Comments Suggested Changes

(including the area on Piccadilly) is
developed comprehensively. Therefore,
the Plan should include a clear statement
that a Masterplan will be developed for
this area and that piecemeal development
which would be likely to prejudice the
development and realisation of a
comprehensive scheme for this area will
not be permitted.

Question 10.1
Housing growth

e Based upon the sites which have been put forward as Strategic Allocations, Option 2
(which reflects the economic ambitions set out in the York Economic Strategy and the
amount of new housing development which would be commensurate with this level of
employment growth) seems likely to harm elements which contribute to the special
character of the historic City. It may be the case that this level of growth can be
accommodated. However, this is not currently demonstrated by some of the areas
which the Plan is currently putting forward for development as Strategic Housing sites

(see comments above).

Housing density

* We welcome the requirement that the density of new developments should be
informed by the character of the local area. This will help to ensure that new residential

schemes respond sensitively to the distinctive character of the various parts of the City.

Housing Allocations

* We have the following comments to make regarding the sites which are proposed as
Housing Allocations under the provisions of Policy H3 (Our comments on the Strategic

Sites are set out in relation to Policy SS3, above):-

York Main Urban Area
Site No. Site Name Comments
HI Former Gas This site adjoins the boundary of the Heworth
Works, 24 Green/East Parade/Huntington Road

Heworth Green Conservation Area. 26 Heworth Green, on the

northern side of this site, is a Grade Il Listed
Building. If allocated, development proposals for
this area would need to ensure that those
elements which contribute to the significance of
these assets are not harmed.

H2

Sites by

Racecourse, Grade |l Listed Building. In addition, this site also

The Pinfold, at the western edge of this site, is a

LG




Page 75
i

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Site No.

Site Name

Comments

Tadcaster Road

lies within the Tadcaster Road Conservation
Area.

In view of the requirement in the 1990 Act

that “special regard” should be had to the
desirability of preserving Listed Buildings or their
setting or any features of special architectural or
historic interest which they possess and the duty
on the Council to preserve or enhance the
character or appearance of its Conservation
Areas, before allocating this area, there would
need to be some assesment of what contribution
this currently-undeveloped area makes to the
signficance of these assets and what effect its loss
and subsequent development might have upon
their significance.

If allocated, development proposals would need
to ensure that those elements which contribute
to the significance of these assets (including their
setting) are not likely to be harmed.

H4

St Joseph’s
Monastery

The sisters' house, church, externs' house, priests'
house, and precinct walls of the Convent of St
Joseph, Lawrence Street have recently been Listed
Grade Il. There is a requirement in the 1990 Act
that “special regard” should be had to the
desirability of preserving Listed Buildings or their
setting or any features of special architectural or
historic interest which they possess.
Consequently, before allocating this area, there
would need to be some assesment of what
contribution this currently-undeveloped area
makes to the signficance of these buildings and
what effect its loss and subsequent development
might have upon the significance of these assets.

If allocated, development proposals would need
to ensure that those elements which contribute
to the significance of these assets (including their
setting) are not likely to be harmed.

HI0

Barbican Centre
(remaining land)

This site lies opposite the City Walls. Given the
importance of the City Walls, great care would
need to be taken to ensure that the elements
which contribute to their significance are not

289 4




Page 76
gl

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Site No. Site Name Comments
harmed.
HIl Land at Frederick | This site adjoins the boundary of the Fulford Road
House Conservation Area. If allocated, development
proposals for this area would need to ensure that
those elements which contribute to the
significance of this area are not harmed.
H14 32 St Lawrence There is a row of Grade Il Listed dwellings at
Street Ellen Wilson Hospital to the east of this site and
the Church of St Lawrence is also Grade |l Listed.
If allocated, development proposals for this area
would need to ensure that those elements which
contribute to the significance of these assets are
not harmed.
HI9 Land at Mill This site lies within the Central Historic Core
Mount Conservation Area. [f allocated, development
proposals for this area would need to ensure that
those elements which contribute to the
significance of this area are not harmed.
H24 Former Bristow’s | This site adjoins the boundary of the Fulford Road
Garage, Fulford Conservation Area. Consort House, to the south,
Road is a Grade |l Listed Building. If allocated,
development proposals for this area would need
to ensure that those elements which contribute
to the significance of these assets are not harmed.
Village/rural
Site No. Site Name Comments
H30 Land to the south | This site adjoins the boundary of the Strensall
of Strensall Conservation Area. In view of the duty on the
Village Council to preserve or enhance the character or

appearance of its Conservation Areas including
their setting, there will need to be some
assessment of what contribution this area makes
to the landscape setting of the Conservation Area.
If this area does make an important contribution
to the character of the Conservation Area, then
the plan would need to explain why its loss and
subsequent development is considered to be
acceptable.

If, after undertaking this assessment, it is
considered appropriate to allocate this area,
development proposals would need to ensure

- %




Page 77
Hewle

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Site No.

Site Name

Comments

that those elements which contribute to the
significance of this area are not harmed.

H32

The Tannery,
Strensall

This site adjoins the boundary of the Strensall
Conservation Area. If allocated, development
proposals for this area would need to ensure that
those elements which contribute to the
significance of this area are not harmed.

H34

Land north of
Church Lane,
Skelton

In view of the duty on the Council to preserve or
enhance the character or appearance of its
Conservation Areas including their setting, there
will need to be some assessment of what
contribution this area makes to the landscape
setting of the Conservation Area. If this area does
make an important contribution to the character
of the Conservation Area, then the plan would
need to explain why its loss and subsequent
development is considered to be acceptable.

If, after undertaking this assessment, it is
considered appropriate to allocate this area,
development proposals would need to ensure
that those elements which contribute to the
significance of this area are not harmed.

H36

Land at
Blairgowerie
House, upper
Poppleton

This site lies within the Upper Poppleton
Conservation Area. When originally designated,
it is presumed that this open area was considered
to make an important contribution to the
character or appearance of the Conservation
Area. Therefore, one might assume that its loss
and subsequent development would result in
harm to that part of the designated area.

In view of the duty on the Council to preserve or
enhance the character or appearance of its
Conservation Areas, there will need to be some
assessment of what contribution this plot of land
makes to the character of the Conservation Area.
If this area does make an important contribution
to the character of the Conservation Area, then
the plan would need to explain why its loss and
subsequent development is considered to be
acceptable.

If, after undertaking this assessment, it is

e




Page 78
e

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Site No.

Site Name

Comments

considered appropriate to allocate this area,
development proposals would need to ensure
that those elements which contribute to the
significance of this area are not harmed.

H37

Land at
Greystone Court,
Haxby

In his Report to the York Green Belt Local Plan in
1994, the Inspector considered that the
development of this site would:-

“... be seen as an encroachment into the
countryside and would markedly weaken the
degree of separation which currently exists
between Haxby/Wigginton and New
Easrwswick/York. In my opinion this would
undermine one of the principal objectives of the
Green Belt. " [Inspector’s Report, page 120,
Paragraph D47.6]

Consequently, the development of this area
seems likely to harm one of the elements which
contributes to the special character and setting of
York and should not be allocated.

H41

Land adjacent to
26 and 38 Church
Lane,
Bishopthorpe

This site lies within the Bishopthorpe
Conservation Area. In view of the duty on the
Council to preserve or enhance the character or
appearance of its Conservation Areas, there will
need to be some assessment of what contribution
this plot of land makes to the character of the
Conservation Area. If this area does make an
important contribution to the character of the
Conservation Area, then the plan would need to
explain why its loss and subsequent development
is considered to be acceptable.

If, after undertaking this assessment, it is
considered appropriate to allocate this area,
development proposals would need to ensure
that those elements which contribute to the
significance of this area are not harmed.

H42

Builder’s Yard,
Church Lane,
Bishopthorpe

This site lies within the Bishopthorpe
Conservation Area. If allocated, development
proposals for this area would need to ensure that
those elements which contribute to the
significance of this area are not harmed.

H43

Manor Farm
Yard,

This site adjoins the boundary of the
Copmanthorpe Conservation Area. If allocated,

=96 -




Page 79
P

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Site No.

Site Name

Comments

Copmanthorpe

development proposals for this area would need
to ensure that those elements which contribute
to the significance of this area are not harmed.

H44

R/O Surgery and
2a/2b Petercroft
Lane, Dunnington

This site lies within the Dunnington Conservation
Area. When originally designated, it is presumed
that this open area was considered to make an
important contribution to the character or
appearance of the Conservation Area. Therefore,
one might assume that its loss and subsequent
development would result in harm to that part of
the designated area.

In view of the duty on the Council to preserve or
enhance the character or appearance of its
Conservation Areas, there will need to be some
assessment of what contribution this plot of land
makes to the character of the Conservation Area.
If this area does make an important contribution
to the character of the Conservation Area, then
the plan would need to explain why its loss and
subsequent development is considered to be
acceptable.

If, after undertaking this assessment, it is
considered appropriate to allocate this area,
development proposals would need to ensure
that those elements which contribute to the
significance of this area are not harmed.

Question 1 1.1

Sites for gypsy. traveller and showpeople

o In terms of the Policies for gypsy, traveller and showpeople, whichever sites are
eventually chosen, it is essential that the development of these areas does not harm the
special character or setting of York. Several of the areas of search include land which, if
developed, could compromise the Green Belt objectives relating to the preservation of
the historic city. Consequently, it is important that Policy ACHM4 includes a
requirement for any sites to safeguard those elements which contribute to the special

character and setting of the historic City.

Question 15.1
» We support the proposed approach and guidance which the policies in this Section

provide for development associated with the Universities.

3T




Page 80
rr
ENGLISH HERITAGE

e We have the following detailed comments to make on the content of Section |5:-

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes
I55 | Policy U2 We support this Policy which will help to | -
retain the distinctive character of the
campus and its landscape setting.

156 | Policy U3 Given the location of this campus adjacent | -
to the Green Belt and in close proximity
to Heslington Conservation Area, we
support the requirement that any
amendments to the current S106
Agreement will be required to reflect its
parkland setting, that they should be
sensitive to its Green Belt surroundings
and the setting of Heslington village.

157 | Policy U4 The Lord Mayor’s Walk Campus lies -
opposite the City Walls, partly in a
Conservation Area, and includes a number
of Listed Buildings. Consequently, we
support the requirement that future
development on this site needs to take
account of its sensitive setting.

- Green Belt The Proposals Map shows whole of the Amend Green
boundary Campus including the undeveloped land to | Belt boundary
around the the south and east of the existing buildings | accordingly
Heslington as being excluded from the Green Belt.

East Campus
In order to ensure that the special
character and setting of York is not
threatened by expansion of the University
towards the Ring Road (and, potentially
merging with the new settlement), all of
the undeveloped land to the south and
east of the existing Campus buildings (or
which has been identified for the longer-
term development needs of the
University) should be included within the
Green Belt.

Question 16.1

 Given the significance of York’s historic environment, it is absolutely essential that the
Plan sets out a robust Policy framework for the management of this resource. Indeed,
national policy guidance makes it clear that Local Plans should set out a ‘positive

A8



Page 81
Herf

ENGLISH HERITAGE

strategy for the conservation and enjoyment of the historic environment”. Overall, we
consider that the approach set out in this Section provides the basis for a Policy
framework which will comply with the requirements of the NPPF. However, in order to
meet the requirements of NPPF Paragraph 126 (and also to demonstrate that the
strategy is truly sustainable) it is not sufficient for the Plan to simply include a good suite
of Policies for the historic environment. The plan, as a whole, has to set out a positive
strategy for the historic environment. This includes ensuring that the eventual
development of the sites which it is proposing to allocate will not result in harm to the
heritage assets of the area. As we have set out, above, we have some significant
concerns about the potential impact which some of the proposed strategic development
sites might have upon the special character and setting of the historic City.

» We have the following detailed comments to make on the content of Section 16:-

Page | Section

Comments

Suggested Changes

162 | Policy DHEI

We support this Policy. This should help
to ensure that the special character of the
City is safeguarded. We particularly
endorse the final Paragraph of the Policy.
Given the importance of York’s historic
environment, it is absolutely right that
development proposals that fail to take
account of York's special qualities should
be refused.

164 | Policy DHE2

It is not entirely clear what the purpose of
this Policy is. The first Criterion sets out
some general considerations relating to
heritage assets (all of which (with the
exception of non-designated heritage
assets) are addressed in the other Policies
in this Section). The second and third
Criteria relate to information required to
support applications much of which
appears to be included in the subsequent
historic environment Policies.
Consequently, it would be worth
reviewing whether or not this Policy is
needed.

Review whether
or not Policy
DHE2 is required.

|65 | Policy DHE3

We support this Policy. This should help
to ensure that the landscape of the City
and its wider setting is safeguarded.

166 | Policy DHE4

We support this Policy. This should help
to ensure that this important element of
the City's character is safeguarded. We
particularly welcome the inclusion of a

-30-




Page 82

i
ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes
requirement that the City's key views as
defined in the York City Historic Core
Conservation Area Appraisal will be
protected.

167 | Policy DHE5 | We support this Policy for York’s streets | -
and spaces, especially the improvement of
the public realm.

168 | Policy DHE6 | Subject to the changes below, we support | -
this Policy which sets out a good
framework for managing change which
could impact upon York’s Conservation
Areas.

168 | Policy DHE6, | National policy guidance makes it clear Policy DHE7, line
first line that the significance of a heritage asset can | | amend to read:-

also be affected by development proposals | “Development

within its setting. proposals within
or likely to affect
the setting of a
Conservation
Area will be
supported where
they:-"“

168 | Policy DHE6, | Conservation Area Consent is due to be | (1) Policy DHE7,
final replaced later this year. Consequently, it | final Paragraph
Paragraph would be preferable to amend the amend to read:-
and wording of this Paragraph “Demolition of
Paragraph buildings which
16.19 make a positive

contribution to a
Conservation
Area will be
resisted”
(2) Paragraph
16.19 amend to
read:-
“Permission for
the demolition
...etc”

169 | Policy DHE7 | We support this Policy which sets out a -

good framework for managing change
which could impact upon York's Listed
Buildings.

cAD L




Page 83

e o
ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes

170 | Policy DHE8 | We support this Policy especially the -
protection that is given to the retention of
high-quality or historic shop fronts. York
has many fine historic shopfronts which
make a valuable contribution to the
distinctive character of the area in which
these buildings are located.

171 | Policy DHE9 | We support this Policy which sets out a -
good framework for the control of
advertisements. This should help to
ensure that the character of the City is
maintained.

172 | Policy DHEIO | We support this Policy which sets out a -
good framework for the control of
security shutters. Poorly-designed security
shutters can considerably detract from the
character of an area and its vitality. This
Policy should help to ensure that the
character of the City is maintained.

172 | Policy DHEI | | Because of the importance of the City
Walls, we wholly support the inclusion of
a Policy to manage change in their vicinity.
However, the Policy would benefit from a
few amendments as set out below.

172 | Policy The significance of the City Walls can also | Policy DHEI I,
DHEI |, third | be harmed by development which third Paragraph
Paragraph adversely affects their setting. amend to read:-

Conceivably, this could be some distance | “Development
from the Scheduled area. As currently proposals
worded, however, this Policy only applies | adjacent to, or
to development proposals “adjacent” to likely to affect
the Scheduled area. their setting of,
the City Walls
designated as
Scheduled
Monuments will
only be permitted
where:-"

172 | Policy It would be preferable to include the need | Policy DHEI I:-
DHELI I, third | for a Heritage Statement as a separate
Paragraph, Paragraph at the end of the Policy. The (1) Delete
Criterion i remainder of this Criterion is already Criterion i

addressed by the rest of the Policy and

S




Page 84
gacpla

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page

Section

Comments

Suggested Changes

could be deleted.

(2) Add a new
Paragraph to
read:-
“Development
proposals likely to
impact upon the
City Walls must
be accompanied
by a Heritage
Statement that
clearly assesses
the impact which
the proposals are
likely to have
upon the
elements which
contribute to
their significance
and the six
principle
characteristics of
the City as
identified in the
Heritage Topic
Paper.”

172

Policy

DHEI I, third
Paragraph,
Criterion iii

It would be preferable to reword this
bullet-point to more clearly articulate its
intentions

Policy DHEI 1,
third Paragraph,
fourth bullet-
point amend to
read:-

“Designed not to
cause harm to
those elements
which contribute
to the significance
of the Walls
including their
setting”.

172

Policy DHE! |

One of the key requirements for any
development in the vicinity of the Walls is
that it should be of the highest quality
design. This element should be included as

one of the Criteria of the third Paragraph..

Policy DHEI I,
third Paragraph,
add an additional
Criterion to

read:-
“Of the highest

- 42 -




Page 85
e

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page

Section

Comments

Suggested Changes

design quality
which, where
possible, enhances
or better reveals
the significance of
the walls”

173

Paragraph
16.33

In order to guide development in and
around the City Walls, it is suggested that
the City Council and English Heritage
produce joint guidance which c¢an be used
as SDP. This should be referred to in the
justification to this Policy.

Amend
accordingly

173

Paragraph
16.33, final
sentence.

Given the importance of the York City
Walls, there should be a clear statement
that proposals which harm their
significance will not be permitted.

Paragraph 16.33,
final sentence
amend to read:-
“Proposals that
harm the
character or
significance of the
City Walls will
not be
permitted”.

173

Policy DHEI2

Whilst we support the inclusion of a
Policy for archaeology, it would benefit
from some revisions to more clearly
articulate the approach to developments
likely to affect archaeological remains.

Amend Policy
DHEI2 as
follows:-
“Development
proposals which
would result in
harm to
Scheduled
Monuments or
other nationally
important
archaeological
remains will not
be permitted.

Development
proposals
affecting other
archaeological
features and
deposits will be
supported where

A




ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page 86
T

Section

Comments

Suggested Changes

they are
consistent with
the following:-

i In the historic
core, they accord
with the
principles set out
in the “York
Development and
Archaeology
Study” or its
successor

it. Elsewhere, they
are designed to
avoid harm to
archaeological
deposits. Where
harm is
unavoidable,
detailed mitigation
measures ...
[include the
remainder of the
current Criterion
iii of Policy
DHEI2]

Development
proposals within
the historic core
or likely to affect
archaeological
remains must be
accompanied by
an evidence-based
heritage
statement that
describes the
significance of the
archaeological
deposits affected
and includes a

Y. [




Page 87

T o
ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes
desk-based
assessment and,
where necessary,
reports on
intrusive and non-
intrusive surveys”.

174 | Paragraph Given the importance of the Amend

16.38 archaeological resource, it is suggested:- accordingly
(1) That the Council produce an SPD to
help guide those proposing development
in the City, and
(2) The York Development and
Archaeology Study” or its successor is
also adopted as SPD. These should be
referred to in the justification to this
Policy.
174 | Paragraph Copies of these reports should also be Paragraph 16.37
16.37 deposited with OASIS (the Online Access | line 3 amend to

to the Index of Archaeological
Investigation).

OASIS is the online access to the index of
archaeological investigations. The project
is designed to provide an index to all
archaeological ‘grey literature’ allowing
access through a searchable database. In
order to achieve this, all archaeological
fieldwork whether undertaken
commercially, for academic research or by
volunteers can be submitted through an
online form to be added to the
ArchSearch database.

OASIS is intended to become the routine
method of capturing archaeological
intervention data throughout England.
When this happens, it is anticipated that
other data gathering methods will not be
required to any significant extent. This will
allow resources to be focussed on
validation of data, dissemination, and
analysis. In the meantime however there is

read:-
“.. York HER
and QASIS”

- 45 -




Page 88

b

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes
still 2 need to record interventions and
reports which are not being entered on
OASIS.

175 | Policy DHEI3 | Subject to the amendment set out below,
we support this Policy which will assist in
safeguarding York’s Historic Parks and
Gardens.

175 | Policy DHEI3 | It is important that reference is also made | Policy DHEI3,
in the Policy to:-

(1) safeguarding any important views out | () Criterion |

of these landscapes, and amend to read:-
“character,

(2) ensuring that proposals do not amenity, setting

prejudice any future restoration or key views into
or out of the
park”
(2) Criterion ii
amend to read:-
“... park or
garden and do not
prejudice any
future
restoration”

175 | Policy DHEI4 | We support this Policy. However, it is Policy DHE14 add
important that the Policy makes it clear the following
that all assessments should be deposited additional
with the HER once completed. Paragraph:-

“Copies of alf
heritage
statements and
reports on
archaeological
interventions
whether pre- or
post-
determination
must be
deposited with
the City of York
HER’.
- Policy In view of the fact that the Council are Insert and
omission consulting on a framework for Locally additional Policy
Listed Buildings, the plan should include a | along the

-4 -




Page 89

T
ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page

Section

Comments

Suggested Changes

Policy for considering development
proposals which may affect them.

following lines:-
“Development
which would
remove, harm or
undermine the
significance of a
heritage asset on
the Local List, or
its contribution to
the character of a
place will only be
permitted where
the public benefits
of the
development
would outweigh
the harm’.

Question 17.1

e We support the proposed approach and guidance which the policies in the Section
provide for Green Infrastructure and welcome the recognition of the contribution which
the City’s heritage assets make to the Green Infrastructure network.

We have the following detailed comments to make on the content of Section 17:-

Page

Section

Comments

Suggested Changes

181

Policy Gl

We support this Policy and especially the
recognition in Criterion v of the
contribution which the City’s heritage
assets make to the Green Infrastructure
network

183

Policy GI3

We support this Policy especially the

requirement, in the third bullet-point, that
trees which contribute to the character of
a Conservation Area or Listed Building or

Policy GI3, third
bullet-point
amend to read:-
“ .. retains trees

are an element of a designed landscape that make a
should be retained. significant

However, as currently worded, this aspect

contribution to
the character or

of the Policy only applies to trees which setting of a
contribute to the setting of a Conservation
Conservation Area. In many cases, there | Area, to the

are trees within the Conservation Area

setting of a Listed

A




Page 90
e

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes
itself which contribute to its character. Building, ... etc”

Question 18.1

e We support the proposed approach and guidance which the policies in this Section
provide for proposals within the Green Belt especially insofar as they seek to safeguard
the special character and setting of the historic city.

e We have the following detailed comments to make on the content of Section |7:-

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes

191 | Policy GBI We support the general thrust of this Policy GBI,
Policy. However, Criterion c includes a Criterion ¢
seemingly random selection of the amend to read:-
elements which contribute to York’s ‘it would not
special character. It would be far better to | harm those
make this element of the Policy less elements which
specific so that all those elements which contribute to the
contribute to York’s special character and | special character
setting are covered and setting of

York”
Question 20.1

e We support the proposed approach and guidance to renewable energy especially insofar
it seeks to safeguard the special character and setting of the historic city.

e We have the following detailed comments to make on the content of Section 20:-

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes
217 | Policy CCI, | We support the requirement that -
Criterion iii proposals for renewable energy

development should demonstrate that
there will be no significant adverse impacts
upon the landscape character, setting,
views, heritage assets or Green Belt
objectives. This will help to ensure that
those elements which contribute to the
character of York are retained.

Question 22.1
*» We would broadly endorse the approach to waste and minerals that is set out in this
Section.

-48 -



Page 91
e

ENGLISH HERITAGE

Question 22.2

e Given that the NYCC, the City of York Council and the Yorkshire Dales National Park
Joint Minerals and Waste Pan will form part of the Local Plan for the City and the other
authorities, it seems a bit pointless each Local Plan setting out its own strategic policy in
their respective Local Plans, each of which could be challenged and each of which would
then be subject to consideration by a separate Local Plan Inspector. It would make
things far easier (and ensure consistency in the strategic framework) if the Joint
Minerals and Waste Plan set out a single Strategic Policy which could be used in the all
the local plans covered by the Joint MWLP.

Question 23.1

*»  We would broadly endorse the approach to transport that is set out in this Section and
particularly welcome the measures that are set out in Policy Tl for improving city
centre accessibility.

¢ We have the following detailed comments to make on the content of Section 23:-

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes
252 | Policy T Several existing public rights of way, such | Policy T1
Criterion vi as the network of snickleways, are a key Criterion vi add
element of York’s historic character. The | to the end:-
Policy should make it clear that the loss of | “Extinguishment
such rights of way will not be permitted. of public rights of
way which
contribute to the
special character
of the historic city
will not be
permitted”.
257 | Policy T3, We support the proposals to enhance the | -
final Grade II* Station and its setting.
Paragraph
262 | Policy Té, We support the requirement that higher | -
Criterion ii density development should not have an
adverse impact upon the historic
environment of the surrounding area.
266 | Policy T11 We welcome the intention to review the | Amend
extent and function of the footstreets accordingly
across the City centre. The extensions of
the footstreets to cover Fossgate is
welcomed but should also be extended to
encompass Goodramgate, Duncombe
Place and Piccadilly as originally proposed
in the AAP for the City Centre. This

5 S



Page 92

o
ENGLISH HERITAGE

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes

would help improve the setting of the
historic buildings in theses areas, and is
likely to enhance the visitor experience of
these parts of the City.

We also support the proposals to
revitalise the environment of Micklegate
and its connecting streets. This historic
thoroughfare into the City at present has
numerous vacant premises and is in need
of investment to improve its vitality.

Question 24.1

* We support the proposed approach and guidance to communications infrastructure
especially insofar as they seek to safeguard the special character and setting of the
historic city.

¢  We have the following detailed comments to make on the content of Section 24:-

Page | Section Comments Suggested Changes

272 | Policy CII, We support the statement that proposals | -
Criterion iv | for communications infrastructure will
only be supported where there will be no
significant adverse impacts upon the
landscape character, setting, views
heritage assets or Green Belt objectives.
This will help to ensure that those
elements which contribute to the
character of York are retained.

Question 25.1

e We support the proposed approach and guidance to infrastructure and developer
contributions. We particularly welcome the intention to use such funding to help secure
public realm improvements, protection and improvement of the historic environment,
and for Green Infrastructure including public open space.

Other comments

e The Proposals Map should also show the following heritage assets:-
o Conservation Areas
o Historic Parks and Gardens
o Scheduled Monuments

- 50 -



Page 93

T
ENGLISH HERITAGE

If you have any queries about any of the matters raised above or would like to discuss
anything further, please do not hesitate to contact me.

™

\ \\
Yours faithfully,

-~ (‘}\

\

\
\

lan Smith k

Historic Environment Planning Adviser (Yorkshire)
Telephone: 01904 601977

e-mail: jan.smith@english-heritage.org.uk

-51-



’ Page 94
D. 3 J

Strudwick, Caroline

From: Leung, Meryl [meryl.leung@environment-agency.gov.uk]
Sent: 31 July 2013 16:53

To: localplan@york.gov.uk

Cc: julian.sturdy. mp@parliament.uk

Subject: City of York Local Plan Preferred Options — June 2013
Attachments: Final EA response.pdf

Please find attached the Environment Agency’s response to the above consultation.

Kind regards

Meryl Leung MRTPI
Sustainable Places — Planning Advisor

Tel: 01904 822607 (Internal 728 2607)
Email: meryl.leung@environment-agency.gov.uk

~~=nvironment Agency

\ _overdale|House
Amy Johnslson Way
Clifton Moor
York YO30 4GZ

Part of the Environment Agency's Yorkshire and North East Region

Informatiion in this message may be confidential and may be legally privileged. If you
have regeived this message by mistake, please notify the sender immediately, delete it
and do rot copy it to anyone else.

We have |checked this email and its attachments for viruses. But you should still check
any attachment before opening it.

We may have to make this message and any reply to it public if asked to under the
Freedom |[of Information Act, Data Protection Act or for litigation. Email messages and
attachments sent to or from any Environment Agency address may also be accessed by
_someone |[other than the sender or recipient, for business purposes.




Mr,
Int
Cit

Planning & Sustainable Development

Page 95

Environment
Agency

Martin Grainger - Head of
egrated Strategy
y of York Council

West Offices Station Rise

Yo

rk Our ref: RA/2012/121344/CS-

YO16GA 01/PO1-LO1

Your ref: No reference

Date: 31 July 2013

Dear Mr Grainger

Cit

Th

I'h
un

Un

Th
fin
si

y of York Local Plan Preferred Options June 2013
ank you for referring the above consultation which was received on the 6 June 2013.

ave attempted to answer the questions as set out under the sections in the Local Plan
der the following sub-headings within the Environment Agency’s remit:

¢ Management of water resources

e Flood risk

¢ Groundwater and contaminated land

e Waste

fortunately this makes it quite repetitive which | apologise for in advance.

is is followed by comments made from reviewing the Sustainability Appraisal. Then
lly specific flood risk comments to the strategic housing sites that have come forward
ce the previous Core Strategy consultation process in 2011.

We believe that the management of water resources in the Local Plan Preferred Options

ne
do

WWVe
vie
ad

Sh
ple

Yo

Me
Su

eds to be fully addressed now so that when it gets to the point of submission, the
cument will be found to be sound.

5 would very much welcome the opportunity to discuss with you our comments with a
w to ensuring the finalised Local Plan submitted to the Planning Inspectorate
equately addressed the objectives of the Water Framework Directive.

ould you require any additional information, or wish to discuss these matters further,
ase contact me on the number below.

urs sincerely

ryl Leung MRTPI
stainable Places — Planning Advisor




Page 96

Tel: 01904 822607
Fax: 01904 822649
Email: meryl.leung@environment-agency.gov.uk




Page 97

Local Plan Preferred Options

SECTION 1: STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK

1.13 Local Strategic Context

We are pleased to see the objective of making York a leading environmentally friendly city

included.

1.14 iv.

Th

s ambition of using development to improve the environmental sustainability of the city

is aspirational and in accordance with national policy.

SECTION 2: SPATIAL PORTRAIT

2.1
We

5 Green Infrastructure
> are pleased to see that the importance of green infrastructure to the sustainability of

the city is recognised. However, more should be said regarding the need to increase green

inf
bri

rastructure, specifically within more urban areas, and the wider social benefits this could
ng.

2.20 Green Infrastructure

Gr
wh
ing
infi
ha

SE

Qu
ap

Ma
We
clir
me
dis
ad
Dir
de
be

ain

By

eat emphasis is placed throughout this section on the high quality green infrastructure
ich is already present within the city. However, looking forward, it would be prudent to
lude a short section which highlights the need, and the desire, to expand green
rastructure provision within the city centre, linking existing green infrastructure with new
bitats and new green space within urban areas.

CTION 3: SPATIAL VISION AND OUTCOMES

estion 3.1~ this is our preferred approach to the vision do you think this is
propriate or should one of the alternatives or a different approach be taken?

nagement of water resources
> welcome that the document acknowledges broad priorities of sustainability such as
nate change. However, we consider that reference to the efficient use and effective
nagement of water resources, being a valuable and important resource within the
trict is lacking in paragraph 3.21. Neither water resources nor water quality are
dressed in the preferred approach and no reference is made to the Water Framework
ective (WFD) and the obligation under this legislation to protect and prevent
terioration of the water environment. With this mind, we would like another bullet point to
added to paragraph 3.21:

‘Safeguard water resources and to protect and improve water quality with an overall
n of getting waterbodies to ‘good’ status under the Water Framework Directive’.

including the strategic bullet point above, it will help support the very likely compatible

impact for Sustainability Appraisal objective 10 — improve water efficiency and quality. We

w

O

uld like to point out that the objectives for WFD can be summarised as follows:

1. achieve ‘good’ status for all water bodies by 2015 (or later dates of 2021 or 2027
subject to criteria set out in the Directive);

2. prevent deterioration in the status of water bodies;

3. reduce pollution from priority polluting substances;




Page 98

prevent and/ or limit poliution input into groundwater;

conserve aquatic ecosystems, habitats and species;

mitigate the effects of floods and droughts; and

promote sustainable use of water as a natural resource, and balance abstraction
and recharge.

No ok

The need for growth does not necessarily have to have a detrimental impact on the need

to protect and enhance the natural and built environment as mitigation measures from
development can help to achieve the above objectives when developed in a holistic
manner.

The WFD objectives also help achieve other sustainability framework objectives such as
(improve health and well-being of York's population), 8 (conserve or enhance green

infrastructure, bio-diversity, geodiversity, flora and fauna for accessible high quality and
connected natural environment) and 9 (use land resources efficiently and safeguard the

quality).

Groundwater and contaminated land

We are pleased to see that paragraph 2.66 of section 2: Spatial Portrait in the Local Pla
acknowledges former land contamination as an environmental constraint. Unfortunately
this is not set out in this section which is the spatial vision and outcomes. This is
highlighted in the last (8") bullet point of paragraph 3.21, natural resources and
environmental protection which states;

=

=)

‘Ensure that any development will not introduce any risk to the health of current and

future residents’.

This focuses on human health and disregards whether the environment is being polluted
from previous contaminants already embedded on the site. We would like to see a more
sustainable and holistic approach and suggest this is reworded to the following:

‘Ensure that any development will not introduce any risk to the health of current and

future residents, property nor surrounding environment’.

Flood risk

We are satisfied that the flood risk principle of the technical guidance to the NPPF (bullet
point three) is acknowledged strategically, however the word ‘appropriate’ in this sentence

is misleading. We would suggest this bullet point is reworded to:

‘Ensure that new development is not subject to unacceptable levels of flood risk,
does not result in increased flood risk elsewhere and, where possible, achieves
reductions in flood risk overall’.

The use of the word ‘acceptable’ in the technical guidance of the NPPF is used in context

of whether the proposed development use is suitable within a particular flood zone. This
why we've recommended the bullet point so that it relates to the flood zone compatibility
explained later in the flood risk policy, FR1. Including the term, reductions in flood risk

overall, is key within the policy as it is using the opportunities offered by new development

to reduce the causes and impacts of flooding.

s

We strongly recommend that a sequential approach'to the development of sites is included

in a flood risk policy. This should be made clear throughout the Local Plan so that
developers are aware they must take a sequential approach to the layout of their
development, locating it in the areas of lowest risk within the site.




Page 99

Biodiversity

The fourth priority to “Protect the Environment’ is not an aspirational aim, and does not tie
in With the Strategy for York vision of “being a leading environmentally friendly city’. We
beE/eve that a better priority to take account of this would be to ‘Protect and enhance the
environment. Paragraph 3.19 for the natural environment, this sentence is very vague and
ref'ers only to the enhancement of green infrastructure. No mention is made of the

asrration to increase green infrastructure provision, which must be addressed.

SECTION 4: SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

Question 4.1 — this is our preferred approach to sustainable development. Do you
think this is appropriate or should one of the alternatives or a different approach be

tal'<en?

Management of water resources

We are disappointed to see that the efficient use and effective management of water
resources, being a valuable and important resource within the district is lacking in policy
SD1 under ‘Protect the environment'.

Neither water resources nor water quality are addressed in the preferred approach and no
reference is made to the Water Framework Directive (WFD) and the obligation under this
legislation to protect and prevent deterioration of the water environment. Having examined
appendix 6 of the Sustainability Appraisal (SA) for this approach, objective 10 is currently
identified as having ‘No significant effect or clear link’. We believe there is a missed
opportunity in achieving a ‘likely positive impact for environmental objective 10 (improve
water quality and quality) from excluding a policy to conserve and enhance the water

en ironment. In addition, it is misleading within section 26: delivery and monitoring of the
Local Plan, table 26.1 shows that SA objective 10 has been included which contradicts
appendix 6. We will explain this in detail within section 21 of the Local Plan.

Flood risk

We would like to reiterate our suggested wording again from the earlier question which is:
‘Ensure that new development is not subject to unacceptable levels of flood risk,

does not result in increased flood risk elsewhere and, where possible, achieves

reductions in flood risk overall.

W? strongly recommend that a sequential approach to the development of sites is included
in GﬂOOd risk policy. This should be made clear throughout the Local Plan so that
developers are aware they must take a sequential approach to the layout of their
de’klelopment, locating it in the areas of lowest risk within the site.

Waste

We are pleased to see waste being addressed under natural resources and environmental
protection which encourages waste reduction and the provision of appropriate sites for
wgste management. SA objective 11 of appendix 6 should be updated from ‘no significant
effect or clear link’ to having a ‘positive impact likely' in line with the Planning Policy
Stztement 10: Planning for sustainable waste management which remains in place until
the National Waste Management Plan is published.

Groundwater and contaminated land

The topic of land contamination is incorporated in section 21: environmental quality
however is not referenced in the third bullet point under Natural resources and
environmental protection. We would like this to be reworded to the following:




Page 100

‘Improve air quality, former contaminants are appropriately remediated and limit
environmental nuisance including noise, vibration, light, dust, odour, fumes and emissions
from development’.

Common pollutants such as asbestos, hydrocarbons (such as oils and fuels), hazardous
heavy metals and solvents might be present in either the soil or groundwater or both.
Activities on site have the potential to mobilise any contamination and present a risk to
human health and the environment.

From the accompanying sustainability appraisal, we believe there is a missed opportunity
in achieving a ‘likely positive impact’ for environmental objective 10: improve water quality
and quality from excluding a reference to land contamination which enhances the water
environment.

SECTION 5: SPATIAL STRATEGY

Question 5.1 — this is our preferred option to the spatial strategy do you think this|is
appropriate or should one of the alternatives or a different approach be taken?

Management of water resources

We are disappointed to see that the efficient use and effective management of water
resources is lacking in this section for example policy SS1: York sub area. Part ix of poli
SS1 relates to adjacent local authorities and as river catchments often dissects through
more than one local planning authority’s boundaries, water resource should be
acknowledged. From a water management point of view the River Ouse falls within a
number of different water catchments; Swale, Ure, Nidd and Upper Ouse .

L)
<

We would suggest the following wording for part ix:

‘Development within the City of York area will not lead to environmental related
problems such as flood risk, air and water quality, waste and transport congestion for
adjacent local authority areas’.

Overall neither water resources nor water quality are addressed in the preferred approach
and no reference is made to the Humber River Basin Management (for which the River
Ouse, Foss and Derwent fall into) under the Water Framework Directive (WFD) legislation.
WFD’s main objectives are to protect and enhance the water environment and ensure the
sustainable use of water resources for economic and social development.

Having examined appendix 6 of the Sustainability Appraisal (SA) for this approach,
objective 10 is currently identified as having ‘No significant effect or clear link’. We believe
there is a missed opportunity in achieving a ‘likely positive impact for environmental
objective 10 (improve water quality and quality) from acknowledging the need to conserve
and enhance the water environment.

Waste
We are disappointed to see that waste has not been addressed within the spatial strategy.
It appears that no waste document was used as a key evidence base, for example we

would expect to see “Let’s talk rubbish: A municipal waste management strategy for the
City of York and North Yorkshire 2006 — 2026" as it covers the period of the Local Plan.
Strategically this document should be used to influence waste reduction and the provision
of appropriate sites for waste management.




Page 101

SA objective 11 of appendix 6 should be updated from ‘no significant effect or clear link’ to
having a ‘positive impact likely’ in line with the Planning Policy Statement 10: Planning for
sustainable waste management which remains in place until the National Waste
Management Plan is published. In addition this will support table 26.1 of section 26:
delivery and monitoring of the Local Plan, which shows that SA objective 11 has been
included.

We would suggest the following wording for part ix:

‘Development within the City of York area will not lead to environmental related
problems such as flood risk, air and water quality, waste and transport congestion for
adjacent local authority areas’.

Flood risk

As|set out in the Local Context box, we support the statement made on page 51 that:
“To reduce future damage to property and infrastructure and maximise public
safety, greenfield areas subject to high flood risk (Flood Risk Zones 3a and 3b) are
considered inappropriate for future development for housing or employment.”

We would therefore expect to see this approach adopted when allocating and developing
sites for housing or employment, and as such it should be incorporated into policy.
SECTION 11: AIDING CHOICE IN THE HOUSING MARKET

Question 11.1 — this is our preferred approach to aiding choice in the housing

market do you think this is appropriate or should one of the alternatives of a
different approach be taken?

Flood risk

we strongly recommend that policy ACHM4 add another bullet point to the first six to state
that sites for gypsies, travellers and showpeople will be located outside of Flood Zone 3.
This is because Flood Zone 3 is inappropriate for this type of development due to the
associated flood risk and vulnerability classifications. Caravans and mobile homes
intended for permanent residential use are classed as ‘highly vulnerable’. Reference
should be made to the council’s Strategic Flood Risk Assessment and its associated
tables 4.1 and 4.2 that would support this bullet point.

SECTION 17: GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE

Question 17 - this is our preferred option to Green Infrastructure do you think this
is appropriate or should one of the alternatives or a different approach be taken?

Policy G11: Green Infrastructure

We are pleased that green infrastructure has been recognised as an important and
valuable asset, and the Humber River Basin Management Plan has been identified as a
key document/strategy within part ii of policy G11.

We support the Council’s aspirations to enhancing green infrastructure, but believe that
there is room for improvement as the current draft lacks direction and gives no confidence
that the measures outlined in the policy would achieve the Council’s objectives for green
infrastructure. One key failing is point vi. which states:

“requiring applicants to submit green infrastructure assessments with all but minor
applications”.




Page 102

Neither the policy nor the supporting text defines a green infrastructure assessment or
indicates whether applicants would be required to show conservation of existing asset o
indeed expansion or enhancement. Currently this policy fails to secure any meaningful
improvement or show positive planning. In order to bring the policy in line with NPPF, paint
vi. for example, could be rewritten as:
“requiring applicants to submit a green infrastructure assessment showing how the
development would contribute fo the conservation and expansion of green infrastructure
within the city”.

—

We believe it should be made clear in this policy that green infrastructure have a dual use
as flood storage areas for river or surface water flows. This applies to both existing gree
infrastructure and new proposed infrastructure. We note that paragraph 17.2 mentions
how green space will help to mitigate climate change and contribute to flood mitigation. |n
addition, this policy links very well with policy FR2: surface water management as
paragraph 19.6 refer to use of green roofs in the different types of sustainable drainage
systems available.

=

The policy should also reference green infrastructure in relation to an intention for green
walls, roofs and soft borders. We would like to bring your attention to Sheffield Council’s
green roof policy in their draft City Policies DPD as a guide. Green roofs can signiﬁcantlL/
improve the environmental performance of buildings by:-

¢ Reducing the quantity of surface water run-off therefore helping to reduce the risk
flooding.

Improve the quality of surface water run-off.

Improve air-quality and reducing urban heat island effect.
Improve biodiversity; and

Create higher visual qualities

As any green roofs are going to be on new developments which would require planning
permission, a green roof policy could be monitored and delivered as shown below.

Policy Targets indicators Key How will the | Which SA
delivery policy be objectives
partners implemented | this policy

? meets

Section Number of % green Council in | Planning 4,7,8,12

17:Green new buildings | roofs partnership | applications | and 13.

Infrastructure | failing to incorporated | with and

incorporate into new private sustainability
green roofs - 0 | development. | developer. | statements.

We feel that there is great potential to enhance and increase green infrastructure provis
within the city and would welcome the opportunity to work closer with the Council to
produce a Green Infrastructure policy which better reflects the aspirations and unique
opportunities which the city offers.

Policy GI2: Biodiversity
As with policy Gl1, elements of this policy, specifically the first two bullet points, are vag

and would be difficult to enforce or monitor. However, the policy is aspirational and shows

that the council is seeking to enhance biodiversity. The third bullet point, relating to on s
impacts, does need redrafting to reflect the objectives of both the Council and NPPF in

e

te




Page 103

furthering the enhancement of biodiversity. Instead of seeking “no net loss” the Council

should be seeking a net gain in biodiversity. To achieve this, the policy should be redrafted
as
“results in a net gain fo biodiversity, appropriate with the scale of the development’.

We believe it would significantly further the aims of the Council with regard to protecting
and enhancing the environment.

The remainder of this bullet point also needs to be updated to better reflect the hierarchy
set out in paragraph 118 of NPPF, as the current wording gives no regard to the primary
method of biodiversity protection, that of avoidance. This bullet point could be rewritten as:

J “results in a net gain to biodiversity. In the first instance, developments should be
located in areas which do not impact on biodiversity. Where this is not possible, adequate
mi#igation should be incorporated. If this is unachievable, compensation must be provided.
If j‘?is cannot be incorporated, development will not be supported”.

Policy Gl6: Green Corridors
Wé fully support this policy and believe that it is robust, aspirational and deliverable.
S%CTION 19: FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT

Question 19.1 — this is our preferred approach to flood risk do you think this is
appropriate or should one of the alternatives or a different approach be taken?

We generally support the contents of this section and the policies FR1 and FR2, with the
following specific comments:

-

F
Rather than quoting the NPPF tables verbatim, policy FR1 should make reference to the
reT%vant parts, and also its own Strategic Flood Risk Assessment to inform developers
re%arding flood risk, and surface water requirements. By taking out table 19.1 of policy

FR1, it frees up four pages and makes the policy easier to read.

It is briefly mentioned in paragraph 19.3 in the second bullet point that where possible,
de{/elopment will reduce flood risk overall. However we believe the council should be
taking a more positive stance and seek betterment from developers to mitigate against
future flood risk. This could be in the form of restricting new development on greenfield
sites to the existing run-off rate from a lower order storm event, e.g. a 1 in 1 year storm,
and the provision of attenuation storage up to and including a 1 in 100 year storm event,
plus an appropriate allowance for climate change.

Within the Local context of section 19, reference is made to flood risk legislation and the
Environment Agency’s Catchment Flood Management Plans. We support the inclusion of
this information however references should be made to:

e City of York Council’'s emerging Local Flood Risk Management Strategy and

e Derwent Catchment Flood Management Plan

In regards to the Catchment Flood Management Plans, a number of actions of relevance
to planning have been omitted. We recommend that further actions, for example those
associated with flood resilience and sustainable drainage are included. It is also important
that a caveat is made regarding the future of these plans. Under the Flood Risk
Rigulations, we will continue to work with City of York Council to review the existing
actions within these plans. This will result in more site specific actions being developed.




Page 104

These actions will replace those published in the Catchment Flood Management Plans
and will be available for consultation in summer 2014.

Paragraph 19.2 — this paragraph states the process used for sequential testing a site bu
does not specially state whether or not a site which contains various different flood zone
should adopt a sequential approach to its layout. We believe this should be included wit
policy FR1:

‘A sequential approach to the layout of the site must be taken, and that
development must be located within the area of lowest risk. Areas of greater risk (i.e.
Flood Zones 2 or 3) should be utilised for green infrastructure spaces.’

This would tie in with the statement mentioned on p51 of the Local Plan that residential

employment development on Greenfield sites would be inappropriate within Flood Zones

3a and 3b as shown below:

“To reduce future damage to property and infrastructure and maximise public
safety, greenfield areas subject to high flood risk (Flood Risk Zones 3a & 3b) are
considered inappropriate for future development for housing or employment.”

FR2

—

hin

We support Policy FR2 where you state that for development on brownfield sites that there

should be a 30% reduction in surface water run-off.

We are of the opinion that for both brownfield and greenfield sites, the standards of

attenuation storage should be provided, and included as part of the policy and recommend

the following wording:
‘Sufficient attenuation and long term storage should be provided to accommodat
least a 1 in 30 year storm. Any design should also ensure that storm water resulting fro

at
a

1 in 100 year event, plus 30% to account for climate change, and surcharging the drainage

system can be stored on the site without risk to people or property and without overflow
into a watercourse.’

We also suggest that you consider how you will incorporate Sustainable Drainage
Approval Boards (SABS) into this policy regarding surface water, as these are likely to b
in place by the time the Local Plan reaches the Submission stage.

We support the paragraph in FR2 stating ‘Measures fo restrict surface water run-off rate
shall be designed and implemented to prevent an unacceptable risk to contamination of|
groundwater however we believe that this can easily be incorporated into the sustainab
drainage section. The next sentence ‘The acceptable level of this risk shall be agreed w;
the Environment Agency’ is too prescriptive for a policy and the onus should be placed ¢
the developer to demonstrate this especially as they have to explore the technical
feasibility and viability of various forms of SuDS. Perhaps a more fitting sentence would
be:

‘The type of SuDS used should be appropriate to the site in question, and should
ensure that there is no pollution of the water environment including both ground and
surface waters.’

SECTION 20: CLIMATE CHANGE

ng

S

e
th
DN

Question 20.1 - this is our preferred approach to climate change do you think this is

appropriate or should one of the alternatives or a different approach be taken?




Page 105

M Inagement of water resources

We have no issue with the preferred option chosen however part A of policy CC2:
Sustainable design and construction only mentions cutting carbon and energy efficiency.
We consider more should be done to recognise the importance of water efficiency and
demand in the future especially when bearing in mind climate change. Water is a precious
resource. Climate change predictions show that our summers are likely to become hotter
and drier and that the likelihood of droughts will increase. Increased demand on our water
supplies from new development and new homes will add to the pressure on our water
resources. Water efficiency can help to meet greenhouse gas emissions targets - if society
uses less water, less needs to be treated, delivered, collected and treated again as waste.
All|of these processes use energy. Less water means less energy used, and fewer
greenhouse gases released. The efficient use of water resources is therefore important as
a climate change adaptation and mitigation measure. Planning authorities have a key role
in managing water resources via spatial plans that contain policies promoting efficient use
of water resources. .

SECTION 21: ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Question 21.1 — this is our preferred approach to environmental quality do you think
thas is appropriate or should one of the alternatives or a different approach be
taken?

Canserving and enhancing the water environment

Altbough we agree with the preferred approach taken, unfortunately water resources and
waﬁter quality are not clearly addressed throughout the plan. Water efficient buildings are
loasely covered within the Local Plan but there is no real commitment towards promoting
Wj'ter efficient fixture and fittings is made.

The Local plan does not make adequate provision for or policies aimed at protection of the
water environment. In particular the plan does not make reference to the Water
Framework Directive and the obligation under this legislation to protect and prevent
deterioration of the water environment. As the key piece of legislation now governing the
w%er environment across the EU it should form an important part of the natural
environment policies to ensure protection of the water environment.

Unlder this directive River Basin Management Plans have been produced setting out plans
forbhe protection, improvement and sustainable use of the water environment. The
Environment Agency is the competent authority in England and Wales for implementing

th ' directive however the necessary actions require the involvement of many stakeholders
including local government. The Humber River Basin Management Plan was published on
313 December 2009. Given the importance of the WFD legislation we feel it is necessary

that the York Core strategy reflects measures outlined in the Humber RBMP.

Annexe C of the Humber River Basin Management Plan (RBMP) identifies pressures and
actions where local authorities have a role. These include the promotion of sustainable
drainage systems, tackling drainage issues in areas without mains drainage (village
dréins, septic tanks, avoiding proliferation of private sewage treatment etc.), street and
dr Iin management, promoting ecological awareness, control of non-native invasive
species and habitat improvements in river corridors.

The need to have appropriate policies and measures in place to prevent deterioration of
watercourses is of importance within York given the rural and urban nature of the local
authority area and the risk of contamination and pollution of its watercourses.




Page 106

Regulation 17 of the Water Environment (WFD)(E&W) Regulations 2003 places a duty on

each public body including local planning authorities to ‘have regard to’ river basin
management plans (RBMP), this should be referred to in the strategy. York sits wholly
within the Humber RBMP, reference needs to be made to the plan and measures within
that are a requirement of the LA.

A water quality policy would ensure applicants assess the implications of their proposals
on water quality, including mitigation of negative impacts where necessary. Proposals are

encouraged to improve water quality and physical habitat, particularly in areas where

it

watercourses are below expected standards. Any works near watercourses should actively

seek to improve the morphology of the river as well as improve the water quality. Where|a

proposal causes physical modifications to any waterbody or the discharge of polluted
water into a waterbody an assessment will need to be carried out to ensure compliance
with the EU Water Framework Directive objective to prevent or mitigate against
deterioration of that waterbody.

With this in mind, we would strongly recommend that another policy specific to the water

environment is included in this section which considers rivers and water resources
separate to flooding. They need to be recognised as a natural resource which need
protecting. There is a small section on water availability which is related to Water

Company Plans. Yorkshire Water is currently rewriting their Water Resource Management

Plan and it may be worth contacting them to get an up to date picture of their resources.
The York area sits within two areas of water management — the Swale, Ure, Nidd and
Upper Ouse catchment and the Derwent catchment. The Environment Agency produce

Catchment Abstraction Management Strategies for both these areas which were update
earlier this year and are available on our website. We would expect an overview of wate

availability to be included in the natural resources section of the plan.
We would strongly recommend that a water environment policy is shown in blue below:

Proposals will be supported which:
e conserve and enhance:
o the natural geomorphology of watercourses,
o water quality; and
o the ecological value of the water environment, including watercourse
corridors; and
» contribute towards achieving ‘good status’ under the Water Framework Directive
the district's surface and groundwater bodies; and
« manage water demand and improve water efficiency through appropriate water
conservation techniques including rainwater harvesting and grey-water recycling;
and
 improve water quality through the incorporation of appropriately constructed and
maintained Sustainable Drainage Systems.

Please note that other local authorities in Yorkshire and Humber have successfully
integrated specific water policies into their Local Plans and we are happy to continue
dialogue with you following this consultation.

Groundwater and contaminated land
The Local plan does not adequately address the management and protection of the wat
environment, including rivers and groundwater. It should also incorporate the requireme

-~ O

n

er
nts

and objectives of policies like the Water Framework Directive (WFD) and include actions to

improve the resilience to impacts of Climate Change. Particularly the WFD is now the k
legislation governing the water environment and requires that all surface water bodies a

ey
nd




Page 107

groundwater bodies achieve ‘good’ status in terms of water quality and to prevent any
deterioration of current quality and ecological status.

The city of York is situated on top of Sherwood Sandstone, which is classified by the
Enyvironment Agency as a Principal aquifer. This means that the aquifer provides a high
le 'el of water storage and supports water supply and river base flow on a strategic scale.
Thle area of the city is overlain by a mixture of superficial drift of varying type and depth,
wt-}ich protect the principal aquifer from direct contamination.

The Sherwood Sandstone aquifer belongs to two different Catchment Abstraction
Ménagement Strategies (CAMS). According to the Wharfe and Lower Ouse CAMS there
is festricted groundwater availability on the lower Sherwood sandstone and there has been
identified high risk of saline intrusion in that part of the aquifer. Therefore additional
abstraction licensing might be allowed depending on the local groundwater conditions.

Groundwater supplies in England and Wales are under pressure from pollution and from
the ever greater demand for water from an increasing population — all against the
background of the threat posed by climate change and its likely effects (including drought).

In the city of York area, groundwater provides essential water supply for various industrial
and agricultural demands (such as the golf course and the racecourse in the city) and
provides base flow for the rivers Ouse, Foss and Derwent and smaller becks in the area.
Additionally groundwater boreholes have been designed to supplement the river Ouse in
case of severe drought events, when the river is at risk of running dry and the potable
ther supply is threatened.

Groundwater supplies in the city of York are under pressure from pollution and from the
ever greater demand for water from an increasing population — all against the background
of the threat posed by climate change and likely drought events. Some development and
uses of land threaten the quality and availability of groundwater. This means that land-use
planning policies and procedures play a significant role in protecting groundwater
effectively.

Groundwater quality can affect the quality of surface water. Groundwater is also used as a
resource for private dwellings and in industry, agriculture and leisure. Our surface waters
are closely linked with groundwater and therefore protection of both should be assured.
Pr'eventing pollution is by far the most sustainable and cost-effective way of maintaining
good groundwater quality. Pollution may only become apparent much later when, for
example, the groundwater quality at an abstraction borehole is affected, or when
contaminated baseflow has a noticeable effect on the chemical quality or ecology of a
watercourse. This time lag means that a large volume of aquifer can become polluted
be(ore the impacts are readily noticeable

quelopers proposing schemes that pose a risk to groundwater resources, quality or
athractions must provide an acceptable hydrogeological risk assessment (HRA) to the
Environment Agency and the local planning authority. If the HRA identifies unacceptable
risks to groundwater then the developer must propose mitigation measures to reduce the
risk of pollution and to enhance the water quality. Developers proposing schemes at sites
with a high probability of land contamination should follow the guidelines of policy EQ3 of
the city plan.




Page 108

SECTION 22: WASTE AND MINERALS

Question 22.1 - this is our preferred approach to waste and minerals do you think
this is appropriate or should one of the alternatives or a different approach be
taken?

We are supportive of the preferred approach and are satisfied that policy WM1 is a good
summary of the aspirations on moving waste up the hierarchy and enabling waste
prevention, reuse and recycling.

Questions 22.2 - do you think that our preferred approach of including strategic
policies in the City of York Local Plan and more detailed policies in the Joint City of
York, North Yorkshire and North Yorkshire Moors Waste and Minerals Local Plan is
appropriate?

We believe this is appropriate having strategic policies in the Local Plan then detailed
policies in the joint minerals and waste plan. Acting as a statutory consultee on the first
consultation on the Minerals and waste joint plan earlier this month, we are confident that
detailed policies in the joint plan will address issues within the Environment Agency'’s
remit.

Question 22.3 — do you think that the waste management and mineral policies
provide the appropriate strategic direction for the more detailed policies which will
be included in the Joint City of York, North Yorkshire and North Yorkshire Moors
Waste and Minerals Local Plan?

We are supportive of the strategic direction of the waste and minerals policies which we
believe will fit with the draft joint waste and minerals plan which is currently under
development.

SECTION 25: INFRASTRUCTURE AND DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS

Question25.1 — this is our preferred approach to infrastructure and developer
contributions do you think this is appropriate or should one of the alternatives or a
different approach be taken?

Flood risk

Policy IDC1 should make specific reference to developers being required to provide
contributions towards new flood alleviation schemes, the long-term maintenance of
existing defences, and habitat creation (dual use of green infrastructure as flood storage &
habitat) through the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). We would especially encourage
City of York Council to seek developer contributions for any proposed development withjn
the Foss Basin towards the maintenance / improvement of existing defences (e.g. the
Foss Barrier).

SECTION 26: DELIVERY AND MONITORING
Whilst there are no specific questions asked for this section of the Local Plan, we would
strongly recommend that the following targets are also included to support the success of

the proposed policies in the Local Plan.

Section 21: Environmental quality




Page 109

Policy Targets indicators Key How will the | Which SA
delivery | policy be objectives
partners | implemented | this policy

? meets

Sectijon No pollutants No EA Planning 2,8,10

21:Environmen | being released | deterioration applications | and 15

tal quality into local in the WFD and

- EQ3: land watercourses status of local sustainability

contamination | from developers | watercourses statements.

remediating in the
land catchment.
contamination.
OTHER ISSUES
POLICY SS4: STRATEGIC SITES DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES

We

fo

ap
wo

ap

Se
Du
its

ren
pa
ca

nu
Yo

Str
We
fon

 are pleased to see that there is part iv. of this policy which will ensure the highest

standards of sustainability are embedded at all stages of the development. This is then
Il

owed by paragraph 5.7 confirming the council’s ambition of an eco-settlement. However
pendix 6 of the Sustainability Appraisal for policy SS4 is worded less positively. We

uld like this to be corrected so it matches and is line with the proposed policy to ensure
ositive objective and outcome.

ction 7: York Central

e to the majority of the site being dominated by the former British Sugar buildings and
previous operations, regulators often find it difficult for such a large site to be

nediated properly when it comes down to individual developers dealing with piecemeal
rts of the site - particularly as what may be satisfactory for one part of the site may

uise complications for another developer. For this reason, we would prefer alternative
mber 3 which is provide detailed local criteria/site allocations to guide development in
rk Central, or this to be covered in a Supplementary Planning Document.

ategic housing sites
> have specific comments to make on the strategic housing allocations that have come
ward in this consultation which can be found at the end of this letter.




Page 110

Sustainability Appraisal
Flood Risk

Figure 2.3: Relevant Plans and Programmes

Regional - There is a key document missing from the regional evidence which is the
Humber River Basin Management Plan (2009). This has been prepared under the Wate
Framework Directive (WFD), which requires all countries throughout the European Unio
to manage the water environment to consistent standards. Please note the River Ouse
through the York District falls into the Swale, Ure, Nidd and Upper Ouse catchment with
the Humber RBMP.

Local - There is a plan which has been missed from the local evidence and this is the Ci

of York Council’s Surface Water Management Plan (December 2012). This is the basis for

the emerging Local Flood Risk Strategy which City of York Council, as the Lead Local
Flood Authority) now has a legal duty to produce since the Flood and Water Manageme
Act 2010 came into place. In the absence of the Local Flood Risk Strategy, we would lik
to draw attention to the inclusion of the Surface Water Management Plan in this figure.

We would like to bring to your attention that the River Ouse Flood Risk Management
Strategy is not a statutory document as it was never formally approved by the Environm

-

Agency nor City of York Council. We would suggest this strategy is omitted from figure 2.3.

Paragraph 2.5.53
This paragraph fails to specifically acknowledge flooding from surface water and solely

concentrates on fluvial sources (from the river). CoYC’s Surface Water Management Plan

outlining the preferred strategy for the management of surface water throughout the city
should be referenced as this establishes a long term action plan and to influence future

strategy development for surface water maintenance, investment, planning and engagemen

Water resources

Water, flooding and flood risk

Paragraph 2.3.51

We noticed that in paragraph 2.3.51, our publication ‘Swale, Ure, Nidd and Upper Ouse
Catchment Abstraction Management Strategy (CAMS) dated 2004 is used as the baseli
however this was updated in February 2013. This should be corrected as the 2013
publication supersedes the 2004 issue and gives the most up to date information for wa
resources. Although the CAMS document is mentioned, the contents of figure 2.13 only
summaries the Humber River Basin Management Plan (RBMP) and there is no
explanation of water resources related data within this chapter.

r"

ter

We are pleased to see that data from the Humber River Basin Management Plan has been

pulled together to form figure 2.13 however the stand alone data is not explained nor does

it give any context into how it fits into the baseline data and its relevance to the
improvement of the water quality in the catchment in the Local Plan. For example, what

measures in the Local Plan will be taken to increase the percentage of the biological status

by more than half (up to 11%) for the Yorkshire Derwent catchment?

We would like further clarification on the data for the Derwent Humber (3™ row of table)
to our knowledge, there is no such catchment called that in the Humber RMBP.

Paragraph 2.3.43

Confusingly, water resource is mentioned earlier in paragraph 2.3.43 but without referrir’g

to the Swale, Ure, Nidd and Upper Ouse CAMS. CAMS relate to how water resources of a

QO

S




Page 111

ca chment will be managed and contribute to implementing the Water Framework
Dlrlectlve CAMS is measured at Assessment Points which are significant points on the
river and there are three Assessment Points that fall within the City of York. These
Assessment Points are located at Skelton GS, Foss and Naburn. Assessment Point 1 for
Na‘burn is the more significant out of the three as it is identified as having ‘restricted water
available’ for licensing.

We believe that this key issue has been missed off the baseline of 2.3.43 as the bullet
point states that ‘water resources is not likely to have a significant effect on York as the
ho sehold consumption has been built info Yorkshire Water's model'. However what if
non-domestic water intensive users want to locate in York or existing water intensive users
in ﬁhe district want to expand and thus need to abstract more water? This should be
discussed and clarified in the baseline data as water is particularly relevant to climate
change as trends for the UK are hotter, drier summers and warmer wetter winters, with
more extreme events such as drought.

Paragraph 2.3.53

The baseline data for flood risk in York city is quite poor as it is not based on any facts or
evidence other than a history of flooding from the River Ouse. It is important that all
somhrces of flooding within the district are properly acknowledged. Looking back at
appendlx 3, there is no acknowledgement of the River Foss, River Derwent, ordinary
watercourses in the district, tidal influences from the River Humber, groundwater sources
nor surface water. The updated 2013 Strategic Flood Risk Assessment and the City of
York’s Surface Water Management Plan adopted in 2012 should also be acknowledged.
By|adding the missing information to the baseline data, it will strengthen the flood risk
policies in the Local Plan.

The indicators used; number of flooding events and its magnitude to measure flooding are
also poor as these are not influenced by development. There should be an indicator of
critical infrastructure at risk, number of properties that have signed up to flood warning and
surface water indicators are needed.




Page 112

Flood risk comments to strategic housing sites

We would expect to see the guidances below used at the following allocations.

ST2 - Former civil service sports ground, Millfield Lane
ST3 — The Grainstores, Water Lane

ST4 - Land adjacent Hull Road and Grimston Bar

ST6 — Land east of Grimston Bar

ST10 - Land at Moor Lane, Woodthorpe

ST12 - Land at Manor Heath Road, Copmanthorpe
ST13 - Land at Moor Land, Copmanthorpe

ST14 - Land to north of Clifton Moor

Flood Zone 1 guidance

The allocations listed above lie entirely within Flood Zone 1. For any development site,
located in Flood Zone 1, that is 1 hectare in size or more, a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA)
will be required in line with the guidance contained in the National Planning Policy
Framework. This should pay particular attention to drainage. For further information /
guidance regarding the requirements for an FRA the applicant should refer to the
Environment Agency’s website.

Surface water management guidance

For all the proposed strategic housing allocations, there must be no increase in surface
water run-off from any site. As a minimum we would want to see any surface water
discharge restricted to the existing greenfield run-off rate. If not calculated, then the
greenfield run-off from a 1 in 1 year storm (1.4 litres/second/hectare) should be used. The
applicant must also provide sufficient attenuation and long term storage at least to
accommodate a 1 in 30 year storm. The design should also ensure that storm water
resulting from a 1 in 100 year event, plus 30% to account for climate change, and
surcharging the drainage system can be stored on the site without risk to people or
property and without overflowing into a watercourse.

We are keen to promote the use of Sustainable Drainage systems (SuDS) and draw
attention to Paragraph 103 of the National Planning Policy Framework. SuDS tackle
surface water run-off problems at source using features such as soakaways, permeabl
pavements, grassed swales, infiltration trenches, ponds and wetlands, and, green roofs to
attenuate flood peak flows, produce water quality improvements and environmental
enhancements. We seek to promote the use of SuDS techniques to this site and expec
the developer of the site to submit detailed investigations such that the use of SuDS has
been fully explored. Please find below a link to our green roof toolkit www.environment-
agency.gov.uk/business/sectors/91967.aspx

ST5 - York Central

The site lies within Flood Zones 1 and 2. There are known surface water and fluvial issyes

for this area. We are aware that a bid has been submitted by City of York Council as the
Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) for a study to identify options and steps to be taken,
which will require contributions from both City of York Council and developers. As this
action falls under the remit of the LLFA to carry out, we would suggest that no further
development take place on this site until such a time as the study and any required works
have been identified and completed, in order to mitigate against both fluvial and surface
water flooding. We recommend that our surface water management guidance and the
following sequential approach guidance are followed:




Page 113

Sequential approach guidance
A sequential approach to the site layout must be taken, with development steered to the
areas of lowest risk. If required, the sequential and exception tests must be passed.

ST7 - Land to the east of Metcalfe Lane

The site lies within Flood Zones 1, 2 and 3. Development must take a sequential approach
to the layout of the site in line with our sequential approach guidance. As there are large
areas of Flood Zone 1 we would expect to see all development located wholly within Flood
Zone 1, with the smaller areas of Flood Zones 2 and 3 being used for green/ public open
space. We recommend that our surface water management guidance is followed.

ST8 - Land north of Monks Cross

We are aware that City of York Council as LLFA is managing a study in conjunction with
the{ internal drainage board looking at South Beck. As this action falls under the remit of
the LLFA to carry out, we would suggest that no further development take place in this
location until the study has been undertaken, and any required works have been identified
and completed, in order to mitigate against fluvial and surface water flooding. We
recommend that our Flood Zone 1 and surface water management guidances are
followed.

ST9 - Land north of Haxby

The existing watercourse in this area, Westfield Beck, is constricted by the limited capacity
of an existing downstream culvert. We are aware that City of York Council as LLFA require
a study to be carried out on Westfield Beck in order for further development to take place
in the Haxby, Wigginton and New Earswick area. As this action falls under the remit of the
LLFA to carry out, we would suggest that no further development takes place on this site
until such a time as the study and any required works have been identified and completed,
in order to mitigate against both fluvial and surface water flooding. We recommend that our
Flood Zone 1 and surface water management guidances are followed.

This is especially important as run-off from this site eventually drains into the river Foss
which is a source of flooding in York and which has a complex interaction with the river
Ouse and relies upon ongoing management of the Foss Barrier and its associated pumps.

ST11 - Land at New Lane, Huntington
We are aware that City of York Council as LLFA is managing a study in conjunction with
the{ Internal Drainage Board looking at South Beck. As this action falls under the remit of
the LLFA to carry out, we would suggest that no further development take place in this
location until the study has been undertaken, and any required works have been identified
and completed, in order to mitigate against fluvial and surface water flooding.

The site lies predominantly in Flood Zone 1 with a small area within Flood Zone 2.
De\/elopment must take a sequential approach to the layout of the site in line with our
sequential approach guidance. We recommend that our surface water management
guidance is followed.

ST15 — Whinthorpe new settlement

The site lies within Flood Zones 1, 2 and 3. Development must take a sequential approach
to the layout of the site in line with our sequential approach guidance. As there is a large
area of Flood Zone 1 we would expect to see all development located wholly within Flood
Zone 1, with the areas of Flood Zones 2 and 3 being used for green/ open public space.
This would tie in with City of York Council’s statement mentioned earlier (page 51 of the
Local Plan) that residential / employment development on Greenfield sites would be




Page 114

inappropriate within Flood Zone 3. We recommend that our surface water management
guidance is followed.

Please note that the site is located directly east of Heslington Tilmire SSSI, and a strategic
green wedge. Also, the site contains a number of small watercourses and Tilmire Drain
crosses through the southern section of the site managed and maintained by Ouse and
Derwent Internal Drainage Board. As such, development of the site provides a unique
opportunity to enhance existing habitats and increase green infrastructure provision
through development design. Much of the southern section of the site lies within flood zone
3 and is therefore inappropriate for residential development. However, this area could be
used as a multifunctional green space which contained flood storage and surface water
attenuation within a SuDS scheme and public open space. Such an approach would haye
the potential to create an exemplar sustainable scheme which fully embraces the need to
work with natural processes, through SuDS and green infrastructure creation which
provides social benefits to residents.




Page 115

Local Plan Your Ref:
City of York Council My Ref. York Local Plan
York Dealt with by: Mr RG Banks
YO17ZZ Planning Policy and Conservation
Typetalk: 18001 0845 1211 555
2 August 2013
Dear Martin

City of York Local Plan Consultation

Thank you for consulting Hambleton District Council on your Preferred Options Plan.

| have considered the Plan in relation to strategic matters of cross boundary significance and am
generally satisfied that there are few issues arising for Hambleton District.

We are pleased to see that you expect to meet the City's assessed growth needs within the plan area,
without putting development pressure on your neighbouring local authorities such as Hambleton. We
particularly like the commitment in Policy SS1 to not adversely affecting adjacent local authority areas
(eg congestion and pollution) and delivering benefits to the wider sub-region (eg shopping, leisure,
education and economic driver/employment), which Hambleton's residents and businesses appreciate.

Development will require major infrastructure to be delivered to ensure development proceeds and we
are pleased to note that you are progressing with a CIL mechanism alongside this Plan to provide for
developer contributions, so development should not be delayed from lack of funding.

The large scale of housing development proposed (and safeguarded for the future) north of Clifton
Moor (ST14) is of particular concern to Hambleton Council in terms of how it would impact on the
A1237(T) ring road, which suffers from congestion. Policy T4 promotes dualling of the most congested
sections of the A1237 ring road, but this is not programmed until 2024. By then the new housing
development will have progressed to a large extent and increased congestion, leading to increased
journey times for Hambleton's residents and workforce using this part of the strategic highway network.
This will be a matter for the Highways Agency/ North Yorkshire County Council (Highways) to address,
in terms of how it impacts more widely on areas such as Hambleton and whether this is acceptable.

Some of the potential areas of search identified for renewable energy (ie wind farms) in Policy CC1 lie
adjacent to or close to our boundary, and these are not subject to any joint working or discussion with

Hambleton District Council
Civic Centre, Stone cross,
Northallerton, North Yorkshire DL6 2UU

0845 1211 555 hambleton.gov.uk



Page 116

Hambleton Council. We have no such areas identified in Hambleton and it will be important to work
closely on any proposals that come forward as they would impact on Hambleton.

If you would like to discuss any of the above further then please get back to me.

Yours sincerely

Graham Banks

Planning Policy Manager

t: 01609 767097

e: graham.banks@hambleton.gov.uk




Page 117

ID. 1264

Qur ref:V212151 Simon Jones
Highways Agency
Lateral
8 City Walk
Leeds
LS11 9AT

Direct Line: 0113 283 6486

29" July 2013

Dear SirfMadam,
YORK LOCAL PLAN PREFERRED OPTION

The Highways Agency (The Agency) has reviewed the document and would wish to comment on issues
that are relevant to the interests of the Agency.

The Agency's key concern is to protect the primary role of the Strategic Road Network (SRN) and to
ensure its safe and efficient operation. The Agency would therefore have concerns over any development
proposals or plans which could have a material impact on this. Circular 02/2007, Planning and the
Strategic Road Network, sets out the Agency's role in the Local Plan process. Department for Transport
has undertaken a consultation on a new policy document earlier this year which would replace Circular
02/2007. The comments in this response therefore encapsulate this evolving policy situation. With
material consideration to the consultation document “The Strategic Road Network and the Delivery of
Sustainable Development”,

Section 3: Spatial Vision and Outcomes

3.1 This is our preferred approach to the vision do you think this is appropriate or should one of the
alternatives or a different approach be taken?

The Agency fully supports the Vision in relation to the intention to deliver a fundamental shift in travel
patterns and the focus of promoting sustainable development through the location of development in
areas of good accessibility,

The key for the Agency will be selecting locations that are accessible and sustainable, making maximum
use of public transport and minimising car use in order to minimise the adverse traffic impact on the safe
and efficient operation of the SRN and its junctions with the local primary road network.

Section 4: Sustainable Development

4.1 This is our preferred approach to sustainable development. Do you think this is appropriate or should
one of the alternatives or different approach be taken?

The Agency supports the principles of delivering sustainable development in planning terms. Decisions
on future development should consider the emerging Agency policy which indicates that:

York Local Plan Preferred Option Page 1 of 6



Page 118

“.. development should only be prevented or refused on transport grounds where the residual cumulative
impacts of development are severe.

In this light, development proposals are likely to be acceptable provided that they would not result in
either capacity of a section (link or junction) of the strategic road network being exceeded or an increase
of demand for use of a section that is already operating at over capacity levels.”

Section 5: Spatial Strategy

5.1 This is out preferred approach to the spatial strategy do you think this is appropriate or should one of
the alternatives or a different approach be taken?

The spatial principles expressed in Policy SS2 Delivering Sustainable Growth for York are welcomed by
the Agency, in particular the location of development will be guided by:

. Ensuring accessibility to sustainable modes of transport and a range of services; and
. Preventing unacceptable levels of congestion, pollution and/or air quality.

The Agency is not yet in a position to be able to consider if the Spatial Distribution outlined in Policy SS3
is acceptable as adequate analysis has not been provided on the impact of policy. The Agency propose
to continue to work in partnership with City of York Council (and neighbouring local authorities where
appropriate) following this consultation in order to establish the implications of the Local Plan on the SRN
this will enable the Agency in partnership with City of York Council to determine if and where physical
mitigation measures might be needed to provide additional capacity on the SRN or whether there are any
situations where it is not possible to provide additional capacity. The evidence already available from the
City of York Council' illustrates that the A64 between A1036 Tadcaster Road and A1079 Hull Road are
close to exceeding or exceeding theoretical capacity even with the transport improvements already
identified by City of York Council.

The Agency believe that spatial distribution and particularly the development of land opportunities in the
south and western part of York including Strategic Sites, Urban Extensions and the New Settlement
should be dependent upon agreement of a Management Strategy for the A64 and its junctions with the
local primary road network by the Agency and the Council.

The development principles for strategic sites outlined in Policy SS4 are welcomed by the Agency
specifically the aims to:

. Maximise integration, connectivity and accessibility to and from the site giving priority to
sustainable travel options; and

s To ensure as many trips as possible are able to be taken by sustainable travel modes and to
promote and facilitate modal shift from the car to sustainable forms of travel by maximising opportunities
for walking, cycling and public transport.

The Agency would also support the preparation of Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) for all
Strategic Sites. However the Agency is clear that any infrastructure essential to the delivery of a
Strategic Site should primarily be identified within the Local Plan document and Infrastructure

! Transport Implications of the City of York Local Plan Preferred Options, June 2013, Figure 9
York Local Plan Preferred Option Page 2 of 6



Page 119

Delivery Plan. This is fundamental to the soundness of the Local Plan to the Agency and the ability of the
authority to deliver the Local Plan.

Finally in relation to Policy SS6 Safeguarded Land any future work on the impact of the new proposed
settlement at Whinthorpe should also consider the SF3 site safeguarded for longer term development.

Section 6: York City Centre

6.1 This is our preferred approach to York City Centre do you think this is appropriate or should one of the
alternatives or a different approach be taken?

The expressed intention that the city centre will remain a focus for a number of development types is
supported in principle by the Agency. The emphasis on accessibility and sustainable transport is also
supported.

6.2 Do you think the City Centre boundary should be revised in line with Figure 6.2 or should it stay the
same or should a different approach be taken?

No comment
Section 7: York Central

7.1 This is our preferred approach to York Central do you think this is appropriate or should one of the
alternatives or a different approach be taken?

York Central is described as a Special Policy Area where radical change is expected to take place during
the life of the plan. It is not yet clear from the analysis the impact of this policy area on the SRN. The
Agency propose to continue to work with City of York Council to assess the impact of the Local Plan
aspirations on the SRN and identify physical mitigation required to facilitate development.

The Agency supports the principles of development set out for York Central specifically:

. Maximise integration, connection and accessibility, including inter-modal connectivity
improvements at York Railway Station;

° Ensure as many trips as possible are taken by sustainable travel modes and to promote and
facilitate modal shift from the car; and

. Minimise the environmental impact of vehicular trips.

As highlighted previously the Agency supports the production of SPDs to support Strategic Sites and
Special Policy Areas, however for the Agency to consider the Local Plan sound the policies and
supporting Infrastructure Delivery Plan should identify any strategic infrastructure required to deliver
Strategic Sites and Special Policy Areas.

Section 8: Economy

8.1 This is our preferred approach to the Economy do you think this is appropriate or should one of the
alternatives or a different approach be taken?

The key for the Agency is the location of development in appropriate ‘highly accessible locations’ and the
provision of employment opportunities for the local communities to reduce the impact of traffic on the

SRN.
York Local Plan Preferred Option Page 3 of 6



Page 120

The Agency is not yet in a position to be able to consider if the Strategic Employment Locations outlined
in Policy EMP1 and employment land outlined in EMP2 is acceptable as adequate analysis has not been
provided on the impact of policy. The Agency propose to continue to work in partnership with City of York
Council following this consultation in order to establish the implications of the Local Plan on the SRN this
will enable the Agency in partnership with City of York Council to determine if and where physical
mitigation measures might be needed to provide additional capacity on the SRN or whether there are any
situations where it is not possible to provide additional capacity.

In terms of the intention for Monk Cross to be a priority location for office development (12.74ha), further
office development in this area will generate additional road traffic, reassurance is needed from City of
York Council that the location of additional office development at this location can be accommodated by
the SRN in particular the A64 Hopgrove junction.

Section 10 Housing Growth and Distribution

10.1 This is our preferred approach to housing growth and distribution do you think this is appropriate or
should one of the alternatives or different approach be taken?

The Agency does not intend to comment upon Policy H1: The Scale of Housing Growth setting out the
guantum of future housing development in the plan area. It is the distribution of housing that is of
particular interest to the Agency which, together with the distribution of existing and planned employment,
sets the pattern for travel to and from work which, in turn, dominates peak period travel demand.

The Agency is not yet in a position to be able to consider if the housing allocations outlined in Policy H3 is
acceptable as adequate analysis has not been provided on the impact of policies. The Agency propose to
continue to work in partnership with City of York Council following this consultation in order to establish
the implications of the Local Plan on the SRN this will enable the Agency in partnership with City of York
Council to determine if and where physical mitigation measures might be needed to provide additional
capacity on the SRN or whether there are any situations where it is not possible to provide additional
capacity.

The Agency's overall position has therefore been reserved until the results of further analysis are
available after which it will be possible to determine where and if physical capacity enhancement is
available on the SRN at a cost that is affordable and where and if there are any locations where there is
no solution.

The Agency want to understand how the phasing outlined within Policy H3: Housing Allocation fits with
the planned provision of infrastructure given that a large number of the sites are allocated as short to
medium (1 — 10 years), medium to long (6 — 15 years) or life time of the Plan. The Agency want to
understand the evidence and justification for the combination of phasing and the use of life time of the
plan as a phase, this is particularly pertinent given that these categories apply to 94% of the allocated
dwellings.

10.2 Do you know of any further sites that would be suitable for housing development?
No comment

Section 23: Transport

23.1 This is our preferred approach to sustainable transport do you think this is appropriate or should one
of the alternatives or a different approach be taken?

York Local Plan Preferred Option Page 4 of 6



Page 121

On the whole the plan contains strong policy direction on sustainable transport. However this is not
enough, both demand management and additional highway improvements will be required.

As a point of clarification for Policy T1 public transport accessibility criteria, do all of the criteria have to be
met for a location to be considered accessible or just one?

The Agency has concerns regarding the accessibility criteria for the sub urban locations and the lack of
specific criteria for the new settlement, given that sub urban and the new settlement equate to almost
40% of the allocated housing not already committed.

In relation to Policy T7: Demand Management, alongside the flow of traffic in and around the city centre,
City of York Council need to consider the flow of fraffic on the SRN. The A64 undoubtedly plays a role in
local trips within York however it has a significant strategic purpose which will be undermined by the level
of congestion likely to arise from this plan. It is acknowledged that given the level of aspirations within the
Plan, York are unlikely to achieve a no worse off with development position and moving forward this is
unlikely to be the Agency's position. However the level of congestion which is acceptable on the local
network is likely to be different to that which is acceptable on the SRN which has a wider function. The
Agency will continue to work with City of York Council to determine whether it would be possible to
implement traffic management measures on the local road network that would regulate overall
traffic flows in line with the available capacity on the SRN.

With regards Policy T8 given that the policy specifies major development proposals the Agency request
that Travel Plans should also accompany Transport Statements. The Agency also note that the
thresholds for what is classed as major development (and therefore what would be required to undertake
a Transport Statement or Transport Assessment) differ from those set out in the DfT Guidance on
Transport Assessment. The Agency request clarification from City of York Council on how thresholds
within Policy T8 have been derived and evidence to support the departure from the thresholds outlined in
the DFT guidance.

23.2 Do you think the higher degree of transport infrastructure investment in the longer term is required or
should more low cost ‘'soft measures’ be pursued?

On the whole the plan contains strong policy direction on sustainable transport. However the Agency's
current view is that this is not likely to be enough, both demand management and physical mitigation will
be required.

It is not clear from the analysis within the transport evidence where specifically on the network the benefit
of the currently proposed infrastructure is being achieved. i.e. does an intervention completely remove
delay on one stretch of road or incrementally reduce delay across the whole network. This is a particular
issue to the Agency as Figure 9 of the transport evidence indicates significant capacity issues on the A64,
yet no interventions to address this are allowed for or identified within any of the Local Plan
documentation or evidence base. It is a particular concern that the Infrastructure Delivery Plan makes no
reference to required improvements on the A64.

At present adequate analysis has not been provided on the impact of development aspirations. The
Agency propose to continue to work in partnership with City of York Council following this consultation in
order to establish the implications of the Local Plan on the SRN this will enable the Agency in partnership
with City of York Council to determine if and where physical mitigation measures might be needed to
provide additional capacity on the SRN or whether there are any situations where it is not possible to
provide additional capacity. Physical mitigation will be considered following analysis of the demand taking
account of sustainable transport solutions and demand management measures.

York Local Plan Preferred Option Page 5 of 6



Page 122

The Agency has serious concerns in relation to the lack of evidence to support Policy T4. Without further
evidence on the case for the specified improvements and traffic impact of the Local Plan as a whole; and
particular concentrations of development (e.g. the new settlement at Whinthorpe, urban extension at land
east of Metcalf Lane) the Agency would consider this policy unsound.

The Agency wants to continue to work with City of York Council with the objective of resolving these
matters through the development of a more comprehensive evidence base relating to the impacts of the
Local Plan on the SRN.

23.3 If you think the higher degree of transport infrastructure investment in the longer term over and
above that already committed or programmed is required do you think it is deliverable and if so how can
other agencies and organisation (e.g. scheme promoters or developers) work with the council to deliver
it?

The Agency's overall position has been reserved until the results of further analysis are available after
which it will be possible to determine where and if physical capacity enhancement is available on the SRN
at a cost that is affordable and where and if there are any locations where there is no solution.

Section 25: Infrastructure and Developer Contributions

25.1 This is our preferred approach to infrastructure developer contributions do you think this is
appropriate or should one of the alternatives or a different approach be taken?

The Agency supports the principle that new development will not be permitted unless ‘the necessary
infrastructure to meet local and wider (strategic) demand generated by development can be provided and
coordinated.’

The Agency is concerned that any physical measures which are identified on the SRN or at its junctions
with the local primary road network in order to mitigate the impact of development traffic can be funded
through CIL or other appropriate mechanisms. It is considered essential that the Agency is party to future
discussions on CIL and, in particular, on the criteria and priorities to be applied in the allocation of CIL
funds.

| hope that the above comments are helpful. Should you require further information or clarification, please
do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely

Simon Jones

Asset Development Manager

Yorkshire & North East

Email: Simon.Jones@highways.gsi.gov.uk

York Local Plan Preferred Option Page 6 of 6



Page 123
ID. 2

31 July 2013

Our ref: 88470

Your ref:
Martin Grainger
Local Plan Bl e
z F usiomer oervices
City of York Council B benn Unnss
Crewe Business Park
localplan@york.gov.uk Electra Way

Crewe
Cheshire CW1 6GJ

BY EMAIL ONLY
T 0300 060 3900

Dear Mr Grainger

Planning consultation: Local Plan — Preferred Option
Location: City of York

Thank you for your consultation dated 5 June 2013, which we received on the same day.

Natural England is a non-departmental public body. Our statutory purpose is to ensure that the natural
environment is conserved, enhanced, and managed for the benefit of present and future generations,
thereby contributing to sustainable development.

Policy H3: Housing Allocations

ST10: Land at Moor Lane, Woodthorpe

Site ST10 is located approximately 200m from Askham Bog Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI).
This nationally protected site is recognised for its fen communities, including fen woodland and fen
meadows. The site is also renowned for its insect fauna which includes scarce beetles and moths.
Askham Bog SSSI citation can be found at:

http://www.sssi.naturalengland.org.uk/citation/citation photo/1000196.pdf

Given Askham Bog's sensitivity to hydrological changes, Natural England is concerned that site ST10
has the potential to adversely affect the quality and quantity of water within the SSSI.

The Sustainability Appraisal (Appendix 8) recognises the importance of Askham Bog as one of the
most botanically diverse sites in the region and nationally important for invertebrate fauna. It also
identifies the potential damage as a result of changes to site hydrology and recreational impacts. It
concludes that the impacts are significantly negative. Natural England concurs with this view.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) paragraph 118 states that development likely to have an
adverse effect on a SSSI interest feature should not normally be permitted. Without further ecological
assessments of hydrological and recreational effects, and the identification potential
avoidance/mitigation measures, Site ST10 should not be progressed within the next iteration of the
plan.

Should ST10 be retained, Natural England would welcome further discussions regarding these
assessments and potential mitigation to avoid a significant negative impact.

ST15: Whinthorpe New Settlement

The proposed new settlement at Whinthorpe is directly adjacent to Heslington Tillmire Site of Special

Page 1 0of 6

Please send consultations via email to; consuliations@naiuralengland. org.uk



Page 124

Scientific Interest (SSSI). Due to significant adverse effects upon the interest features of the SSS| and
limited ecological evidence supporting its inclusion within the plan, Natural England believe that, if
retained in the Plan. the allocation is unsound. This is on the basis of a lack of robust and credible
evidence supporting its inclusion in the Plan, a lack of evidence to demonstrate that this is the most
suitable option when considered against alternatives and the allocation being contrary to national policy
contained in the NPPF with regard to the impacts on SSSis.

Identified in the SSSI citation (link below), Heslington Tillmire's interest features are its tall herb fen, fen
meadow and rush pasture plant communities, and breeding wetland bird species, including lapwing,
snipe, curlew, and redshank. The SSSI citation also highlights that the site’s location within intensively
farmed arable and improved grassland makes it of particular importance to birds.

The citation for Heslington Tillmire can be found at:

http://www sssi.naturalengland.org.uk/citation/citation photo/1006072.pdf

According to the most recent survey (August 2011), the Tillmire is currently in a favourable condition
and delivering its conservation objectives.

Natural England believe the close proximity of 5,580 homes is likely to adversely affect the SSSI's
interest features due to an increase in recreational disturbance, trampling of habitat, predation by pets
and pests, dog fouling, litter/fly tipping, invasive species and fire risk.

The development of 5,580 homes may also affect the SSSI's hydrology as a result of increased runoff
and potential drainage and water source impacts (e.g. abstractive, waste water treatment), with
significant consequences for the plant communities and the wetland birds.

The Tillmire is Countryside and Rights of Way (CROW) Act open access land and has rights of way on
its boundaries. Therefore opportunities for mitigation, through access controls are limited. Furthermore
the Local Plan proposes cycleways either side of the Tillmire which will increase access and
disturbance.

Wetland and other ground nesting birds are especially prone to disturbance by walkers and dogs.
During the breeding season, recreational disturbance interrupts egg incubation and feeding, leading to
breeding failure. Although in a rural location the SSSI already suffers disturbance from walkers and
dogs and this is thought to be impacting the wetland birds. Given the proximity, current legal access
and proposed creation of cycleways, the development of 5,580 homes would inevitably increase
recreational use and disturbance in the SSSI, with severe consequences for ground nesting birds such
as lapwing, curlew and redshank.

Increased recreational use would also increase trampling of habitats, including the tall herb fen plants.
This would further reduce nest site opportunities and the site’s attractiveness to ground nesting birds.
Indirectly, increased recreational use may threaten the site’s agricultural viabity and consequently the
management of the site.

It is noted that similar nature conservation sites within the Vale of York which have high recreational
use (e.g. Walmgate Stray and Hob Moor), do not support significant numbers of ground nesting birds.
Conversely Heslington Tillmire SSSI, though suffering some disturbance issues, is recognised as an
important site for breeding waders in the Vale of York and remains in a favourable condition.

Alone the increased recreational use of the SSSI would, in Natural England’s view, result in total loss of
breeding bird interest and adverse effects upon the tall herb fen plant species. In-combination urban
edge effects have the potential to further increase harm to the SSSI's interest features. Urban edge
effects such as fly tipping, encroachment of invasive species, fire risk and pest/pet predation are likely
to increase given the ease of site access and the proximity of the allocation.

The Sustainability Appraisal (SA) and Site Selection Paper (Annex 11) both identify the proximity of the
SSSI as a consideration, however the SSSI’s importance for breeding wetland birds isn’t recognised,

Page 2 of 6

Please send consultations via emall to: consultations@naturalengland org.uik



Page 125

nor are the allocation’s effects upon the SSSI (identified above) thoroughly assessed.

Although significant buffering is suggested to ensure the integrity of the SSSI is maintained, there are
no details regarding the extent or type of buffer, or an ecological justification that this will mitigate the
likely effects of the allocation which are identified above. Natural England is concerned that the
mitigating effects of the buffer will be negated by its accessibility (providing a public area between the
residential area and the SSSI) and the creation of cycleways, which will be used by pedestrians.

Natural England conclude that even with a significant buffer, the proximity of the allocation to
Heslington Tillmire SSSI and its ease of access is likely to have significant adverse affects on its
interest features. In the case of wetland birds, these are likely to be totally lost. Paragraph 118 of the
NPPF states that “proposed development on land within or outside a SSSI likely to have an adverse
effect on a SSSI should not normally be permitted.” Given the scale of harm to wetland bird species,
and likely urban edge effects, this allocation is therefore contrary to the NPPF and unsound.

Paragraph 118 however states that “where an adverse effect on the site’s notified special interest
features is likely, an exception should only be made where the benefits of the development, at this site,
clearly outweigh both the impacts that it is likely to have on the features of the site and any broader
impacts on the national network of SSSIs”.

Should City of York Council proceed with the allocation, and adverse effects remain, it must comply
with this policy approach. At present however, neither the SA and Site Selection Paper or their
appendixes contain sufficient evidence to undertake the weighting of adverse effects versus the
benefits of the new settlement in this location.

Given the lack of assessment within the SA nor a thorough consideration of alternatives Natural
England advises that the current draft of the SA does not comply with the requirement of the Strategic
Environmental Assessment (SEA) Directive. Article 5(1) of the SEA Directive outlines that ‘the likely
significant effects on the environment of implementing the plan or programme, and reasonable
alternatives taking into account the objectives and the geographical scope of the plan or programme,
should be identified, described and evaluated’. Furthermore the rationale for each option should also
be clearly recorded and the environmental report must include ‘an outline of the reasons for selecting
the alternatives dealt with’ (Annex I(h)).

Natural England would welcome further discussions with City of York Council regarding alternative
approaches for the Whinthorpe New Settlement should they be proposed, including the potential to
relocate the allocation to a less ecologically sensitive location, and SSS| management measures. This
discussion should also entail the rerouting of the proposed cycleways away from Heslington Tillmire
SSsSi.

Policy ACHM3: Gypsy, Traveller and Showpeople Allocations

Part i. of policy ACHMS3 identifies a gypsy and traveller site at Common Lane and Hassacarr Lane,
Dunnington. This site is adjacent to Hassacarr Pond, a proposed local nature reserve which, although
small, provides an important habitat for invertebrates and amphibians. It's biodiversity is recognised as
important educational resource for local schools.

Before allocating this gypsy and traveller site, City of York Council must be satisfied that less
environmentally sensitive areas are not available. If allocated, measures must be taken to mitigate any
adverse effects upon this site and if necessary compensate for any loss of ecological interest.

Given the close proximity and accessibility of the site, mitigation to prevent significant effects may not
be possible. Therefore, it may be preferable to relocate this allocation rather than compensate for the
loss of ecological value. This issue should also be explored further within in the SA when assessing
alternatives.

Page 3 of 6

Please send consultations via email to: consultations@naturalengiand.org.uk



Page 126

Policy CC1: Supporting Renewable and Low Carbon Energy Generation

Part ii of policy CC1 states that a positive response will be made to renewable energy applications
within the potential areas of search on the proposals map. Whilst this positive renewable energy policy
is welcomed, there is a limited assessment of their ecological effects within the SA and HRA to support
their identification.

Without ecological assessment these areas of search have not be justified and are unsound.

Natural England is particularly concerned about those areas of search adjacent to the Lower Derwent
Valley SPA, SAC and Ramsar, River Derwent SSSI, Derwent Ings SSSI, Heslington Tillmire SSSI and
Acaster South Ings SSSI.

It is likely they will adversely affect these international and nationally protected sites, and therefore
should not be allocated. If retained, a thorough ecological assessments (including Habitats Regulations
Assessment) must be undertaken.

Policy GI1: Green Infrastructure

Natural England welcomes this overarching policy which highlights the multifunctional benefits of Green
Infrastructure.

Policy GI2: Biodiversity

Policy G2 makes no distinction between the levels of protection afforded to international, national or
local nature conservation sites. Instead, it relies on catch all policy which seeks to ensure retention and
enhancement of features within all sites or habitats. This is supported by a requirement to address
requirements within the Biodiversity Audit and Action Plan. Whilst such a broad policy is acceptable in
a Core Strategy (where comprehensive policies follow), within a Local Plan, a more detailed policy (or
policies) is required in order to determine planning applications.

The NPPF and Circular 06/2005 set out the required approaches when determining applications which
affect nature conservation sites and species, this should be interpreted locally within the Local Plan.
Whilst the BAP provides detailed ecological guidance, on what habitats/species should be protected
and enhanced, policy GI2 and supporting text should, in accordance with paragraph 113, distinguish
between international, national and locally designated sites, and the levels of protection which they are
afforded.

For example developments which adversely affect the integrity of a Natura 2000 site cannot be
permitted (in accordance with the Habitats Regulations), whilst applications adversely affecting SSSis
can only be permitted where the benefits of the development in that location outweigh the impact on
the interest feature and/or wider network of SSSls.

Both the third bullet of policy GI2 and paragraph 17.5 should reflect paragraph 118 of the NPPF (first
bullet point) that where significant harm is unavoidable compensation is a last resort. Policy GI2 implies
that compensation (loss and replacement) is as acceptable as mitigation (effect reduction). ‘As a last
resort’ should be inserted before ‘or compensated for'.

Paragraph 17.5 should read:

“In exceptional circumstances, where the locational benefits of a development clearly outweigh the
adverse effects on a nature conservation site or species and this cannot be avoided, appropriate
mitigation will be required. Compensation, or off-setting will only be accepted as a last resort.”
Policy GI6: Green Corridors

Natural England supports policy GI6.

Page 4 of 6

Please send consultations via email to: consultations@naturalengland org.ux



Page 127

Policy GI7: Access to Nature

Natural England supports policy GI7 part a, as this delivers multiple benefits. However sites recognised
for their bird interest (e.g. Heslington Tillmire SSSI) are especially sensitive to recreational disturbance
and this should be recognised. In addition increased access has the potential to increase trampling of
flora, litter, dog fouling, and risk of fire. Increased levels of access should be managed according to the
nature conservation protection status and sensitivity.

Where ecologically acceptable, improved access will be reliant on landowner agreement and funding.
To assist delivery, the Infrastructure Delivery Plan must identify improvements to Green Infrastructure
as a priority.

Infrastructure Delivery Plan

Delivery of green infrastructure (Gl) is limited within the IDP. Of most concern is the deferral of
identifying future needs to the Gl Strategy (paragraph 4.126) without any time table for this document's
completion. The positive approach to Gl and Biodiversity within the Local Plan should be mirrored
within the IDP.

Given the potential requirement to provide natural greenspacefrecreational buffers around allocations
(notably sites ST10 and ST15), these infrastructure requirements should, at the very least, be identified
in the IDP as the delivery of the allocations may depend on the delivery of this Gl.

Reliance on developer contributions and focus on recreational open space (paragraph 4.128) without a
strategy in place may jeopardise the delivery of a strategic Gl and ecological network, as required by
the NPPF.

Habitats Regulation Assessment

Conservation objectives

The HRA does not include the correct conservation objectives for the Natura 2000 sites. These can be
found on Natural England’'s website at:

http://www.naturalengland.org.uk/ourwork/conservation/designations/sac/conservationobjectives.aspx

Determination of likely significant affects requires an analysis of each policy’s and allocation’s effects
on the delivery of these objectives.

In-combination effects

The determination of likely significant effects has not assessed in-combination effects of the Local Plan
and other plans and projects. This omission is contrary to paragraph 6(3) of the Conservation of
Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended).

There are a number of Natura 2000 sites within the City of York’s boundary that extend into
neighbouring local planning authority areas (East Riding, Selby, and Ryedale) where in-combination
effects may be significant. These sites are:

« Lower Derwent Valley SAC, SPA and Ramsar,
* River Derwent SAC; and 2
¢ Strensall Common SAC

The HRA should ensure that the adopted and emerging plans within these areas do not have in-
combination effects.

In addition, there is the potential for in-combination effects upon those sites outside York’s boundary.
All sites identified within the HRA should be assessed for the possibility of likely significant effects in-
Page 50f 6

Please send consultations viz emall to: consultations@naturalengland.org.uk



Page 128

combination.

Mitigation

Paragraph 2.3.1 correctly sets out the approach to mitigation, it states that mitigation should be proved
to be viable, timely and possible. VWhere avoidance or mitigation measures are identified in the HRA
these should be included in the plan to ensure the plan is compliant with the habitats regulations and
are deliverable.

The HRA’s appropriate assessment identifies a number of adverse effects upon integrity. Notably
recreational pressure/disturbance upon Strensall Common SAC, River Derwent SAC and Lower
Derwent Valley SAC, SPA and Ramsar, and renewable energy disturbance upon Lower Derwent
Valley SPA.

Mitigation and suggested alterations to the plan are proposed, this entails the following amendment to
policies CC1 and GI2:

“No development will be permitted which may have an adverse effect on the integrity of any SAC, SPA
or Ramsar site alone, or in-combination, with other plans and projects.”

Whilst this policy amendment is welcomed and would address windfall proposals not foreseen within
the local plan, this policy addition should not be relied upon where development policies and proposals
in the plan are likely to adversely affect internationally protected sites. Doing so results in internal policy
conflicts, as policies or allocations may not comply with the Habitats Regulations and therefore may not
be deliverable.

It is acceptable to defer the assessment of a policy to the application stage, where alteratives exist to
avoid adverse effects on a site. However, in this case, allocations have been identified without
alternatives and their effects can be predicted. Therefore mitigation should, in accordance with
paragraph 2.3.1, be assessed and identified, not deferred to the application stage.

If requested, Natural England can advise further on the HRA.

This concludes Natural England comments on City of York’s Local Plan, supporting SA and HRA.

For any queries relating to this consultation only you are welcome to contact me directly - telephone:
0300 060 4129 or email: john.king2@naturalengland.org.uk. For all other consultations and
correspondence, please contact the above address.

Yours sincerely

John King
Land Use Operations

Page 6 of 6

Please send consultations via email to; consultations@naturalengland org.uk



ID. 1466 Page 129

Strudwick, Caroline

From: Wayman Jeremy [Jeremy.Wayman@networkrail.co.uk]
Sent: 31 July 2013 16:33

To: localplan@york.gov.uk

Subject: York Draft Local Plan - Comments from Network Rail
New Stations

It is noted that a number of new stations are being proposed within the LP.

Any new station proposal needs to be developed along Rail Industry guidelines which are available on our web site.
The key criteria for any new station is whether it will generate a positive business case and whether it fits with existing
rail services or what level of service is required to meet demand. It normally needs to be cost neutral to the taxpayer
i.e. generate enough income through the fare box to cover the capital cost of construction and ongoing station
maintenance / lease costs or have an agreed ongoing subsidy to support any losses in its early years.

Any new station proposal should be supported by the Local Plan and should be accompanied by a Transport Needs
Assessment to confirm that all transport modes have been effectively considered and to demonstrate why a new
station has been identified as the best public transport solution. The draft Plan includes a proposal for a new station
north west of York, Haxby and Strensall. It is also our understanding that a new station at York hospital is being
considered which does not appear to be in the draft plan.

Any new station needs an agreement from the Train Operating Company that they will call here to be incorporated
into a franchise agreement

The business case for any new station will need to examine new demand, abstraction as well as the loss in revenue
from extending existing customer journey time unless it is prepared to consider line speed increases to offset the
station dwell time. 3 new stations (Hospital, Haxby and Strensall) could extend journey time by circa 6-9 minutes on
this route. There is currently strong stakeholder support to speed up the journey time between Scarborough and York
/ beyond and the economic benefits of doing this may outweigh those of a new station. Impact on level crossings will
need to be assessed for any new Stations.

York Central / York Station

Proposed Policies YCA and T3 are, in general, supported. The proposed approach of development of an SPD for the
York Central site is supported.

NetworkRail

Jeremy Wayman
Town Planner, Property

Floor 3a

George Stephenson House

Toft Green

York YO1 6JT

T +44 (0)1904 389677 (Internal) 085 33677
M +44 (0) 7515628455

E jeremy.wayman@networkrail.co.uk
www.networkrail.co.uk/property




Page 130

I EE RS R RS RS R RS SRS RS R RS RS RS R R R R SRR RS R EREEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE S
22 R AR AR R R R AR R R R AR R R R SRR AR SRR R R R R R R R RS RS E RS SRR SRR AR R R R RS

khkkkkkhkhkkhkhkhkhhik

The content of this email (and any attachment) is confidential. It may
also be legally privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure.

This email should not be used by anyone who is not an original intended
recipient, nor may it be copied or disclosed to anyone who is not an
original intended recipient.

If you have received this email by mistake please notify us by emailing
the sender, and then delete the email and any copies from your system.

Liability cannot be accepted for statements made which are clearly the
sender's own and not made on behalf of Network Rail.

Network Rail Infrastructure Limited registered in England and Wales No.
2904587, registered office Kings Place, 90 York Way London N1 9AG

LRSS R R AR R A RS SRS RS SRR R SRR R R RS S S S S SRR SRR SRR R R R AR R AR R R AR RS RS RS E T
kkkkhkhkkhkhkkkhkkhkhkkhkhkdhkhhhkhkhhkhkhhohkhkhhkkhkhddhhhhhrhkdrdhkdhhhkdhdkhdhbddhkhdhhhbddrikdhddik
khkhkkkhkkkxkkkdkkx*x



Page 131
ID. 11

Yorkshire County Council
Business and Environmental Services

Your ref: David Bowe
Corporate Director
Our ref: M32TR002.CB.DB County Hall, Northallerton

North Yorkshire DL7 8AH

Tel: 01609 532556

Fax: 01609 775885

E-mail; david bowe@northyorks.gov,uk
www.northyorks.gov. uk

12 August 2013

Dear Mr Grainger
York Local Plan Preferred Options Consultation : Response of North Yorkshire County Council

Thank you for consulting North Yorkshire County Council on the City of York (Preferred Options)
Local Plan (June 2013). Whilst there are significant aspects and principles of the Plan that the County
Council welcomes and supports, the authority also has a number of more detailed concerns at this
stage. These issues are all set-out below.

Whilst there has historically been a good track record at both officer and Elected Member level of
collaborative working on strategic planning matters between our authorities, the County Council has
already expressed its views in relation to the nature of engagement on the run-up to public
consultation on the draft Local Plan. The draft Local Plan differs markedly in a number of fundamental
respects from the proposed Local Development Framework Core Strategy that preceded it in terms of
both the scale and distribution of development. It was therefore disappointing that the County Council,
both individually and through the Local Government North Yorkshire and York Spatial Planning and
Transport Beard, did not have the opportunity to discuss the Plan with the City Council prior to the
commencement of public consultation. It is noted however that two informal officer meetings did take
place between our authorities early in the year when the overall strategic approach to growth (rather
than detailed policies, proposals and allocations) was beginning to be developed.

Notwithstanding, the County Council is committed to, and remains keen to positively engage with, an
on-going process of genuine collaborative working with the City of York Council on the development
of the York Local Plan. This includes work underway with the City of York and the North York Moors
National Park Authority on a Minerals and Waste Joint Plan. It is therefore possible that through
genuine and effective collaboration as the Local Plan is further developed that some of the issues
raised within this representation may be able to be allayed or mitigated against in part or full.

[cont'd...

Mr M Grainger

City of York Council
Integrated Strategy Unit
West Offices

Station Rise

York

YO16GA

A responsive County Council providing excellent and efficient local services




Page 132

12

1. Spatial Strategy

During the informal officer discussions that took place earlier in the year, the County Council
became aware of the likelihood of a shift of position in the Plan to one in which the City of York
commits to meeting its full growth needs and aspirations within its boundaries. Indeed the
County Council supports Policy SS1 (York Sub Area) in that it seeks to reflect the roles and
functions of places in the York Sub Area, the North Yorkshire and York Sub-Region and Leeds
City Region and commits to ensure that the housing needs of the City’s population now and in
the future are met within the City of York administrative area.

The County Council also supports in principle the commitment within the Plan to set-out the
boundaries and extent of the York Green Belt insofar as it lies within the City’s administrative
area. Alongside this support, the County Council welcomes in principle the commitment to
allocate land within the area currently considered to be Green Belt for development within the
Plan period, as well as further safeguarded land for development thereafter. This general
approach should allow for an enduring Green Belt; reduce unnecessary development pressure
beyond the Green Belt boundary; and addresses concerns that the County Council raised in
relation to the previous proposed LDF Core Strategy.

These areas of support in principle however do not over-ride the more specific comments that
we have in relation to the overall scale of development planned for; its distribution; and the
cross-boundary implications that this may present.

2. Scale, Distribution and Implications of Housing and Employment Growth

The County Council supports the principle of planning for economic growth in order that the City
can perform its sub-regional role to the full. Indeed the economic aspirations are ambitious and
challenging and therefore it is important that the City is confident that they are realistic and
grounded upon robust and up-to-date evidence. Within this context the County Council notes
and supports the need identified within the Plan to link economic and housing growth, however
the precise mechanism proposed for ensuring this is not clear. The Authority would be
concerned if housing land take-up outstripped economic growth as this would inevitably impact
upon levels and patterns of commuting, particularly to destinations such as Leeds and across
areas of the County. We therefore suggest that a robust mechanism for ensuring a balanced
release of housing land in line with economic growth is set-out to operate throughout the lifetime
of the Plan.

The County Council supports policies within the Plan that seek to promote the redevelopment of
sustainable central sites including at York Central and within the City Centre. We support
proposals to expand the Central Business District. The largest office and commercial allocations
would appear to be at York Central and Monks Cross. It is recognised that a new, high quality
City Centre office quarter would help York achieve its strategic ambitions and it appears that
York Central is the only location that can provide this. However, significant constraints to
development in full of these strategic sites are identified in the Plan and supporting documents
but it is not clear how prejudicial these are to development in the Plan period. The County
Council was assured at a meeting of the LGNYY Spatial Planning and Transport Board
Technical Officers Group (31 July 2013) that the City is fully able to be confident that the
currently proposed levels of development within these locations are viable and deliverable, and
that further work will be undertaken to determine whether higher levels of development can be
brought forwards during the Plan period. It is important that the City is able to have such
confidence in the deliverability of these sites given a wider concern that should aspects of the
York Central allocation prove to be undeliverable within the Plan period then that would be likely



Page 133

/13

to result in greater demand at locations such as Monks Cross and therefore greater pressure
upon the A64 (T), the Outer Ring Road (A1237) and the wider highways network.

The County Council supports the policy thrust within the document to safeguard and promote the
retail vitality of the City Centre. In particular Policy R4 and its aim of seeking to limit further retail
development at Monks Cross is supported.

However we note that ST21 under Policy EMP2 provides for the provision of Employment Land
for 12,000 sg. m of D2 Leisure at Naburn Designer Outlet on the A64(T) / A19 junction ‘where it
can be demonstrated that there would not be a detrimental impact on the city centre’s vitality and
viability'. D2 includes cinemas, bowling alleys and indoor leisure, and it is not clear as to what
the need or justification is for such development at this location, what alternative locational
options may be available; nor what its potential impact upon the wider highways network or
nearby settlements could be. Further clarification of these matters would therefore be helpful,
and it is suggested that this be the subject of further cross-boundary joint discussions between
us.

Whilst the County Council welcomes the commitment for the City to meet its housing needs in
full, the draft plan relies heavily upon two urban extensions (Clifton Moor and Holme Hill /
Whinthorpe) which are presented for the first time. The County Council notes and queries the
scale of these allocations, particularly the size that the new settlement at Whinthorpe could grow
to given the allocation of safeguarded land at SF3. This settlement (perhaps in excess of 20,000
inhabitants) would be significantly larger than most of the nearby settlements within neighbouring
districts. It is unclear at this time as to what other services (employment, retail, leisure, transport
etc.) are needed or proposed in order to support the urban extensions and ensure their
sustainability, and therefore what the related implications for the A84(T)/ Outer Ring Road
(A1237), the wider highways network, and surrounding settlements might be. It is suggested that
this be the subject of on-going cross-boundary discussions with neighbouring local authorities as
the Plan is further developed.

A wider and core concern of the County Council at this time is that there would appear to be
insufficient information available in relation to the resilience of the A64(T), the Outer Ring Road
(A1237) and wider transport infrastructure to withstand the development pressures inherent
within the Plan as proposed. Given the scale of housing development proposed in the vicinity of
the AB4(T) and Outer Ring Road; uncertainty as to what supporting uses and infrastructure will
be needed to support them; as well as the potential for major developments at Monks Cross,
Naburn Designer Outlet, and the A59 corridor, the County Council feels that detailed work is
required in order to enable an understanding of the consequent cumulative impact upon this key
element of the highway network which links the communities and businesses of larger parts of
North Yorkshire to the City and beyond. The County Council remains committed to working in
collaboration with the City Council, neighbouring local authorities including the East Riding of
Yorkshire Council and the Highways Agency in relation to these matters.

Further comments on highways and transportation matters will be set-out within a separate
representation from the North Yorkshire Local Highways Authority.

The County Council notes that the Infrastructure Delivery Plan accompanying the consultation
identifies ‘Leeds City Region Authorities’ as a funding source for essential and major pieces of
infrastructure. As a member of the Leeds City Region, the County Council seeks clarification that
it is not the intention of the City Council to seek direct funding from it for the provision of essential
infrastructure necessary to support the Plan.



Page 134

/4

The palicy commitment at Policy SS1 (York Sub Area) for development within the City of York
area not to lead to environmental problems including flood risk, air quality and transport
congestion for adjacent local authority areas is welcomed. However there is the theoretical
potential for the scale and distribution of growth within the Plan to have downstream implications
for flooding and water management through parts of the County and needs to be fully
understood.

Similarly there are strong linkages between climate change, flood management, green
infrastructure and minerals planning agendas. As such the development of sand and gravel
workings in the Swale and Ure valleys in North Yorkshire may provide an opportunity to help
deliver flood alleviation in the City of York as well as providing other green infrastructure
opportunities in locations relatively near to it. It is suggested that such policy linkages could be
further explored through collaborative working between our authorities on relevant aspects of the
Plan.

3. Minerals and Waste Planning
Policy WM1:

Part iii) — it would be helpful if greater clarity could be provided on the approach to provision of
facilities for municipal waste. In particular, it is assumed that use in the 2" Jine of the word
“alternative” refers to a scenario where the AWRP facility is not delivered, however this is not
totally clear from the policy or reasoned justification. Alternatively, reference could be made to a
need to identify capacity for the management of all waste streams, as this may provide more
flexibility including circumstances where a proportion of waste is managed outside the area.

Also within part iii), it would be helpful if clarity could be provided that the bullet point priority list
is intended to apply specifically to the delivery of facilities in the CYC area, as different priorities
may be appropriate in other parts of the Joint Minerals and Waste Plan area.

Part iii) 4™ bullet — typo (curtilages not cartilages)

Part iv) — it may be preferable to apply this requirement to significant new development only, as
provision for waste management may not be appropriate or viable in some very small schemes.

Part v) — this may partly duplicate iv) through reference to provision for waste management and
onsite management of waste at retail and commercial development

Reasoned justification para 22.5 — planning permission has been granted for the AWRP facility,
but is subject to a legal challenge. In the last line of para 22.5 it may be preferable to refer to
"..residual municipal waste..”

Policy WM1:

Part iv) — it would be helpful if it could be clarified that the criteria for site allocation are only
intended to apply in the CYC area rather than across the whole of the joint plan area.

Part iv), 2" bullet — it may not be realistic or necessary to meet this criteria for minerals
development, where geological factors may be a fundamental constraint on location.



Page 135

/5

Reasoned justification para 22.12 — identification of an MSA for coal bed methane is unlikely to
be feasible and probably unnecessary as it is unlikely to be sterilised by surface development.

Reasoned justification para 22.13 — 1* and 2" lines. As it is not the specific role of the LAA to
apportion mineral requirements it may be preferable to state that the LAA has not presented
specific evidence on aggregate mineral requirements for the York area.

In the 3 line it may be helpful to clarify whether the reference to fracking is intended specifically
in the context of exploitation of shale gas (for which there is no apparent evidence of commercial
interest in this area), or is intended to be read in association with the immediately following
reference to coal bed methane, in which case it is suggested that the reference to fracking
(which is a term not usually used in association with coal bed methane) be deleted.

4. Renewable Energy

The County Council notes that the plan identifies a number of areas of search for renewable
energy generation, in many cases close to the boundaries of neighbouring authorities including
within North Yorkshire. It is therefore important that cross-boundary discussions take place to
consider the wider impact of such developments, individually and cumulatively. It may also be
worth noting that where neighbouring North Yorkshire communities are affected by such
developments then they may be entitled to receive a proportion of any community fund that is
paid as a result of them.

5. Sustainability Appraisal

Generally the sustainability appraisal constitutes a very thorough assessment of preferred
options and alternatives that seems consistent with the requirement for the SEA Directive and
national regulations.

It is hoped that the following comments may help with the further refinement of the reports.
Sustainability Appraisal: Main Report:

Page 54. The ‘assessment methodology’ for the strategic sites and allocations is a little difficult
to follow so there is likely to be some merit to providing further explanatory text in this section.
The County Council would also suggest some further explanation of the assessment criteria for
objective 13 (flood risk). While the SA scoring for this objective seems broadly appropriate for
fluvial flooding (and we would advise you seek the views of the Environment Agency in this
regard) it treats all development as equally vulnerable to flooding, when in fact the flood risk
vulnerability of different development types often varies within the same flood zone according to
the Technical Guidance to the National Planning Policy Framework. While it may make for an
unwieldy assessment to refer to this in table 3.7, we would suggest that some text is included in
the methodology to show that the assessment is not a replacement for the sequential testing
process for locating sites away from flood risk, and will be considered alongside that sequential
process. Paragraph 100 of the NPPF provides more explanation of the application of the
sequential test (and where necessary the exception test) in relation to Local Plans.

Page 58. The assessment of the vision and objectives for compatibility with the SA objectives
looks to be broadly accurate. However, there may be some merit in upgrading the scoring for the
compatibility between ‘improve air quality...’ and ‘natural environment', at least to ‘I’ (depends on
implementation). This is because aspects of the natural environment / greenspaces play a
regulatory role in improving air quality, e.g. certain trees planted in appropriate locations can play



Page 136

16

a valuable role in trapping particulate air pollution on leaf surfaces as well as absorbing certain
harmful gases (though some species may contribute to ozone formation, so appropriate species
selection is always important).

Sustainability Appraisal Appendices

Page 327: While we agree that impacts on health will be identified under the Joint Plan SA (and
would also suggest that wellbeing and safety are also key considerations under that SA), the
current Joint Plan SA Scoping Report does not state that a formal Health Impact Assessment will
be undertaken as suggested in the assessment table. Rather, the intention is to consider health
via a specific health SA objective linked to health related baseline data. This may, of course,
change as a result of the consultation exercise currently underway on the Joint Plan SA; so the
summary on page 327 should be updated in line with the Joint Plan SA Scope when it is
finalised.

6. Conclusions

The County Council generally supports the overall policy approach of the City of York (Preferred
Options) Local Plan (June 2013). However, as this representation has outlined, there are a
number of important issues that require further detailed work in collaboration with neighbouring
local authorities and other stakeholders before some of the initial concerns raised above can be
allayed or sufficiently mitigated. The County Council looks forward to the opportunity to
participate in such collaboration.

Thank you again for consulting the County Council on this matter. If you would find any further
clarification helpful then please do not hesitate to contact Carl Bunnage, Regional and Strategic
Policy Team Leader, telephone: 01609 532523.

Yours sincerely

o

DAVID BOWE
Corporate Director — Business & Environmental Services



ID. 6385 Page 137

Roberts, John

From: Melisa Burnham [Melisa.Burnham@northyorks.gov.uk]

Sent: 14 August 2013 14.01

To: localplan@york.gov.uk

Subject: North Yorkshire County Council- Highways Response - Local Plan
Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Sir/Madam

Please find below a response from the Local Highways Authority, North Yorkshire County Council. Thanks again for
consulting us on your Local Plan,
we look forward to continued communication regarding your Plan and related evidence base.

Kind Regards
Melisa Burnham
Senijor Engineer- LP

York’s Cross Boundary Working Document (June 2013) states the following;

- The North Yorkshire and York Spatial Transport Board is a process- Duty to Cooperate

- There is a Draft MoU between York sub Area joint infrastructure working forum and the Highways Agency for
the A64

- York aim to continue and refine details as the LP Progress’ to examination.

In Paragraph 5.7 of this document York recognise the movement between authorities across North Yorkshire,
highlighting the important links with Craven and Harrogate.

5.13 of this document recognises that ‘further engagement will take place with neighbouring authorities and
prescribed bodies through continuing the joint working and cooperation process.’

Paragraphs 5.29 and 5.30 recognise Strategic issues but there is no mention of the Local Highways Authority and the
Highway network in North Yorkshire.

City of York Economic and retail vision- Overall approach to transport, movement and access.

This document recognises the need to support highway infrastructure. York state; * Supporting highway
infrastructure previously identified, an acknowledgement in the emerging LDF in 2011 that highway infrastructure
alone will not be sufficient to adequately meet the needs of city growth.’

Whilst North Yorkshire County Council and the Highways Agency have been recognised as statutory consultees the
North Yorkshire Local Highway Authority (NY-LHA) has not been mentioned in any of these documents. As part of
the Allocation and Designation the NY LHA Local Highways Authority (NYCC) would wish to see further analysis of
sites and their cumulative impact on cross boundary links to North Yorkshire to destinations include including
Harrogate (A59/ A168 junctions ), Selby, Malton and Thirsk/Northallerton.

The NY LHA have worked closely with York’s neighbouring authorities to address the Highway concerns and would
welcome similar discussions with York as part of their ‘LP progress to examination’. To date the NYLHA haven't
seen any evidence to demonstrate that the additional development at York will not have a detrimental impact on
North Yorkshire’s highway network . this is of particular concern for (in particular the impact of the urban
extensions at Clifton Moor and South East of the City at Holme Hill . The NY LHA would expect to see that the impact
of growth has been identified through the site location planning process on the key transport corridors of
neighbouring Authorities. The NYLHA would also request that at the Planning Application stage all Transport

1



Page 138

Assessments for applications close to the York Boundary consider the impact on junctions/ roads of the
neighbouring Authorities.

The NY LHA have welcomed engagement at the recent Duty to Cooperate meeting (31st July) and have provided
comments on the ‘City of York Local Plan preferred Options’ Analysis of wider impacts of strategic parties’ in a
separate email. It is hoped that future meetings can build on the comments made and progress the above.

Access your county council services online 24 hours a day, 7 days a week at
www.northyorks.gov.uk.

WARNING

Any opinions or statements expressed in this e-mail are those of the individual and not necessarily
those of North Yorkshire County Council.

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and solely for the use of the intended
recipient. If you receive this in error, please do not disclose any information to anyone, notify the
sender at the above address and then destroy all copies.

North Yorkshire County Council?s computer systems and communications may be monitored to
ensure effective operation of the system and for other lawful purposes. All GCSX traffic may be
subject to recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation.

Although we have endeavoured to ensure that this e-mail and any attachments are free from any
virus we would advise you to take any necessary steps to ensure that they are actually virus free.

If you receive an automatic response stating that the recipient is away from the office and you
wish to request information under either the Freedom of Information Act, the Data Protection Act
or the Environmental Information Regulations please forward your request by e-mail to the Data
Management Team (datamanagement.officer@northyorks.gov.uk) who will process your request.

North Yorkshire County Council.



Page 139
ID. 50 NOT Frwuicuiiver 1 MARKED

Date: 26" July 2013

Mr Martin Grainger
Head of Integrated Strategy Response & Reassurang
City of York Council
West Offices
Station Rise

York

YO1 6GA

Dear Mr Grainger,

North Yorkshire Police response to City of York Local Plan Preferred Options
consultation.

Thank you for your recent consultation notice in respect of the preparation of a new
Local Plan for the City of York.

North Yorkshire Police wish to confirm our desire for both the City of York Council
and North Yorkshire Police to continue to work closely in partnership to deliver
against the Police and Crime Plan 2013 — 2017 and The City of York Council Plan
2011 — 2015, as well as looking forward towards 2030 when the Local Plan will be
achieved in full.

The consultation to date has been welcomed and the agreed amendments to the
Local Plan, as per our consultation on the 24" July 2013, are received with thanks.

North Yorkshire Police welcome the opportunity to continue to maintain constructive
consultation, thereby ensuring the Local Plan is cognisant of the Policing needs for
the City of York and North Yorkshire.

Yours sincerely,

Phil Cain

T/Superintendent

York Safer Neighbourhood Commander
North Yorkshire Police

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
Non-emergency
@] CRIMESTOPPERS il
b 9800 555 111 Police Station | Fulford Road | York | YO10 4BY @ 101
Fax 01904 669313 | DX No 68900 YORK 11 ..




Page 140

RYEDALE ID. 6
DISTRICT
COUNCIL

Planning Services
Ia.n Stokes ' Jill Thompson
City of York Council

Integrated Strategy Unit
Directorate of City and

Ext: 327

jill.thompson@ryedale.gov.uk

Environmental Services
West Offices

Station Rise

York, YO1 6GA

Dear lan,
City of York Local Plan- Preferred Options (June 2013)

Thank you for consulting the District Council as part of your recent Local Plan Preferred
Options consultation. As a neighbouring authority to the City of York, Ryedale is keen to
contribute to the development of York's Local Plan and the consideration of cross
boundary strategic issues. The production of a development plan for the City is an
imperative. It will provide certainty around addressing development requirements and
providing for growth for residents and businesses within the City but also provides
certainty for those within surrounding areas. For these reasons, the District Council is
keen to actively engage in the production of the Plan and to support the process where
it can.

Against this context, | have confined Ryedale's response to the more strategic elements
of the Plan and specific matters which are of interest to this Authority. These are as
follows:

Spatial Strategy

The strategy of the emerging Plan recognises and builds on the City’'s role as a key
economic driver and higher order economic, retail and service centre. The approach
reflects longstanding agreement and support for this role, both in terms of the York sub-
area and the role and influence of the City in the wider region.

The preferred approach reflects in principle, the strategy embodied in the former
Regional Spatial Strategy. This was taken forward and endorsed by Local Government
North Yorkshire and York when it agreed the North Yorkshire and York Sub-Area
Strategy as a basis for advocating the strategic development priorities of the sub-region
at a time when revisions to the RSS were no longer to be progressed. Most recently, the
York/North Yorkshire and East Riding Local Economic Partnership has included the
growth of the City of York as a priority in its Strategic Economic Plan.

It is considered that this background demonstrates that there is longstanding
agreement, achieved by on-going collaborative working over the past ten years that
such an approach is an appropriate development strategy for the City. The approach is
entirely consistent with Ryedale’'s emerging Development Plan which recognises the
functional economic area of the City of York, travel to work area patterns and housing
market dynamics.

On this basis, the District Council is supportive of the overall spatial strategy of the
emerging Plan and the York sub-area approach as outlined in Policies SS1 and SS2.
Additionally. it is considered that the preferred role of the York Green Belt and approach

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7THH

Tel: 01653 600666 Fax: 01653 690834
Email: Ipandc@ryedale.gov.uk working with you to make

16 August 2013

a difference



Page 141
RYEDALE &Q\Wﬂ;
DISTRICT ¢
COUNCIL ™

to safeguarded land is appropriate. The existing Ryedale Local Plan makes it clear that
the primary objective of the York Green Belt is to protect the character of the City, and it
is considered that this remains a locally-specific, relevant and appropriate objective. The
approach is consistent with the fact that the emerging Ryedale Plan seeks to maintain
the outer boundary of the York Green Belt, which was defined in the Ryedale Local Plan
to reflect the objective of protecting the historic character of the City.

The District Council has no detailed or specific comments to make in relation to the
proposed spatial distribution of development and levels growth. It is concerned about
the impact of growth on cross boundary strategic infrastructure, most notably the A64. It
is keen to continue to work with the City, other adjoining Authorities and the Highways
Agency to ensure that the cumulative impact of growth can be addressed, and a co-
ordinated approach to developer contributions/ CIL to secure improvements can be
considered and agreed.

Economy

The proposed approach reflects the strategic role of the City. The Plan recognises that
York will act as an economic driver for the wider sub-region and building links to the
York economy forms an element of the economic strategy of this District. In this respect,
it would be useful if the Plan could reflect the economic opportunities associated with
the FERA site on the York/ Ryedale boundary. The North Yorkshire/ York and East
Riding Local Economic Partnership is focussed on the delivery of an agri-
tech/innovation campus at the Sand Hutton site which will have strong links with the
University of York and Science City York. The project is entirely consistent with York’s
economic strategy ambitions as an innovation capital, as well as being consistent with
the ambitions of neighbouring authorities.

Housing

The District Council is, in principle, supportive of the level of housing growth proposed in
the Plan. It is a level of housing in excess of current household projections, and is one
which is aimed at integrating housing and economic growth. This is entirely appropriate
given the strategic role of the City. It is an approach which will improve choices for those
wishing to live and work in the City, and is one which should serve to ease some of the
pressures in the wider housing market area that have been experienced in the past.

I hope that this letter confirms the District Council's views on key strategic elements of
your emerging Plan. If you require any further clarification of the points that | have made
in this letter, please do not hesitate to contact me.

| should point out that at this stage this response is an Officer-level response. The
District Council will provide Member-level representations to the Plan as it reaches its

formal stages. In the meantime, | will ensure that Members of the District Council are
regularly briefed and informed of the on-going development of the City of York Plan.

Yours sincerely,
) Thompson

Jill Thompson
Forward Planning Manager

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH

Tel: 01653 600666 Fax: 01653 690834
Email: Ipandc@ryedale.gov.uk waorking with you to make a difference



Page 142

Roberts, John

From: Stokes, lan

Sent: 11 September 2013 14:13

To: Roberts, John

Subject: FVW: Respense from Selby District Coucnil
Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Dear John,

| realise this (see below) is after the normal consultation deadline and the extension
given to neighbouring local authorities, but please will you include this as a
response to the Local Plan Preferred Options.

Regards,

lan Stokes | Development Officer (Transport Strategy)
1: 01904 551429 | e: ian.stokes@york.gov.uk

City of York Council |Integrated Strategy Unit |

Directorate of City and Environmental Services

West Offices | Station Rise | York | YO1 6GA
www.york.gov.uk | facebook.com/cityofyork | @CityofYork
From: Andrew McMillan [mailto:amcmillan@selby.gov.uk]

Sent: 11 September 2013 10:59 :

To: Stokes, Jan
Subject: Response from Selby District Coucnil

Dear SirfMadam

RE: emerging plans

At its meeting on 5 September 2013, The Executive agreed the following response to be submitted to you in order to
fulfil the Duty to Cooperate to maximise the effectiveness of policies for strategic matters in Local Plans. Selby
District Council broadly supports your Local Plan {including LDF, Core Strategy, Allocations, and other policy
documents} approach and the policies within them. The Council is satisfied that there has been satisfactory ongoing
cross-boundary cooperation between Selby District Council and your authority through Officer and Member bodies,
net least the Leeds City Region and York & North Yorkshire Board/Technical Officer Group.

The Executive would make the following specific points with regard to your emerging plans, but restricts its
observations fo strategic issues, or those that may have a direct impact upon Selby District,

It is understood from discussion with Officers at CYC that the Preferred Options version of the York Locat Plan should
be considered not as a fine-funed draft plan. Instead, it should be considered as a discussion paper that adds a
spatial dimension to previous consultation exercises. It adds flesh to the bones to create something that is more
meaningful to non-planners and can therefore generate more useful responses than an abstract issues and options
paper could. Selby's responses are presented on the basis of this intarpretation.

Selby broadly supports York’s recognition of itself as the Gateway to North Yorkshire, and the spatial planning
responsibilities that brings as the leading settlement in the sub region (after Leeds). York’s ambitious growth targets
are acknowledged and supported in principle. Selby is pleased to be recognised as a key District that supports York's
role through providing a ready workforce and customers, and also that Selby provides an attractive countryside

1



Page 143

setting for the city. Selby is well placed tobene . .._... ... . ...._.. Ic overspill of York whilst it retains its own rural
character.

Selby is satisfied that York can realise its growth aspirations within its own territory. While there is clearly a lot of
cross-boundary activity in terms of commuting, Selby and York retain distinctly different housing and employment
characters that work in harmony. The Council would refer CYC to Selby Core Strategy that was recently found Sound
by the Inspector. The Core Strategy is scheduled for Adoption in Autumn this year. The relaticnship between CYC
and Seiby are set out in that document and its background docurnents.

Loeking beyond the high tevel strategic vision of the CYC Local Plan, Selby would comment on a number of details
set out within it as follows:

Policy 883 v): Site ST15 "Whinthorpe village” is a departure from the recent (abandoned) Core Strategy approach.
SDC is concerned at the lack of information available to prepare a detailed response on this matter which is clearly a
significant new settlement of 8580 close {o the Selby Border. Selby's concerns are centred around highway impact
on the already congested A64. Selby's own growth will potentially add a significant number of journeys on to the A19
to York, and without certainty of Whintorpe's access arrangements Selby cannot properly consider the implications.
Selby considers that the broad location has not been fully explored and evaluated in the context of alternative sites.

Specifically, significant investrment in public transport infrastructure (including for example new railway stations at
Haxby) could be more beneficial locations for such large scale growth, instead of remote locations such as site 3T15
that have no existing infrastructure to build upon. At a proposed 50 dwellings per hectare it is considered that there is
a risk that the new village could be high-rise and a significant visual intrusion in the flat landscape. The potential for a
further 174ha of safeguarded land for development beyond the plan period is also of concern for the same reasons.
Seiby DC is not formally objecting to Whinthorpe at this stage, however it has raised concems about Whintharpe that
can oy be addressed through the provision of additicnal information to assess any potential impact upen Selby
District.

SDC supports the expansion and improvements of Park and Ride facilities at the Designer Outlet. SDC also notes
the designation of the Cutlet for leisure develepment, but would query the reasoning behind this as it is a shopping
centre, not leisure destination. Any development that increases the attractiveness of this out of centre iocation must
be rigorously considered with more information to assess the potential strategic impact upon Selby Town as a
Principal Town {as set out in the former Regional Strategy). In a town centre hierarchy, if there are no suitable sites in
York City Centre it is considered that Selby should be the pricrity for devetopment before the out of centre location.

Like York, SDC is also locking to review the York Green Belt (where it applies in Selby District). A coordinated
approach would be beneficial, and is something we can develop together at the appropriate time. SDC would
welcome explaration of opportunities for joint commissioning where appropriate.

SDC is considering its future options towards renewable energy generation in the context of wind farming, and notes
the significant areas of search highfighted on the Proposals Map adjacent to Selby District. SDC would welcome joint
working in further studies {o address this issue in a coordinated manner.

I trust the above is useful, however should you require clarification or further discussion or comment, do not hesitate
to contact me.

Yours sincerely

Andrew McMillan
Policy & Strategy Team

Andrew McMitlan
Paticy Officer

t: 01757 705101
e: amcmillan@seiby.gov,uk
w: www.selby.gov.uk

Selby District Council, Civic Centre, Doncaster Road, Selby, YO8 9FT.



Page 144




Page 145

ID. 295

Bellerby, Neil

From: Walsh, Alexandra

Sent: 31 July 2013 13:40

To: localplan@york.gov.uk

Subject: FW: York Local Plan Preferred Options - Yorkshire Water's consultation response
Attachments: Schedule of Sites.xIsx; York Local Plan PO Housing Allocations site specific

comments.docx; York WWTW capacity 2013.xIsx; YW policy response 2013.docx

From: Matthew.Gibson@Y orkshirewater.co.uk
[mailto:Matthew.Gibson@Yorkshirewater.co.uk]

Sent: 26 July 2013 14:42

To: localplan@

Cc: Stokes, lan; Walsh, Alexandra

Subject: York Local Plan Preferred Options - Yorkshire Water's consultation
response

Dear Sir/Madam,

Please find attached Yorkshire Water's response to the current consultation related
to the Local Plan Preferred Option document. Our response contains detailed site
specific comments related to infrastructure constraints and sewer network capacity,
an update on capacity at our WwTW's within York and a response to the policies
contained within the document.

(See attached file: Schedule of Sites.xlsx)(See attached file: York Local Plan PO
Housing Allocations site specific comments.docx)(See attached file:

York WWTW capacity 2013.xIsx)(See attached file: YW policy response
2013.docx)

If you have any questions or require any further clarification on any issues then
please do not hesitate to contact me.

regards
Matthew

Matthew Gibson BA(Hons) MSc MRTPI

Senior Development Planner

Land Property & Planning, Yorkshire Water Services Ltd 2nd Floor, Western House,
Western Way, Halifax Road, Bradford, BD6 25Z T 01274 692916 E
matthew.gibson@yorkshirewater.co.uk

www.yorkshirewater.com




Page 146
http://www.yorkshirewater.com/abou-usianu-piuperty-and-planning.aspx

Spotted a leak?
If you spot a leak please report it immediately. Call us on 0800 57 3553 or go to
http://www.yorkshirewater.com/leaks

Get a free water saving pack

Don't forget to request your free water and energy saving pack, it could save you
money on your utility bills and help you conserve water.
http://www.yorkshirewater.com/savewater

The information in this e-mail, and any files transmitted with it, is confidential and
may also be legally privileged. The contents are intended solely for the addressee
only and are subject to the legal notice available at
http://www.keldagroup.com/email.htm. This email does not constitute a binding
offer, acceptance, amendment, waiver or other agreement, or create any obligation
whatsoever, unless such intention is clearly stated in the body of the email. If you
are not the intended recipient, please return the message by replying to it and then
delete the message from your computer. Any disclosure, copying, distribution or
action taken in reliance on its contents is prohibited and may be unlawful.

Yorkshire Water Services Limited
Registered Office Western House, Halifax Road, Bradford, BD6 2SZ Registered in
England and Wales No 2366682



Page 147

Yorkshire Water response to York’s Local Plan Preferred Options
Prepared by Matthew Gibson, Senior Development Planner, Yorkshire Water

Tel: 01274 692916 Email: matthewgibson@yorkshirewater.co.uk

Please refer to additional documents for site specific comments and capacity comments.

Section 2- Spatial portrait

Within Section 2, spatial portrait, there is no mention of water or drainage. Sections are attributed
to green infrastructure, climate change and carbon footprint, waste and minerals and environmental
quality. Within these water, other than the Rivers Ouse, Foss and Derwent, is not mentioned.

York states green infrastructure (paragraph 2.15) as including strays, waterways, formal parks and
gardens , woodlands, street trees, green corridors, nature reserves and open countryside. YW
recommend this be extended to include other water based blue infrastructure.

Section 3- Spatial vision and outcomes

YW support the inclusion of paragraph 3.21 which states that the local plan will ensure that new
development is not subject to, nor contributes to, inappropriate levels of flood risk, including from
the Rivers Ouse, Foss and Derwent and other sources and it will ensure that new development
delivers sustainable drainage solutions.

Section 4- Sustainable Development

Policy SD1: Sustainable Development states under Natural Resources and Environmental Protection
that it aims to reduce flood risk by ensuring that new development is not subjected to or does not
contribute to flooding. Point two states that the plan will ensure sustainable design techniques are
incorporated in new developments and maximise the generation and use of low carbon/renewable
energy. We feel that similar wording and encouragement should be given to using water sustainable
urban design techniques to reduce flooding and the use of water saving devices in new
development.

Section 5- Spatial Strategy

Policy SS2, Delivering Sustainable Growth, states that the location of development will be steered
by (among other things) ensuring flood risk is appropriately managed.

Policy SS4, Strategic Sites Development Principles - The council will prepare SPDs regarding all
strategic sites. We see this as an opportunity to develop, test and encourage new and emerging
technologies related to sustainable drainage and water saving. YW would welcome the opportunity
to work with the Council, developers and stakeholders to pursue these possibilities.

Section 6- York City Centre

YW support the inclusion of Policy YCC1 x. , which states that community and recreational facilities,
including green space, should be provided to help combat the effects of flooding.



Page 148

Section 7- York Central

The York Northwest corridor is being promoted as an Urban Eco settlement with sustainable living at
the core. York central falls within this. Policy YC1: York central special policy area has no mention of
SUDs, drainage or water management. York Central will be further outlined in the preparation of a
SPD which may present the opportuntity to include more detail on water management although YW
would prefer to see additional reference to this important issue within the policy.

Section 17- Green Infrastructure

The definition as given for green infrastructure is not particularly strong. It states that ‘green
infrastructure is the term used for the overarching framework related to all green assets.” Further to
paragraph 2.15 (as mentioned above) there is no information regarding what could be considered
green infrastructure.

There is no specific mention of water or blue infrastructure further to mentioning the River’s as
green corridors. There are specific policies within this section regarding issues such as biodiversity,
trees, open space and playing pitches, new open space and green corridors. SUDS represent an
important step in managing the effects of climate change and reducing flood risk. SUDS in new
developments may include ponds, scrapes, drainage channels etc and it is likely that these would be
designed as part of green infrastructure. Could a separate policy be promoted for blue
infrastructure and its contribution to open spaces, biodiversity etc?

Section 18- Green Belt

Under policy GB5: Major developed sites in the Green Belt, Elvington WTW, Naburn, Rawcliffe and
Haxby Walbutts WWTW are all listed as large developments. Limited infilling will be permitted upon
these sites providing it meets certain criteria. The criteria should allow for YW to continue
developing the works to meet the growth in housing and population proposed by the City Council.
As currently written, the criteria may impede YW’s ability to create additional capacity and develop
new and sustainable technologies. YW would request that the policy criteria are altered to allow for
certain exceptions if proved necessary.

Section 19- Flood Risk Management

YW are supportive of Policy FR2: Surface Water Management which advocates the use of SDS
within new development, stating it is an expectation for their incorporation unless it can be
otherwise demonstrated it is not technically possible or would compromise the viability of the
scheme.

As standard new development on brownfield sites are expected to reduce surface water runoff by
30% and on greenfield sites there is expected to be no increased in runoff rates. This requirement is
aligned with YW’s preferred approach.

YW need to be involved in the design and feasibility of SDS in all new development where the system
will eventually communicate with a public sewer. Wording should be included within the text to
encourage developers to open dialogue with YW at an early stage. This will become critical once the
legislation for compulsory adoption is introduced in April 2014.



Page 149

The local plan refers to the adoption (2012) of the City of York Surface Water Management Plan.
Links to this plan could be strengthen.

Paragraph 19.6 states that the Local Plan will promote SDS through a Sustainable Design and
Construction SPD which will address issues of flood resilience and resistance along with SDS
adoption.

Policy FR3: Ground water management and the text in 19.7 and 19.8 appear to be slightly confused.
The policy states that new development will not be permitted to allow outflow from ground
water/and or land drainage to enter public sewers. It also calls for existing land drainage systems
within new development to be adequately maintained. We suggest seeking further clarification on
these issues and considering separate policies on land drainage and ground water management.

Section 20- Climate Change

Policy CC2: Sustainable Design and Construction focuses purely on energy demand and renewable
technology and fails to include information and requirements related to water saving and
sustainable drainage. Designing in and retrofitting water saving technology into developments is key
to ensuring an adequate supply of clean water for future generations. Reducing the reliance on
drinking water for tasks such as flushing toilets and watering gardens etc. should be considered in all
new development.

Section 21: Environmental Quality
Water quality is not specifically referred to.
Section 22: Waste and Minerals

Policy WM2: Safeguarding Mineral Resources and Local Amenity, the criteria for allocating new
mineral sites should include the following:

* There is no detrimental impact on existing utilities within the site



Page 150

Yorkshire Water response to York’s Local Plan Preferred Options

Site specific comments
Prepared by Matthew Gibson, Senior Development Planner, Yorkshire Water

Tel: 01274 692916 Email: matthewgibson@yorkshirewater.co.uk

Proximity to Waste Water Treatment Works

The strength of odours from a Waste Water Treatment Works (or Pumping Station) at any particular
time will depend on a number of factors, including the type of processes undertaken on the site,
distance from the source, wind strength and direction and ambient temperature. The concentration
of odour will normally diminish as the distance from the source increases. Therefore, a Cordon
Sanitaire around a Works should ensure that dwellings, offices and other odour sensitive
developments are not in a location likely to be affected by odour nuisance.

Based on our experience of odour from Waste Water Treatment Works, we would recommend
safeguarding a Cordon Sanitaire of distance 400 metres for the Works. This is reflective of the
recommended distance used for planning purposes as outlined in The Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995: Part 6 (Agricultural Buildings and Operations) which
sets out a requirement that protected buildings should not have accommodation for livestock or for
the storage of slurry or sewage sludge located within 400 metres of their curtilage. The water
industry nationally adopted the 400m ‘Cordone Sanitaire’ as being a reasonable comparison
between the odours generated by livestock waste and that arising from the treatment of human
sewage. This distance may be flexible in certain circumstances (following consultation with Yorkshire
Water) on a case by case basis subject to the provision of verifiable evidence and site specific
mitigation.

The most effective way of mitigating the risk of future occupiers of new development from suffering
loss of amenity is through the land use planning system, ensuring no land is allocated for housing
adjacent to a WwTW.

H26- Land at Dauby Lane, Elvington

YW wish to highlight concerns regarding site allocation H26, Land at Dauby Lane, Elvington. This site
is within a 200m proximity of the operation boundary of Elvington Waste Water Treatment Works.
Given the proximity of existing residential properties and the small scale of the WwTW there may be
no issue however the layout should reflect the proximity and potential for nuisance.

H27- Land at the Brecks, Strensall

YW wish to highlight concerns regarding site allocation H27, Land at the Brecks, Strensall. Parts of
this site are within a 400m proximity to Haxby Walbutts Waste Water Treatment Works’ operation
boundary which should be taken into consideration when designing a layout. YW acknowledge the



Page 151

current existence of a tree buffer beyond the eastern site boundary and recommend that this
should remain in place to help mitigate against any adverse effects from this WwTW.

ST21- Naburn Designer Outlet

YW wish to highlight some concerns regarding site allocation ST21, Naburn Designer Outlet. Parts of
this site are just within the 400m proximity to Naburn Waste Water Treatment Works’ operational
boundary. This should be considered as part of any development proposals.

Infrastructure layout

H40- West Fields, Copmanthorpe

YW wish to highlight concerns regarding site allocation H40, West Fields, Copmanthorpe. Crossing
the site are surface water and foul sewers. The current positioning of the sewers will significantly
affect the layout of the site. Alternatively, diversion of the sewers may be a suitable option.



Page 152

06861 3uisnoy
pue Aojdw3 34 |ejo)
pouad uejd ay3 Jano pasodoud Yyamous Jo [9A3] a3 404 deJpdYM e Audeded st auayl 9z2 8¢ 88T SL eJpdYM
pouad ue|d ay3 4ano pasodoud Yyimous Jo [9A3] Y3 04 yroyny e Ayoeded siauay) S/ ST 09 124 yuoyny
(¥TLS) 400Nl UOMIID JO YLION #88ST 19T €CLST 68¢9 J0A lPMeY
pueq 1e aus 21891e41s Y1 yum juepodwi Apejnaipied sisiyl M LMAN 33 1e paJinbal sjuswaissAul Aue yiim 31eu1piood
01 paseyd ag 01 9ABY [[IM JUSWIYDILI SIY} Ul PIILIO||E SDUS "SHJOM BY] Ul JUSWISIAUI JOJ JuswaJinbal e 1a88uy |im
1usWY21ed 3y} ul (w1 Suo| 01 wnipaw) polad ueld ay) J9A0 YIMOoJS JO [9A3] 3Y3 pue ayjijomey 1e Ayoeded payiwi| Si 919y
(STLS) 3uaWa|119s MaN adIoyuIyM e 8T60€ 885 0€€0€E CETTT uingeN
21s 21891e415 3Y3 yum juepodwi Ajaenaided st syl M IMAN 2yl 03 sapesddn Alessadau apisSuole pauaAl|ap 24 SIS 94NSud
03 padinbau aq ||Im Suiseyd ‘poriad uejd sajoym ay3 1ano pasodoud siaquunu syl a1epowwodde o3 polsad ueld ay) jo sadels
J91E| 3Y1 Ul PAPI3U 3( ||IM JUSWISIAUL JaAIMOY YimouS pasodoud Jo [9A3] a3 4oy uingeN e Ayoeded Juedijiudis st ausy L
MLMM 3yl 1e palinbaJ sJuswi1saAul Aue yum 21euipiood 0} paseyd aq 01 9ABY [|IM JUBWAYDIED SIY1 Ul P1LIO|[B SB1IS "SHIOM GHE ov S0€ fa4s uoj3uing
9Y3 Ul JUSWSAAUI 40 JusWaJINbaJ e 138813 ||IM JUBWIYIIED BY) Ul YIMoJS JO [9A3] 9Y3 pue uolBulA|] e Ayoeded ou S| auay |
powad ue|d sy 4an0 pasodoud Yyimous Jo |9A3] Y3 Joj s1angiep AgxeH e Ayoeded s alayl ve 0 (37474 LL6 sunglem AgxeHq
a1epdn €10z Aoede) |eloL judjeainb3 qor jusjeainb3 uonejndod siaquinN SuisnoH MLMM




Page 153

Juawdo|aAap a4niny Jo InoAe| 3y3 10344e 0s pue Ajdde |im:

J9MBas Ydea 10} Saduelsip JJO puels alls ayl mc_wwo‘_u @inipnJaiseqjul a8esamas
si 249y "uonesidde Sujuueld e jo uoissiwqns ay3 03 Jold uondadsul

9}Is e 1no Aised 0} UmeL:Ou:w ale wmec_w>wﬁ_ $1500 |euollppe anaut

IM }40MIBU Jamas d1jgnd ay) 0} UoNBUU0I Jey) pajedidnue si 31 JUaWdo|aAap

pasodoud ay3 jo uoneso| ay1 01 anq ‘jesodoud siyy wouy as1eyasip
131eM |NOJ pajedidiue Y3 91ePOWWOIIE 0} 3|ge|ieAe Ayoeded a1enbape
2ABY 10U S0P }JOMIBU JaMaS [noj d1jqnd BY1 1S 3Y1 JO AUUIDIA 3YI UIYUM

‘uonedjjdde Sujuueld e jo uoissiwgns ay) 03 Jolid uoidadsi

9IS e 1n0 Alied 0] paSeunodus a.e sJ9dojaASQ SISO [eUOIPPE JNdul

M 3JOMIBU JaM3S d1jgnd 3] 0} UOIIIBULOD Jey) patedidiue si 3l JuawdojaAap
pasodoud ay) jo uonedso| ayy 01 anq ‘|esodoud siyy wouy asieydsip

J31em [noj pajedidilue ay) alepowwodde 0} 3|qejiene Ajoeded ajenbape
9ABY 10U SI0P }JOMIBU JaM3S |0y dljgnd ay3 a1Is aY3 Jo Al Y1 UIyIM

‘uoned|jdde Sujuue|d e jo uoissiwqns ayy 01 Joud uodads

91Is e 1n0 Auied 01 pageinodua ale s1adojanag SISO [RUONIPPE JNdul

IM 3JOMIaU JaMas d1jqnd BY3 03 UOIIIBUUO0D Jey) pajedidijue s 3l Juswdojansp
pasodoud ay3 jo uoneso| ay1 01 anq ‘jesodoud siyy wouy a81eyasip

J31eM |noj pajedidiue Y3 93ePOWWOIIE 0} 3|ge|ieAe Ayoeded ajenbape
2ABY 10U S0P }JOMIBU JaMaS [noj d1jqnd aY1 1S Y1 JO ANUIDIA 3YI UIYUM

*9HS JO YINOs 3y UIylm 33is 3y} Jo
ugisap 19948 Aew ujew Suisi Jo uonisod Jualn)

JusWase
1e83] yum ‘aus ySnouya urew Suisu |no4

uingeN

008T

09

SUeT 34B233IAl JO 3S€3 03 pueq

90TONA

L1S

uingen

ST

S'S

Jeg uolswio jo ise3 pueq

SOTOMA

91S

91IS B} JO 243U UIYIM pue| pjoyaald
puB[A3)Y "3}IS BY3 UIYIIM SUIBW PUE SIIMIS SNOLIBA

uingeN

8EY

|eJ3US) JIOA

YOTONA

SIS

‘uonedyjdde Sujuueld e jo uoissiwgns ay) 01 Jolid uondadsul

9IS e 1n0 Alied 0] paSeunodus a.e sJ9dojaASQ SISO [euoIppE Jndul

JIIm 3Jom1au J1aMas d1jgnd a1 0} UOIII3UUOD Jey) paledidiue si 31 JuawdojaAap
pasodoud ay) jo uonedso| ayy 01 anq ‘|esodoud siyy wouy a81eydsip

J31em [noj pajedidilue ay) a1epowwodde 0} 3|qejiene Ajoeded ajenbape

9ABY 10U SI0P }JOMIBU JaM3S [N0J lgnd BY3 SIS 3Y) JO ANUIIA 3Y3 UIYIM

‘uonedsyjdde Sujuue|d e jo uoissiwgns ayy 01 Joud uondadsul

91Is & 1n0 Auied 01 pageinodua ale siadojanag SIS0 [RUONIPPE Ndul

M Y10MIBU Jamas d1jgnd 3y} 03 UOIII3UUOI Jey) paledidiue si 3 Juswdojansp
pasodoud ay3 jo uonedo| ayy 03 anq ‘|esodoud siy1 wouy adieyasip

131eM |nOJ pajedidiue Y3 93ePOWWOIIE 0} 3|ge|ieAe Ayoeded ajenbape
2ABY 10U S0P }JOMIBU JaMaS [noj 1jqnd BY1 1S 9Y1 JO AUUIDIA 3YI UIYUM

“Juawdo|anap ain1ny Jo 1N0Ae| ay1 103)Je OS pue

Ajdde ||1m Jamas Yyoea oy SIIUEISIP JJO PUBLS "d)IS DY) BUISSOID aunjonuiseljul
28e1amas s1 aiay] "a1is [esodoud ay) Wwouy SMOJ) J91eM |Noy paledidnue
Algqeuoseau axe) 01 J10M1au Jamas [noy d1ignd sy ul Ayoeded ajenbape si auay |

's19sNn/s4a1dN220 31nyny Joy AJlUsWE JO SSO| e ueaw Aew uolIe|[eIsul SIY}

Jo Anwixoud ayy (sAepz/sinoy ) sawiy [|e 18 paiinbau aq |Im (S3[2IYaA Yum
Suipnpul) $s920y "91IS 9Y) JB3U/UIYIIM JSIBAN SJIYSHIOA JO [0JIU0D BY) Japun
sniesedde s| a1ay] "JuswdoaAap aininy Jo 1noAe| 8yl 1094je os pue Ajdde |im
13M3S |IB3 JOJ SRIURISIP JJO PUBIS "91IS 3Y3 SUISS0JI 3unjdnJlseljul 98elamas
sia1ayl ‘uonesijdde Sujuueld e jo uoissiwgns ay1 01 Joud uondads

9IS e 1n0 Alied 01 paBeunodus a.e sI9dojaAsQ SISO [euoilIppe Jndul

1M 310M13U JaMas 21 jgnd ay3 0] UOI1d3UU0D 1ey) pajedidiiue si 1 Juawdojanap
pasodoud ay) jo uonedso| ayy 01 anq ‘|esodoud siyy wouy a84eydsip

J31eMm [noj paledidilue ay) a1epowwodde 0} 3qejieAe Aleded ajenbape
9ABY 10U S30P }JOMIBU JaM3S |0} dljgnd ay3 a1Is ay3 Jo A Y1 UIYIM

‘saul| Azepunoq
yiou pue 3sem 03 Juadfepe sulew Jarem agie]

uingen

1174

LA

Jeg uojswuo pue peoy ||nH ‘fpe pue]

€0TONA

V1S

oA spIpMeEY

9TC

SL'L

U7 J3IBM ‘SJ0ISUIRID DY L

2O0TOMA

€1S

31IS JO YInos ssoJde ulew 8u |no4

uingen

80¢

T

‘punoJS sp0ds 3IIAISS [IAID JUWIOH

TOTOMA

[48

J3U10 15E3 Y1ou
ul AJepunog uiyiim Jamas pue utew Suisu |no4

uingeN

866

v18e

|00ydS Joue /1e8ns ysnug

00TOMA

T1S

says onasens

19mas J1qnd
) |Iv) Adede) samas

Bunsixa o3 pasodsip 10u pS )

(aAn1uyap 10N) saulesisuo)

931S JEaU/UIYIM 2in3ona3selju|

M1IMM

PI3IA

az1s

uonedo| aus

431 MA

J34 )07




Page 154

‘2115 |esodoud ay1 wouy smoys 191em |noj paiedidiue
Algqeuoseau axe) 01 J10M1au Jamas [noy d1ignd ay3 ul Ayoeded ajenbape si auay |

*Azepunoq
uJa1sea puoAaq 1snl Juswasea |eSs| pue ulew
Jalem mm‘_m._ “91IS JO 1S9M Ul JoM3s Juan|jja aped] |

uingen

ove

€e'e

U319 YHOMAH 7 ‘S)Iom ses 1awio4

9TTONA

TH

eaJe ueqn
ujew 40

suonelo||y
SuisnoH

*911s |esodoud ay1 wouy Smoys 191em |noj pajedidiue
Algqeuoseau axe) 01 J40M1au Jamas [noy d1ignd ay3 ul Ayoeded ajenbape si auay |

“19uJ0d 1sea YHIOU Ul Jamas Jajem
92e4Ing "Alepunoq usaises Suoje sulew Jarep

uingen

0€T

LT'L

|eruapisal
0} YInos 33SaN 1e (|1e1au Adefjpuy
‘[oX3) pue| |BI2J3WWOD JO uolleudisapay

STTOMA

LT1S

*SH40M JUSW1EDI] I91BMBISEM MBU B JBPISU0D 0} Alessadau aq Aew
‘uonesjjdde Sujuueld e jo uoissiwgns ay) 01 Jolid uondadsul

311s e 1n0 Aied 0] pagelnodus ale siadojaas@ S1S0d [euonippe JNdul

JIIm 3JoMm1au JaMas d1jgnd ay3 0} UOIIIBULOI Jey) patedidiue si 31 JusawdojaAap
pasodoud ay) jo uonedso| ayy 01 anq ‘|esodoud siyy wouy a81eydsip

J31em [noj pajedidilue ay) a1epoWWodde 0} 3|qejiene Aloeded ajenbape

BABY 10U SI0P 3JOMIBU JaM3S [N0J dIgnd BY3 MIS 3Y) JO ANUIIA 3Y) UIYIM

‘yiou Je Asepunogq as Suoje
sunJ juawasea [e3a] yum ulew 3uisil |noy adie

uingeN

08SS

L1C

JUBWINIAS MAN 9dUoYIuIyM

YTTONA

STIS

*SH40M JUSW1EDI] I91BMBISEM MBU B JBPISU0D 0} Alessadau aq Aew
‘uonesjjdde Sujuueld e jo uoissiwgns ay) 01 Jolid uondadsul

311s e 1no A1ied 0} pagelnodua ale siadojaasg S$1S0d [BUOLIPPE INDI

IM }J0M]I3U JaMas 21 jqnd 3y} 0] UoI1d3UUOD Jey) pajedidiiue si 1 Juawdojanap
pasodoud ay) jo uonedo| ayy 03 anq ‘|esodoud siyy wouy a81eydsip

J31eMm [noj paledidilue ay) 91epoWWodde 0} 3|qejiene Ajoeded ajenbape
BABY 10U SI0P }JOMIBU JaM3S [N0j dIgnd dY3 MS 3Y3 JO ANUIIA BY3 UIYIM

"91IS JO YINn0s aY3 ulyuMm a1is
ay1 Jo usisap 109)4e Aew ujew Jo uopisod Juaiin)

“JuaWasea (eS| YIM 23S SSOJI. ulew a5ieT

SO a1oMey

ocov

VET

10O UORI|] $O Y3ION O3 pueT

ETTOMA

VvT1S

“a)ls |esodoud ay) WoJy SMojy J21em [noy pajedidijue
Ajqeuoseas axe} 01 310M13u Jamas [noy d1jgnd ays ul Axdeded ajenbape st aiay |

uingeN

STT

S'S

adioyjuewdo) ‘aue JooA e pue

CTTONA

€TL1S

“a)ls |esodoud ay) WoJj SMo|} J21em [noy pajediiue
Ajqeuoseas axe} 01 310M13U JaMas [noy d1jgnd ays ul Axdeded ajenbape st aiay)

uingeN

1

SLYT

adioyuewdo)
‘peoy yieaH Joue|A 1e pue

TTTONA

(49

‘uonedjdde Sujuue|d e jo uoissiwgns ayy 03 Jold uondadsul ays

eino Aiieo 0} UMMm‘_BOucm aJe m\_mnc_w>wh_ $1S0D |euOl}ippe Jndul |[IM }JoMmiau
Jamas 21jgnd ay3 03 uoidsUU0I Jeyy pajedidiiue si 3l uswdojaasp pasodoad
9y1 JO UoIe20| Y1 01 an( "21is |esodoud 9yl WoJ) SMo|y J91em |noj paredidijue
Alqeuoseau axe) 01 J10M1au Jamas [noy d1ignd sy ul Ayoeded ajenbape si auay |

>._mUc_JOn_ 9}IS UJD}SaM UO ulew Jajepy

S04 SpIPMEY

1114

L'ET

u033uUNUNH ‘BUET M3N 1€ pue]

OTTOMA

TT1S

‘uonedjdde Sujuue|d e jo uoissiwgns ayy 01 Joud uondadsul
91IS e 1n0 Auied 0} pageunodua ale s1adojaAQ S1SOD [BUOIIPPE Jndul
1M 3}JoMI3U JaMmas d1jgnd ay3 01 UOI1I3UUO0I Jey) paledidiue si 3 Juswdojanap

pasodoud ay3 jo uonedo| ay1 01 anq "|esodoud siyy wouy a81eyasip
J31em |noj pajedidnue ay) arepowiwiodde 03 a|qe|ieae Ayoeded ajenbape
9ABY 10U S0P FIOMIBU JaM3S [NOJ d1jqnd 3yl dS dY3 JO ANUIDIA Y3 UIYUM

y3Iou 1e Alepunoq 23Is UO J9MaS 191BM D2B4INS

uingeN

1%

LT

2d10YIpOOAA ‘DUET JOOA JE pue]

60TONA

0T1S

‘uonedyjdde Sujuueld e Jo uoissiwqgns ay) 01 Jolid uondadsul

9IS e 1n0 Alied 01 paBeunodus a.e sI9dojaAsQ SISO [euoilIppe Jndul

M 3J0MI3U JaM3S 21jgnd ay) 0] UO1Id3UU0D Jey) pajedidiiue si 3 Juawdojanap
pasodoud ay3 jo uonedso| ayx 03 anq ‘|esodoud siyy wouy a81eydsip

J31eMm [noj paledidilue ay) a1epowwodde 0} 3|qejiene Aleded ajenbape
SABY| 10U S0P YIOMIBU JaMa3s [noy d1jgnd ay1 311s 3y Jo Al Y3 UIYHM

SaNgleMm

Lyl

68'vC

AgxeH jo yuoN pueq

80TONA

61S

‘uonedyjdde Sujuue|d e jo uoissiwgns ayy 01 Joud uondadsul

21s e 1n0 Alied 01 paSeunodua a.e siadojaAdQ SISO [eUOIIPPE JNdul

IM YJ0M13U JaMas 21 jgnd ay) 0] Uo11d3UU0D Jey) pajedidiue si 3 Juawdojanap
pasodoud ay3 jo uoieso| ayy 01 anq ‘|esodoud siyy wouy adieyosip

J31em |noj pajedidnue ay) ajepowwiodde 03 a|qe|ieae Ayoeded ajenbape
9ABY 10U S0P FIOMIBU JaMIS [NOJ d1jqnd 3Y1 dS dY3 JO ANUIDIA Y3 UIYUM

J3UJ0D 15e3
Y1JOU Y] SSOIDE JUSWASED [ES3| PUB UlBW J31BAN

S04 SpIPMEY

69ST

€78

SS0.D SHUOIA| JO YLION pue

LOTOMA

81S




Page 155

"15aMm 1e Auepunoq 31IS UIYHM A|BA pue J313N

IOA ajipmey

LT

Ly'0

peoy uojdununy ‘su

=N

TETONA

9TH

‘uonedyjdde Sujuueld e o uoissiwqgns ay3 01 Jolid uojdadsul axs

e 1n0 AJJed 0} padesnodus aJe s42dojaAa@ $1S02 [BUOIIPPE JNDUI [[IM 3I0MIBU
19mas d1jgnd ay3 03 uoiPaUU0I 1ey) paleddiiue s| ) Juswdojaaap pasodosd
9Y3 JO UOI1eI0| Y] 01 3N IUBWAO[SA3P 34NINJ JO INOAR| BY] 10948 OS puEe
Ajdde ||1m 1aMmas Yoea 10 SIIUBISIP JJO PUBIS "d1IS dY) SUISSOID dINJoNIISelyul
25eJaMas sI 319y] "a1s [esodoad ay) wWouj SMoj} J91em |noy paedidijue
Ajgeuoseal aye) 01 3Jomiau Jamas [noy aljqnd ayi ul Aydeded ajenbape si aiay)

2115 Y3n01y) Jamas Ja1em 3eINS puUe [NoJ [[eWS

uingen

8T

6¥°0

10d3Q aue ppPag

O0ETONA

‘uonedyjdde Sujuueld e o uoissiwqgns ay3 01 Jolid uojdadsul aus

e 1n0 AJJed 0} padesnodus aJe s42dojaA3Q $1S02 [BUOIIPPE JNDUI [[IM }I0MIBU
19mas 21|gnd ay3 03 uoiPaUU0I 1ey) pajeddijue s| 1 Juswdojanap pasodoid
3Y1 Jo uonedo| ay3 03 ang "aus [esodoud 3y} WO SMO|4 J21eM |nOJ pajedidiue
Ajgeuoseal aye) 01 3Jomiau Jamas [noy aljqnd ayi ul Aldeded ajenbape si aiay]

uingen

[44

S50

192115 20UAIMET ZE

6CTONA

VTH

‘uonedyjdde Sujuueld e Jo uoissiwqgns ay3 01 Jolid uojdadsul aus

e 1n0 AJJed 01 padeinodus aJe $42dojaAa@ $1S02 [BUOIIPPE JNDUI [[IM }I0MIBU
19mas d1jgnd ay3 03 uoiPaUU0I 1ey) paieddijue s| 3 JuswdojaAap pasodoid
9Y3 JO UOI1eIO0| Y1 01 3N IUBWAO[SA3P 34NN} JO INOAR| 3] 10948 OS pue
Ajdde |j1m 1amas Yoea 104 SIIUBISIP JJO PUBIS "d1IS dY1 SUISSOID dINJINIISEIUL
25eJamas sI a1ay] "a1s [esodod ay) wouj SMoj} 191em |noy pajedidijue
Ajgeuoseal aye) 01 3Jomiau Jamas [noy aljqnd ayi ul Aydeded ajenbape st aiayL

1SE9 1e 31IS SS0JOE I9M3S J91eM 3Je)InS

uingen

6C

890

(qunadiooy
Bunsixa) jooyas Arewd s,Apeting

8TTONA

€TH

‘uonedjdde Sujuueld e jo uoissiwqgns ay3 01 Jolid uoidadsul aus

e 1n0 AJJed 03 padesnodus aJe $42dojaAaQ $1S02 [BUOIIPPE JNDUI [[IM }I0MIBU
19mas 2l|gnd ay3 03 uoiPaUU0I 1eyl pateddijue s| 1 Juswdojanap pasodoid
3Y3 Jo uonedo| Y3 03 ang "a1s |esodoud 3y} WOy SMO|4 J21eM |nOJ pajedidiiue
Ajgeuoseal aye) 01 3Jomiau Jamas [noy aljqnd ayi ui Aydeded ajenbape st aiayl

“159M
3Y) Ul 91IS J21Ud 1SN[ JI9MBS [NOJ PUR JSJBM 3IBLING

uingen

€€

LLO

anLQg
Jied p[a1usa.n /pue uopd0ls OY pue

LTTONA

CTH

‘2115 |esodoud ay) Wwouj SMOJ} J91eM |noy paledinue
Alqeuoseau axe) 01 J10M1au Jamas [noy d1ignd sy ul Ayoeded ajenbape si auay |

uingen

€€

8L°0

peoy pJoj|n4 ‘@snoH yo11apaid 1e pue

9CZTONA

TTH

*211s |esodoud ay) Wwouj SMOJ} J91eM |noy paledinue
Alqeuoseau axe) 01 J10M1au Jamas [noy d1ignd ay3 ul Ayoeded ajenbape si auay |

uingen

9s

8L°0

(pue| Sululewal) anua) uediqieg

STIONA

OTH

*211s |esodoud ay) Wouj SMOJ) J91eM [noy paledidnue
Alqeuoseas axe) 01 J10M1au Jamas [noy d1ignd sy ul Ayoeded ajenbape si auay |

*Alepunog UJayLIou UIylM UleW Ja1eAn

uingen

w

€T

auBT WeyYysy }o pue]

YTIONA

6H

*s19sn/s1a1dn22o a1niny 1oy Ajluswe Jo sso| e ueaw Aew uone|jeisul

s1y3 Jo Ajlwixoud sy “(sAepz/sinoy pz) sswiy ||e 3e palinbal aq ||Im (S3|21yan
Yum Bulpn|oul) $S900Y "21IS Y1 J83U/UIYLM JDIBAN SJIYSHIOA JO [043U0D

ay3 Japun snjesedde s 213y ‘JuswdojaAsp 31NNy Jo INOAR| Y3 193)4e OS pue
Ajdde [im Jamas Yyoea Joj S2dUBISIP JJO PURIS "91IS 3y SUISSOID anjonJiseljul
a8elamas s| a1ay] "aus [esodoud ay) Wouy SMoy Ja3em [noy pajediolue
Ajgeuoseal aye) 01 3Jomiau Jamas [noy aliqnd ayi ui Aldeded ajenbape st aiayL

"91IS @yl JO 1sed ul Jamas

|NO4 "Y3iou 3Y3 Ul 9IS SIIUD JIMIS paulquio)
‘91IS @Y1 JO YHIOU SSOUIe JaMBSs Jalem adeuns
“91S JO 243U SSOJIE JIMBIS pauIquod a8ie

uingen

0s

LST

apu puejied Jeg weyysy

ECTONA

8H

‘2115 |esodoud ay) wouj SMo|) J91eM |noy paledidnue
Alqeuoseau axe) 01 J10M1au Jamas [noy d1ignd sy ul Ayoeded ajenbape si auay |

uingen

69

[4a%

uadsaJ) weyloog

CTTONA

LH

“Juawdo|aAap aJniny Jo 1N0Ae| ay1 103)Je OS pue

Ajdde ||1m Jamas Yyoea oy S2DUEISIP JJO PUBLS "9IS DY) SUISSOID aunjonuiseljul
28e1amas s1 a1ay] "a1is [esodoud ay) wouy SMOJ) 191eM |Noy paledidnue
Alqeuoseas axe) 01 J10M1au Jamas [noy d1ignd sy ul Ayoeded ajenbape si auay |

‘sajoyuely 91s Jo
410U SS0J0€ pue 1SaM Suo|e JaMas Jalem 32e4ns

uingen

S9

v0'C

py Ja1sedpe] ‘alenbs ay) Oy pue]

TTIONA

9H

"a)Is |esodoud ay3 WoJj SMoj} J21eM [noy patediiiue
Ajgeuoseal aye) 01 3Jomiau Jamas [noy aljiqnd ayi ui Aydeded ajenbape si aiayL

159M
ur AJepunoq aus UlylIM J21aW pue ulew Ja1ep

uingeN

(44

vee

(3upidiooy
8uip|ing 8unisxa) |00YdS p|aYMOT

0ZTONA

SH

*a}is |esodoud ay3 WoJj SMo|} J21eM [noy patediiue
Ajgeuoseal aye) 01 3Jomiau Jamas [noy aljiqnd ayi ui Aydeded ajenbape si aiayL

uingeN

™l

9T

Anesuoln sydasor s

6TTONA

vH

"a}1s |esodoud ay3 WoJj SMo|} J21eM [noy patediiiue
Ajgeuoseal aye) 01 3Jomiau Jamas [noy aljiqnd ayi ui Aydeded ajenbape si aiayL

uingeN

80T

Le

(3unidiooy
X3) [00YdS awjoyuing

STTOMA

€H

‘|esodoud siyy wouy 98.4eydsip
191eM N0} pajedionue ay) alepowwodde o1 a|gejieae Aloeded ajenbape
9ABY 10U S0P }JOMIBU JAMBS N0y d1|qNnd BY1 1S 3Y3 JO AUUIDIA BYI UIYUM

uingeN

STT

88°C

peoy Jaiseape] ‘2sin0dadel A sals

LTTONA

CH




Page 156

‘uoneoljdde Sujuueld e jo uoissiugns ay3 01 Jolid uondadsul s uwngeN] € [8°T uoj3uiuung ‘pueq samoy sa1ep| SYTONA €€H
e 1n0 AJJed 0} padesnodus aJe $42dojaAaQ $1S02 [BUOIIPPE JNDUI [[IM 3I0MIBU
19mas 21|gnd ay3 03 uoiPaUU0I 1ey) pajeddiiue s| 3l Juswdojanap pasodoid
3Y1 Jo uonedo| aYy) 03 ang "aus [esodoud 3y} WO SMO|4 J21eM |nOJ pajedidiue
Ajgeuoseal aye) 01 3Jomiau Jamas [noy aljqnd ayi ul Aldeded ajenbape si aiayl
‘uoneoijdde Sujuueld e jo uoissiugns ay3 01 Jolid uonoadsul s *31IS JO 2J3UID Ul JOM3S sunqem| €5 [zzz Jlesuaus ‘Auauue] ayl| ZHTOMA Z€H
e 1n0 AJJed 0} padesnodus aJe s4adojaAa@ $1S02 [BUOIIPPE JNDUI [[IM }I0MIBU JUaN|}Jd dpeJ | "3 JO Ylou ul ulew Suisi [no4
19mas 21|gnd ay3 03 uoiPaUU0I 1ey) paieddijue s| 1 Juswdojanap pasodosd
3Y1 Jo uonedo| ay3 03 ang "aus [esodoud 3y} WOy SMO|4 J21eM |nOJ pajedidiiue
Ajgeuoseal aye) 01 3Jomiau Jamas [noy aljqnd ayi ul Aydeded ajenbape si aiayl
3y3 Jo uol1ed0| Ay} 01 an( *d1s |esodoud Ayl WOy SMO4 J21eM |n0J paledidiiue wngen| 09 [t5T uojduiuung ‘aue pjaasel| 9yTONA TEH
*211s |esodoad ay1 Wouy SMoj} 1a1em |noy paledidijue sungem| 19 [esz 38e||IA ||ESU.IS JO YOS 3Y3 01 puei| SHTONA 0EH
‘uonedyjdde Sujuueld e o uoissiwqgns ay3 01 Jolid uoidadsul aus uingenN 9 59'C adioyuewdo) ‘aue Joo 18 puel| yrTONA 6CZH
e 1n0 AJJed 0} padesnodus aJe s42dojaAa@ $1S02 [BUOIIPPE JNDUI [[IM 3I0MIBU
19mas 21jgnd ay3 03 uoiPaUU0I 1ey) paieddijue s| 3 Juswdojanap pasodoid
3Y3 Jo uonedo| ay3 03 ang "aus [esodoud 3y} WO SMO|4 J21eM |nOJ pajedidiiue
Ajgeuoseal aye) 01 3Jom1au Jamas [noy aljgnd ayi ul Aldeded ajenbape st aiayl
“JuawdojaAap a1niny Jo 1noAe| 3yl 19344e 0s pue B aesppym| sz [st€ axespRYM| evTONA 8TH
Ajdde |j1m Jamas Yyoea 1oy S9UBISIP JJO pUBIS "31IS 3y} SUISSOID 34NJINIISEISUL 4O YINOS Ul JI3M3S [NO4 "JIMBS J91BM 3IBLINS YIM ‘aueT Y1ON JO Y1ION 3Yy3 01 pue]
28e1aMas S| 313y "aus [esodoad ay) wouy SMoj} 191em |noy pajedidijue 3115 Jo Alepunog uJa1sam Ino 1snf Juawasea [eSa]
Ajqeuoseal aye) 01 }4om1au Jamas [noy aljgnd ayi ul Aydeded arenbape si aayL *31IS JO 19UJ0D 1SOM Y1IOU SS0JIe JUaWases |ega
*$49sn/s131dN220 aJn1ny Joj AJluswe Jo sso| e uesw Aew uone|jesul *211s 8y} uodn *91IS JO Y10U $S0JDE Sulew Suisl [Noy 93yl | sungem| z8  [e'€ |lesuans ‘sxy2a4g ay3 1e puel| ZyTOMNA LTH
s1y1 Jo Ajwixoud ayy “(sAepz/sinoy pz) sswn ||e 1e paiinbai aq |jim (sajo1yan|  padejd aq Aew sasn 8ARISUSS BJaYM JUBLSSASSE
Yam Suipnpul) $s900y "91IS 9yl JB3U/UIYIIM ISIBAN SJIYSHIOA JO |04IU0D JNOPO UB pUsWIWO034 MA "MLS SINgepm
ay3 Japun snjesedde s) a1ay] "juawdo|ansp aininy jo InoAe| ay3 10a4e os pue | AgxeH 01 Ajiwixoad WO B UIYIIM 81iS 8Y3 JO sealy
Ajdde |j1m Jamas Yyoea 10y S9IUBISIP JJO PUBRIS "31IS 3Y) SUISSOID 24NJINIISEISUL
28e1aMas S| 313y "aus [esodoad ay) wouj SMoj} 191em [noy pajedidijue
Algqeuoseau axe) 01 J10M1au Jamas [noy d1ignd sy ul Ayoeded ajenbape si auay |
‘|esodoud siyy wouy a84eydsip *9)1s ay3 uodn pade|d aq Aew sasn uojduIn;g 16 [0 R4 uoj3uin|3 ‘sue] Agneq e puel| THTOMNA 9ZH
131em [noj pajediolue ay3 a1epowWodde 03 3|qejieAe Ajoeded a1enbape|  BAIISUSS 313YM JUBWISSSSE JNOPO UE PUBWILIOIA
9ABY 10U S30P }JOMIBU JaM3S |N0j dIjgnd dY3 1S 3Y3 JO ANUIDIA BY3 UIYIM MA "MLS uo18uiA(3 Jo Ajiwixoid WOz e Uy
(uoisuedxa
adejia -aui)
|eana/ase|in
uwingeN| oz 20 (pue| ujuiewaJ) y1oN U319 yuomaH| OvTONA STH
uingeN ot o peoy p.ojnd ‘a8e.eD s,M01slig JowWI04| GETONA vCH
uingenN T SC0 Hd3 9SNOH an01H | BETONA €CH
uingeN| €T 670 9SNOYIYSIT YLIOMIH| LETONA CCH
uingenN| 1T 670 Hd3 3snoH ysnoujoom| 9ETONA TCH
“Atepunoq uisises oy uingenN| ST €€0 Hd3 usAeyyeQ| SETONA 0CH
350|2 JUBWIASED |e83| pUE UBA "J2UJOD 1SOM YINOS
ul Alepunog a1Is UIylM Isn[ SIOMIS J91eM 30e4INS
uwingeN| 9T  [9€°0 JUNO ||IIN 3B puel| ETONA 6TH
‘sslepunoq JMoAsyipmeyl T (V0 JOO UOHI|D ‘BSBYD PUBIPOOM 40 pueTf EETONA 8TH
Y1nos Jo jley pue 1sed SUo|e JOMIS J1eM 3IeLINS
uingenN| 6T 1344 JINM dwjoyuing| ZETONA LTH




Page 157

9IS 3Y3 JO 33U UIYHM pue| p|oyaaly uingeN 3 €€ [B13USD YIOA| TITONA S1S
puejAay| *a1Is dY3 UIYIIM SUJBW PUE SISMIS SNOLIEA
uingen 3 o 3ied ssauisng 3JOA JO YInos 3y} 03 dUS| 69TONA 13
uingen 3 X4 Aem y1ioN 131D Jo pu3| 89TONA €13
*911s Jo AJepunoq uJaisam Suoje sulew uingen 3 80 S}Jed ssauisng 3JoA 1e puel| Z9TONA [AE]
1918\ "Alepunog uiayinos Suoje Jamas Jalem
90B4NS "31IS JO Ynos Suoje syuawases eS| om|
‘yanos NJOA aylpmey 3 T aue Asoydor ‘saliasin aulweuuy| 08TOMA 113
1e AJepunog ais ulylm isnf Ja1aw pue ulejy
uingen 3 1£4Y] uojsuluung “Jed uoisuIssayd| 6LTONA 013
uo18uIn;g 3 T 21157 [eLiasnpu] uol8uin3| 8ZTONA 63
13UJ0D UIDISIM SSOIDE UIRA| EEJEN 3 St'0 91157 [BLIASNPU| XEIPIBYM| LLTONA 83
eIPRYM 3 S0 91e153 |eLasSNpu| dXeIpdYM| 9LTONA (3
uingen 3 60 uoj3uluung ‘aue uowwo)d| SZTOMNA 93
*31IS JO 943U SSOIIE JUBIPAY pUE UlEW J2IBAN uingeN 3 0 192115 sawer 1e sals| v/TOMA 53
uingen 3 4 adioyriahe e puet| €LTONA 3
HOA 3lPmey 3 9T aueq Aaxdor ‘a8eJen piod| ZLTONA €3
*13UJ0 1SB3 UINOS Ul Ja1aW uingen 3 0 A1IQ SS0.D SHUOAl JO yHou puel| S9TOMA fZ]
pue ulew a1eAlLd "AJepunog ulaisam M UlelAl
*speo. Suiisixa Suoje pajenlis uingeN 3 18T 21e8uny ‘a11ua) AuD oA 9TONA 13
AJUIBIA 9IS 3] SSOJDR SIaMBS pue sulew a|di NN
juawAojdwz
uingeN S [40) uoia|ddod| 09TONA SvH
Jay1aN ‘aue a8piy 8uol TET “fpe puey
uingeN 9 €20 uoja|ddod Jay1aN| 6STONA YvH
‘aue 3JoJdu913d qz/ez 13 A1a8ins 0/y
uingeN L S0 adioyjuewdo) ‘piep wieqd ouely| 8STONA €vH
uingen 6 €€°0 adioyrdoysia| LSTONA vH
‘aueq yauny) ‘paep Japjing
uingenN| ST SS°0 adioyidoysia| 9STONA TvH
‘auet yaunyd e '3 9z “fpe pue]
*9AI1BUIS)|E 3|qe)INS B 3q ABW UOISISAIQ ‘INOAR| B uingenN| zz 80 adioyjuewdo) ‘spjaid 159M| SSTONA OvH
3y1 109)Je 01 A|3)1| 37 P|NOM SISMBS JO UOIISO4| JO YINOS 3y} SSOJIE JUBWASED [eFaT "31IS JO BUIUID
550408 Aj|eUoSeIp SI9M3S [NOJ PUR JS1BM 3JBLING
*31IS JO 943U SSOJIE UleW SUIsLI J91eM [n04 uolduna| sz 60 u0318uIA|3 ‘BueT yaunyd Jo YuoN| vSTONA 6EH
111 ZdS WeJsuy ulyIm yuouny| vz 1660 yuoyny| €STONA 8€H
‘|ooyas Alewinid yuoyny Oy puel
*J3U.0 15E3 Y1Iou Ul Juswases [eSa] sungem|  ve  [pT AgxeH ‘1no) auoishauo 1e pue| ZSTOMA LEH
*211s |esodoad ay1 Wouy Smoj} Ja1em |noy paredidijue wngen| 9¢  [sT uoja|ddod| TSTOMA 9¢H
Alqeuoseau axe) 01 J10M1au Jamas [noy d1ignd sy ul Ayoeded ajenbape si auay | Jaddn ‘asnoH aamosuie|g 1e pueq
‘uonedyjdde Sujuueld e jo uoissiwqgns ay) 01 Jolid uondadsul uingenN 8¢ 65T uoj3uluung ‘sueq axeiu| 1e puej| OSTOMA SEH
9IS e 1n0 Alied 0] paSeunoous a.e sJ9dojaAsQ SISO [euoIppe Jndul
M 3JOMIBU JaM3S d1jgnd 33 0} UOIIIBULOD Jey) patedidnue si 3l JuawdojaAap
pasodoud ayj jo uonedo| ayy 01 anq ‘|esodoud siy) wouy a84eydsip
J91eMm [noj paledidilue ay) a1epowwodde 0} 3|qejiene Ajoeded ajenbape
9ABY 10U S30P }JOMIBU JaM3S |noj dljgnd aY3 a1Is ay3 Jo Al Y1 UIYIM
‘uonesijdde Sujuueld e jo uoissiugns ay3 03 Jolid uonoads Sopagiomey| v [vL'T u01[3YS ‘BUET Y24nyD Jo YuoN puel| 6vTONA YEH

91Is & 1n0 Auied 01 pageinodua ale siadojanag SIS0 [RUONIPPE NdUl

IM 3JOMIBU JaMas d1jqnd By3 03 UOIIIBUUO0 Jey3 pajedidiiue s i Juswdojansp
pasodoud ay3 jo uonedo| ay1 01 anq ‘[esodoud siyy wouy a81eyasip

431eM |noy pajedidiue 8y} 93ePOWWOIE 0} 3|qe|iee Ayoeded ajenbape
9ABY 10U S0P 3JOMIBU JaM3s [noj d1jqnd ay1 311s ay1 Jo Al ay1 ulyuM




Page 158

*a}Is |esodoud 3y} WoJj SMoj} J21em [noy patedpiue *IN220 S9SN BARISUSS 3JaYM }J0MI3U peOJ SUIMISIX UIYIM ‘BYS JO YInos uingen 86'8 1913nQ Jaudisaq uingeN| TZTONA 171S
Ajqeuoseas axe 0110M1au Jamas [noj d1jgnd ay ul Aloeded ajenbape siaJay] | JUSWISSSE JNOPO UB PUSWIWIOIDI MA “MLS UingenN Suo|e Juswases eS| pue JaMIs J21EM 3oBLNS
3404 03 Ajjwixoud WOy UIyIM Isnf sease swos
*21IS Jo Alepunogq uia1sea Suoje ule|y “3s uingenN [44 Allipeddid apised| 0LTONA ozls
40 YIS pue 153M Y1nos Suoje J1amas pauiquio)
Yyuoyny ST J}Jed $saUSINg JSISUIWYLION| 99TOMNA 6T1S
uingenN 8'C sA1al| €9TONA 9T1S
‘uonealjdde Sujuueld e jo uoissiugns ay3 03 Jold uondads SJOA ajiomey VLT YMON SS0.D SYUON| Z9TOMA 8T1S

91Is & 1n0 Auied 01 pageinodua ale siadojanag SIS0 [RUONIPPE NdUl

IM 3JOMIBU JaMas d1jqnd ay3 03 UOIIIBUUO0 eyl pajedidiiue s 3l Juswdojansp
pasodoud ay3 jo uonedo| ay1 01 anq ‘[esodoud siyy wouy a81eyasip

131eM |noy pajedidiue 8y} 93epOWWOIIE 0} 3|qe|ieAe Ayoeded ajenbape
9ABY 10U S0P }JOMIBU JaMaS [Noj 1jqnd BY1 31IS 3Y3 JO AUUIDIA BYI UIYUM




Page 159

Annex B: Summary of Petitions

1. Huntington and New Earswick

668 signatures

I/W e the undersigned oppose Labour’s plans to use Green Belt land across York to
build 22,000 houses on over the next 15 years — 2,000 of them in Huntington and
New Earswick Ward.

2. Save Acomb Moor Petition

59 signatures

We the undersigned object to the inclusion of part of Acomb Moor as a development
site (H9) in the Council’s Local Plan. We believe that site should continue to be
included in the Green Belt as it protects the rural setting of the western approach to
the City and avoids the dominance that any buildings near the Great Knoll would
have on the surrounding area. The moor is an important informal recreation amenity
for local residents and this should be recognised in the Local Plan.

3. Save the Green Belt Petition

81 signatures

We the undersigned object to the inclusion of land lying between Wetherby Road
and Knapton as a “showperson’s” camp in the Council’s Local Plan. We believe that
this site should continue to be included in the Green Belt as it protects the rural
setting of the western approach to the City. The introduction of large areas of hard
surfacing, together with intrusive storage facilities and maintenance activities, would
have a substantial impact on nearby residential areas. Such facilities should be
located in commercial estates.

4. (Clir Ann Reid — see Council Meeting 18" July 2013 agenda item 6 (ii))

2302 signatures

I/We the undersigned oppose Labour’s plans to use Green Belt land across York to
build 22,000 houses on over the next 15 years.

5. Dunnington Gypsy and Traveller Site

5 signatures

We the undersigned object to the proposal in the City of York Local Plan Preferred
Options for a Gypsy and Travellers Site at Common Road/Hagg Lane Dunnington. It
will adversely affect: Hassacarr Nature Reserve, the open aspect of the gateway to
the village, village green and conservation area, and the parking provision for
sporting events.

6. Proposed Siting of Gypsy and Travellers’ Site on Common Road,
Dunnington by City of York Council

136 signatures

We, the undersigned, object to a travellers’ site on Common Road

7. Dunnington Parish Council

1323 signatures

We the undersigned petition the City of York Council to stop the building of a
permanent 15 pitch Gypsy/Traveller site using land at Common Lane and Hassacarr
Lane in Dunnington, York. It’s located on Green Belt land, adjacent to Hassacarr




Page 160

Nature Reserve and will have a major impact on the people living in the surrounding
area, homes and businesses. There are plenty of area around York that would be
suitable for these traveller locations that would not affect local residences and
businesses. City of York Council needs to support our petition and keep residents
happy by providing areas and communities that people feel content to live in.

8. Objection to H37, ST04 and SF4

89 signatures

The signatories below would like to express their objections to the Local Plan
Development as defined in the accompanying document: Objects to The York Local
Plan in relation to H37, ST04, SF4.

9. Copmanthorpe

879 signatures

We, the undersigned, petition the council to amend the draft Local Plan and save the
traditionally Greenbelt-protected sites adjacent to Copmanthorpe from being
developed, either for housing or renewable energy generation.

10. Petition against the Huntington Travellers Site

139 signatures

We the undersigned petition the council to stop the building of a permanent site for
20 pitches (20-80 caravans) on a 3 acre plus site, Huntington York. The placement
of this travellers site right at the heart of an established community would be
disastrous. Locating it immediately adjacent to homes, nature reserve and
businesses indicates a complete lack of concern, by the council, for the impact this
will have on the way of life of Huntington & Heworth residents. It is hard to conceive
of a more inappropriate proposal.

11. Wheldrake

43 signatures

We the undersigned petition the council to listen to residents of Wheldrake and NOT
build on Greenfield sites and Natural woodlands inbetween The Cranbrooks & Valley
View as part of the York Local Plan (H28).

12. Save the Green Belt Petition (Clir Lynn Jeffries - see Council Meeting 18"
July 2013 agenda item 6 (ii))

124 signatures

We the undersigned object to the proposals in the council’s Local Plan for the
development of land lying between the existing urban area and the ring road. We
wish to see this land retained in the “Green Belt” Instead we believe that the Council
should concentrate any new buildings at previously developed, but now unused,
sites such as Terry’s, Nestle South, British Sugar and the area behind the railway
station. We specifically object to the inclusion of part of Acomb Moor as a
development site (H9) in the Council’s Local Plan. We believe that site should
continue to be included in the Green Belt as it protects the rural setting of the
western approach to the City and avoids the dominance that any buildings near the
Great Knoll would have on the surrounding area. The moor is an important informal
recreation amenity for local residents and this should be recognised in the Local
Plan.




Page 161

13. Stop the Clifton Gate Proposals (Julian Sturdy MP)

14 signatures

I/We the undersigned petition the Council to amend the draft Local Plan and save
the 330 acres of traditionally Greenbelt-protected land to the North of Clifton Moor
from the development of over 4000 new homes. We believe the proposed
development of this portion of land is completely inappropriate on the Greenbelt and
entirely unsustainable, putting too much strain on the local infrastructure.

14. Stop the Travelling Showpeople Site (Julian Sturdy MP)

288 signatures

I/We, the undersigned, do not want the proposed site on Wetherby Road, Knapton to
be used as a base for travelling show people. The proposed plan in the City of York
Local Plan is to offer 20 plots, with a minimum size of 500m2 each, to be used as a
permanent show people yard on Wetherby Road, Knapton. The proposed site will
have a detrimental impact on the area and we see it as an inappropriate
development on Green Belt land.

15. Protect York’s Greenbelt (Julian Sturdy MP)

416 signatures

I/We the undersigned petition the council to amend the draft Local Plan and save a
number of traditionally Greenbelt-protected sites from being developed upon. The
sites which have been earmarked by the Council for large scale housing
development include Holme Hill and various plots of land at Clifton Moor,
Osbaldwick, Copmanthorpe, Woodthorpe, Haxby and Monks Cross. We want to see
the character of our villages surrounding York protected. We acknowledge the need
for more housing in York, but believe the figure of 22,000 homes to be too high and
the loss of over 1000 acres of Greenbelt land to be unsustainable. We believe it is
absolutely vital that Brownfield sites are used first.

16. “Save the Green Belt” Petition (Clir Ann Reid - see Council Meeting 18"
July 2013 agenda item 6 (ii))

1084 signatures

W e the undersigned object to the proposals in the council’s Local Plan for the
development of land lying between W etherby Road and Knapton village. We believe
that the site should continue to be included in the Green Belt as it protects the rural
setting of the western approach to the city which would otherwise begin to merge
with the outer ring road.

17. Petition opposing the development of land at Moor Lane (Clir Ann Reid -
see Council Meeting 18" July 2013 agenda item 6 (ii))

259 signatures

We the undersigned object to the designation of land west of Woodthorpe of house
building (ST10). Successive local plans have indicated that this land is important in
enhancing York’s rural setting. The nearby Askham Bogs nature reserve could be
adversely affected by any development. Residents are concerned that development
in this area would exacerbate the traffic congestion problems which are already
evident at certain times of the day. We therefore petition that the land continue to
be included in the “Green Belt”.




Page 162

18. The Future of Huntington

53 signatures

We are residents of Forge Close and Sadlers Close, York YO32 who oppose
strongly to the proposed Local Plan which affects our local community and is
detrimental to the local infrastructure.

(For more detail see accompanying comment form and statement setting out
reasons for objection)

19. Gypsy & Travellers Site, Malton Road, Huntington

1036 signatures

We the undersigned petition the council to stop the building of a permanent site for
20 pitches (20-80 caravans) on a 3 acre plus site, Huntington York. The placement
of this site right at the heart of an established community, locating it immediately
adjacent to homes, a nature reserve and businesses would not be appropriate in this
locality, by virtue of its potential impact on Huntington & Heworth residents,. We
believe it is hard to conceive of a more inappropriate proposal.

(For more comments see accompanying email)

20. Dunnington WI- Response to Local Plan Preferred Options

26 signatures

We have decided to deal with this in the same way as a petition to reflect that it is a
collective response from an organisation but also to recognise and register each of
the signatories.

21. Travellers Site in Huntington E-Petition

87 signatures

W e the undersigned petition the council to stop the building of a permanent site for
20 pitches (20-80 caravans) on a 3 acre plus site, Huntington York. The placement
of this site right at the heart of an established community, locating it immediately
adjacent to homes, a nature reserve and businesses would not be appropriate in this
locality, by virtue of its potential impact on Huntington & Heworth residents.We
believe it is hard to conceive of a more inappropriate proposal.




35.

Page 163

Annex C: Extract from Minutes of Council Meeting 10"
October 2013

35. PETITIONS

A.

Petitions regarding the Council’s Local Plan

In view of the number of signatories to the following petitions relating to the
Council’s Local Plan and in accordance with the Council’s current petitions
scheme, these were discussed by Members. Consideration was also given to
a background report from the Assistant Director for City and Environmental
Services:

Presented by Clir Ann Reid — Council Meeting, 18" July 2013
2302 signatures

“I/We the undersigned oppose Labour’s plans to use Green Belt land
across York to build 22,000 houses over the next 15 years.”

Dunnington Parish Council
1323 signatures

“‘We the undersigned petition the City of York Council to stop the
building of a permanent 15 pitch Gypsy/Traveller site using land at
Common Lane and Hassacarr Lane in Dunnington, York. It's located
on Green Belt land, adjacent to Hassacarr Nature Reserve and will
have a major impact on the people living in the surrounding area,
homes and businesses. There are plenty of areas around York that
would be suitable for these traveller locations that would not affect local
residences and businesses. City of York Council needs to support our
petition and keep residents happy by providing areas and communities
that people feel content to live in.”

Presented by Clir Ann Reid - Council Meeting, 18" July 2013
1084 signatures

“We the undersigned object to the proposals in the council’s Local Plan
for the development of land lying between Wetherby Road and
Knapton village. We believe that the site should continue to be
included in the Green Belt as it protects the rural setting of the western
approach to the city which would otherwise begin to merge with the
outer ring road.”

Gypsy & Travellers Site, Malton Road, Huntington
1036 signatures

“We the undersigned petition the council to stop the building of a
permanent site for 20 pitches (20-80 caravans) on a 3 acre plus site,
Huntington York. The placement of this site right at the heart of an



Page 164

established community, locating it immediately adjacent to homes, a
nature reserve and businesses would not be appropriate in this locality,
by virtue of its potential impact on Huntington & Heworth residents. We
believe it is hard to conceive of a more inappropriate proposal.”

e Say No to the proposed plans for a 16 acre permanent travellers site in
Knapton York
1204 signatures (closed 1 September 2013)

“We the undersigned petition the council to stop the building of a
permanent site for 20 static caravans on a 16 acre site, Knapton York.
The council of York want to build it for 'show men ' as a permanent
home. The site is bigger than the whole village of knapton put together.
Its green belt land and the owner hasn’t even been approached about
the proposal. This will have a major impact on the people living in the
surrounding area, homes and businesses. There are plenty of areas
around York that would be suitable for these traveller locations that
would not affect local residences and businesses in the York area.
York Council needs to support our decisions and keep residents happy
by providing areas and communities that people feel content to live in.”

e Protect York’s Greenbelt
1232 signatures on 2" October 2013 (closes 31! December 2013)

“We the undersigned petition the council to amend the draft Local Plan
and save a number of traditionally Greenbelt-protected sites from being
developed upon. The sites which have been earmarked by the Council
for large scale housing development include Holme Hill and various
plots of land at Clifton Moor, Osbaldwick, Copmanthorpe, Woodthorpe,
Haxby and Monks Cross. We want to see the character of our villages
surrounding York protected. We acknowledge the need for more
housing in York, but believe the figure of 22,000 homes to be too high
and the loss of over 1000 acres of Greenbelt land to be unsustainable.
We believe it is absolutely vital that Brownfield sites are used first.”

Following the debate the Lord Mayor confirmed that the petitions and debate
had been noted and would be taken into account as the Council progressed
consideration of its Local Plan.



Page 165

YORK

CouNCIL DRAFT

&

Annex D: Delivering Strategic Sites

Introduction

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) promotes sustainable development and
encourages planning authorities to plan positively for their area. The Local Plan is the key
document delivering this sustainable development and reflects the vision and aspirations of
local communities.

The setting of strategic priorities within the Local Plan is set out within the NPPF (para 156).
This advocates strategic policies to deliver the homes and jobs needed in the local authority
and broad locations for strategic development as well as additional specific site allocations
for promoting development (para 157). In addition, the NPPF requires proportionate
evidence base to be submitted to support the plan (para 158). In particular, the NPPF
requires that Local Plans’ pay careful attention to viability to ensure that the plan is
deliverable. With regards to this, paragraph 173 of the NPPF states:

“The sites and the scale of development identified in the plan should not be subject to such a
scale of obligations and policy burdens that their ability to be developed viably is threatened.
To ensure viability, the costs of any requirements likely to be applied to development, such
as requirements for affordable housing standards, infrastructure contributions or other
requirements should when taking account of the normal cost of development and mitigation,
provide competitive returns to a willing land owner and willing developer to enable the
development to be deliverable.”

What is this Framework?

In order to achieve the requirements of the NPPF, City of York Council want to ensure that
the strategic sites within the Local Plan are viable and deliverable. This Framework sets out
key milestones leading up to the submission of the Local Plan for examination and the
proportionate evidence base that is required to prove that the site should be contained
within the plan.

The Level of detail required to meet the checklist will be influenced by when you are
intending to deliver the site — for sites proposed for delivery within the first five years,
confidence on delivery will be greater. The framework is intended to give you a general
understanding of what we will need by when and will also assist in future discussions and
negotiations with the Council during the plan preparation, to ensure that between us, we
are able to provide a robust evidence base to support the Local Plan.




Page 166

ZN ciTY

YORK
& COUNCIL DRAFT
Timescales:
Stage 1:

Confirming the Principle




Page 167

‘pJemio} awod 03 Aj2y|1| SI S By} Usym
uo puadap ||Im aA0ge 3y} 03 uone|al
u1 paJinbaJ [1_13p 4O |9A3] BY1 N

sau03sa|iw Ady pue
dew 93n0J uoneusW|dw|
Asaniap pue 8uiseyd
Spa3au 24n3dNJlSelu|
s|esodoud pue sasn-pue’
siaddois-moys jo
1eSIIW pue uonesyiuap|  ©
saAdalgo pue swly O
}9pN[OUI 01 JUBPIAT A
:98e1s s1y3 4oy 1s1P3yYd

o O O O

passaJppe 9q ||IM SaNssS|

A9y moy jo Asaniap 03 dew ainod,

|e49U33 e pa3u ||IM am :polsad sy}
u1 Jae| Auaaiap uisodoud says 104 A

ue|d 1d22u0d dAIlEDIPUI UY O
‘Aigein
[9A3] Y31y Jo uonesipul uy ©
:porsad ue|d ayy ul Ajes
pJemio} SulWod aJe S3US AUIBYM A

pooisJapun
si Suiseyd pue Aioyoalesy Alsnleq 4

AJSAI|3p JOJ 1IN0 135 So|RISBWIL
3Y3} UIYyHM passalppe 8ulaq
jo s|qeded aJe siaddoismoys,
:98e1s s1y3 Joj IsIPP/Yd

uoileynsuo)
suondQ paJiajaid ueld |e207]
ysnouyy pasied sanss| Suissalippy

S9Nss| |ed1314d
pue siaddoismoys, |ennualod pue
sjulesisuod Aay jo Suipueisispun uy A

2US
9Y1 JO} sjuswaJdinbal ainonJisesjul
A3y ‘|leJauasd jo Suipueisispun uy

Asaniap pue Suiseyd
"oul Asanijap Joy Asorosfesy Ayl 4
:98eis s1yy Joj 1s1po3yd

Ausuap ‘Buiseyd ‘suaquinu
dAIedIpUl "3 {AJDAISP JO 3|eISDWIL
pue s|aAg| |elnualod N0 189S A

Aviqein

oul ‘AyijIqeJanlap 3uldayje sanss|

|ea14d Jo siaddoismoys, |elnualod
Aue jo aieme ale noA ajesysuowsg A

AJan1|9p 404 1932301 Supjiom pue
8uljim 3q 01 panoud si Jadojanap
/dsumopuet ayl leyl wayuod A
UOISIA Ue|d |e207
ayr o1 diysuonejas ayj uieldxy A
9IS JNOA
Joj swie pue UoISIAN 3Y1IN0 1S A
:a8e1s s1y3 4oy 1sipPayd

Asaniap Ajaea
lo13eaijdde auljano ue jo uolesedald

Suipueisino
9B S3NSS| 1eYyM JO UOIIBIIPUI UB ‘SI3Y310
10} pue AjljigeIA 9)IS 91eJ1SUOWIP
0} PIDU ||IM 3M S3}IS 3|qBJIAI[DP
Ajsea 404 *Ajijigessnlap anoud o}
92U3PIAS JNOA HWIQNS 03 NOA pasu A\

puoAaq pue uoissiuqgns

JOAI|9p 03 Bul03 aJe
NOA 1eym pue usym Mouy| 01 pasau S\

AJBAI|9p SPJEMO] YJOM |[IM 9M MOY
MOU)| 0] PI3U [[IM 9M ‘S3SEeD JBY30 U]
"3|qeIA pUB J|qBJIDAIDP SI 9IS Y} MOUY
01 paau ||Im am ‘porsad ueld ay3 uj uo
Ajaea paJanijap aq 03 SI d1IS aY3 243y

uoissiwuqgns-24d

yHm 3jesp aq ued ssaddoismoys,
Aue moy mous| 03 pasu I

paJani|ap

9q Aj|eirualod ued 23S sy} usym
9218 pue puelsiapun 01 pasau I\

‘ue|d |B207 9Y3 Ul Aeis ued s
3Y3 1BY3} 90UIPIJUOI DABY 0} PAAU I

M3IN3Y

Suljim s1 uadojsnap/isumopuel
91 1eYl MOU| 0] paau ap\

"ue|d 3y ulyum papnjau
9q p|nNoys aus Syl 18yl WJjuod 01
NOA 40} pue JaAI3p [|IM 31IS JNOA JeYM
JO 3uipuelsiapun |eJaua3 e pasu I

9|dpund ay3 Suiwayuo)

14vdd

112NNOD

MUOA

40 ALID N



DRAFT

Page 168



	Agenda
	
	2 Minutes
	4 Consultation Feedback
	Annex A - Responses from Prescribed Bodies
	Annex B Summary of Petitions
	Annex C Minutes
	Annex D Strategic Sites


